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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EFEHRE

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB751.8
million, which increased by 57.4% as compared to last
year. Gross margin increased from 35.2% to 46.2%. Profit
for the period was approximately RMB20.7 million, which
increased by 109.6% as compared to last year.

BE2017F12A318 L1288 - AEEHZSEETELT751.8
BETARY  REFEEEMS7.4% - EFERH35.2%LFH

£46.2% °
109.6% °

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since Hony Capital became the controlling shareholder of the Group in
the second half of 2016, the Group promoted strategic optimization for
its original handbag business segment, and on top of that, made efficient
use of resources to establish the food and beverage segment with a
considerable size from scratch in a short period of time. After the bold
advances in 2017, the overall business of the Group has undergone a
qualitative change from revenue to profitability.

The major task of the Group in 2017 was “maintaining the existing
resources and creating additional resources”, endowing the Group with
the capacity of advancing its dual principal activities side by side. The
Group timely brought the existing handbag processing business into
focus. On top of disposing the continuous loss-making retail business,
its resources were pooled into the handbag processing business with
high efficiency and cost advantages while reducing various management
expenses. The handbag business turned around to profit as a whole in
2017. As the major source of growth of the Group, the food and
beverage segment made a strong impact in the food and beverage
industry after the rapid development by the Group in 2017, and acquired
10 brands through investments in subsidiaries or equity investments,
including regional leading brands with stable profitability such as HHG,
as well as rapidly ascending second-tier brands such as “West Master”,
“Yujian Xiaomian” and “Foook”.

HARMY20.7TEETARYE  REFRHE I

FBOE

BoARIRE2016F THFRARNEBER
BRERAR  REBHRFREBRRET
TREEBEEL  FHEULERLSKRFA
BR AERETHEEETEAEHEZRE
B E R ETIR o ££3B2017F K J) 58 7 1)
O AEEEBEBLRRARRI B G
NGB EERNE o

017 FAEBNRLEBRIIBFE - 8l
B EASEESEIEEBRIENER
BH-AEBHRENGFETFRMIER
ERETTEBRRE EREEEEBRN
TEXBER L BERBENAERX
MRAEBNFRNITER  BEBES
BEREMR 0I7TFFREGRETRA
BRAE BEREBERAEENTIERR
PR AEELB017TFHNIZTE] B
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FEBE @

In 2017, the Group adhered to the dual-wheel driven strategy using
investment management and operation management as a core method,
and made substantial progress in building up operation-supporting
capability. The Group had commenced the construction of an internet-
based marketing platform and established Best Food University which
would focus on human resources and training, while building a
professional team to establish a big data center. The Group was capable
of managing the value-added service platform and providing value-added
services on a preliminary level.

During the past year, the Group marched forward with courage, and the
strategic direction being practiced by Best Food Holding represented the
possible path of future breakthrough for China’s food and beverage
industry.

Prospects and Strategic Planning

Looking forward into 2018, the Group will adhere to the dual-wheel
driven strategy using investment management and operation
management as a core method for achieving continuous value-based
growth. On the one hand, the Group will continue to acquire assets with
healthy profitability and excellent growth potential through investment
management. On the other hand, it will establish a group-level multi-
dimensional operation-supporting system covering, among others, brand
operation, management information system, human resources and
supply chain to advance operation efficiency, lower costs and enhance
brand influence for the Group’s business segments, achieving constant
growth in overall corporate value of Best Food Holding.

ITFEAREBRFREETENECERE
bR E) M AZ D BIRE  TEST B S A

FEtLREERZER AEECDEFER
EREBANEHETe KRIEERAD
BREZIINERAE AREAZEET
B RBIER L AEBEC VI AEE
BIBERBFTFANEIERIGERBEE N -

BE—F AKBEEEMNT AREBE
FEENRBTARKREFRERTEA
BERY R R R 2 B% -

f& 8 I R 2R &

RE2018F  FEEBFEBEUREETER
BEEERYRBHEARD O EEBERE
EENZLER: —FTEARBREETER
BURBEERERMNENREFTEREBED
MEE: Z— FTEBBESBEERELAE
mEEE BREREERG ANEBR - HE
BEZHENELEIFBRARERETER
RBBFENE BREKAE BRAREFE
N EREREREBLEEEMNSEE
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The strong pass of the enemy is like a wall of iron, yet with firm strides,
we are conquering its summit ([EES)2B B8 - M5 @ 1E5E). Best
Food Holding has a strong belief in the future of China’s food and
beverage industry. | sincerely hope to witness the growth of Best Food
Holding with all shareholders!

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their strong support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commentary

Results Summary of the Group

Since becoming the controlling shareholder of the Group in the second
half of 2016, Hony Capital has spared no effort in investing resources
into the Group and proceeded to promote its business optimization. In
2017, not only did the Group realize a complete turnaround in its overall
results, it opened up scope for future growth and made fundamental
changes to its profitability.

By introducing the food and beverage segment on top of the original
handbag business, the Group successfully reversed the continuous
decline in revenue from 2014 to 2016. While maintaining the stability of
the handbag segment, the Group committed to intensive capital
operation and operation improvement for the food and beverage
business over a year, which brought substantial increase in the overall
revenue of the Group within a short period of time as well as significantly
boosting the Group’s profitability. For the twelve months ended 31
December 2017, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB751.8 million, which increased by 57.4% as compared to last year.
Gross margin increased from 31.0% to 46.2%. Profit for the year was
approximately RMB20.7 million, which increased by 109.6% as
compared to last year (Of which, the none-recurring interest expenses
for the issue of CB were RMB7.4 million).

THEBRWRRS W

EBBRBETW

EUES Fop

A A B2016F THEFH ARNE R T
AR RIAZR - — H EE AN EBETTER
NHEBREAN ST EEFHEERE
fbe2017F  REBTEERTEEES
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BREHbEBREENE L -

AEBERBEHNFREBEMR 5| AEK
EBRER - M RAE T H2014F 22016 4F
CEBFEETENANBRE AEEEE
EFREBRROER L EREBLBR
—FREBETENEREEREERE &
ERNRAETREEEBEEEARER
EREAFENOESTABENNRS - &
F£2017F 128318 [E121@ A+ 7N & B &%
BEEBHNBISEETARE  EAF
[ B 38 1N57.4% ° E F| £ H31.0% LA =
46.2% ° F AHE R 49207 A E T ARE &
EF R EE IN109.6% ° (KA - A E1TCB
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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The introduction of the food and beverage segment endowed the Group
with the capacity of advancing its dual principal activities side by side,
which not only significantly mitigated the cyclical risks historically faced
by the Group with the handbag segment as its single principal activity,
but also rejuvenated the listed company. For the past year, the food and
beverage segment of the Group acquired 10 brands through investments
in subsidiaries or equity investments, including regional leading brands
with stable profitability such as HHG, as well as rapidly ascending
second-tier brands such as “West Master”, “Yujian Xiaomian” and “Foook”.
In 2017, each brand under the food and beverage segment achieved
growth rates far exceeding the industry level. The intrinsic equity value of
each brand significantly appreciated due to their results (the appreciated
valuation of joint-stock brands are not reflected in the financial
statements of the Group). With continuous support from the Group, each
brand will demonstrate immense profit potential after reaching the stage
of large-scale chain operation. The excellent results are the outcome of
not only inherent quality of these brands and efforts from our
management team, but also the value-added service system established
by the Group. The Group successively set up the Internet marketing
center, Best Food University and big data center, capable of providing
platform-based value-added services on a preliminary level in 2017. For
the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the food and beverage
segment had 306 stores (up from 129 as at 31 December 2016),
recorded total revenue of invested companies of RMB811.2 million, while
the revenue attributed to the Group amounted to RMB409.5 million. The
gross margin of the food and beverage segment was 61.8%.

He EREBRANSIAEREETES
EFEEBEIVENERE - TEKE AR
BRTAEEES FUFREBKIEABE X
FrEmMmBERERR mMBEALETARR
RTHMEN -BE—F AEBERE
BIRREBBAERAKRERSRAIKERE
B10fEmE HREEeR I SEBER
FHERESELRE bEWIELFE] B
B [REISERES AN KREHNA S
MIBEB M 2017 FEHFRRE MBS
BERTABHBBITEKRENKERE - &
M TEEETETERREEEDESK
@I (MR @A EERA W RELEAR
SEUBEEPER): KRR SLRBERE
AREEZESHTEDRE(CEHLEERE
BEBRREEEANBINEN - LLEEF
MERER TS DEERDE AN EEEK
BEME N EXRBEAEEEDEID
BERBER 2017TFERNEBEERY T
HE @R L BEAE  REEPL
ENFZABFEANEERKE D -BE
201712 A31H L1218 A - EEREBKRK
HA 9 P9 JE 48 802 3306 K (20164 12 A 31 H
PISBEAR120R) BEXTEASI12EE
TAREB(BERECEAPLETEA)
HEBAEELEBABI05HAETARE -
HERBREBRBEFNE H61.8% °
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After a year of adjustment and consolidation, the handbag segment,
pruned and streamlined, re-focused on the handbag manufacturing
business, where the core competitive advantage lay, effectively
optimizing its profitability, and turned around to profit. For the twelve
months ended 31 December 2017, the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment recorded revenue of RMB342.3 million, and the
gross margin was 27.6%.

Looking forward into 2018, the Group will adhere to the dual-wheel
driven strategy using investment management and operation
management as a core method for achieving continuous value-based
growth. On the one hand, the Group will continue to acquire assets with
healthy profitability and excellent growth potential through investment
management. On the other hand, it will establish a group-level multi-
dimensional operation-supporting system covering, among others, brand
operation, management information system, human resources and
supply chain to advance operation efficiency, lower costs and enhance
brand influence for the Group’s business segments, achieving constant
growth in overall corporate value of Best Food Holding.

FREBERALCB —FONAREER 28
T**i@%t@'%ﬁiﬁé%ﬁﬁxﬁﬁéﬂﬁv
DHEFEIMNFREEER  BF g
BEMENR CERABAR- ﬁizow
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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In 2017, the food and beverage segment made a strong impact in the
industry. It had acquired a number of emerging leading brands in several
subdivisions of food and beverage, and preliminarily established a back-
office supporting system capable of integrating resources and achieving
synergy. The manufacturing and sales of handbags segment went
through one year of adjustment, optimization and pruning, whereby
resources were recalibrated towards the handbag manufacturing
business, where the core competitive advantage lay, therefore effectively
optimizing its profitability. In 2018, the Group will accelerate its
investments in subsidiaries and gradually realize the potential value to be
produced by its high-growth joint-stock brands.

In 2018, the Company will conduct further adjustments in terms of
capacity layout and personnel structure, elevate efficiency, enhance cost
control and streamline management expenses while maintaining stable
orders, prompting a steady development for the manufacturing and sales
of handbags segment. Meanwhile, the two segments have substantial
potential for synergy in terms of corporate development strategy and
planning and human resources system.

We are aware that even the longest journey could only be completed
with one step after another, and 2017 marked a solid step for the Group.
In 2018, the Group will continue to quicken its pace in building up
operation management capacity, enhance resource coordination and
sharing, achieve optimization in both costs and efficiency, and further
promote the profitability of each segment.

H EREBRE01I7TFEEERE
NEBEYEAFEH ESZEERESE
M EEL RS VS REAEREESE
TR E IR 1 R R A S E AR S K 2018
FEAREE G MBITERAIGEQHEHE - WF
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FREBRR2018F B ERIT T EREN
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E—FHE BARE AEERKALH
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RB|HOBEER - AR WAEBRRAE
CEZRBERS ANDBEREGKTEY
TR B KK TR E T

BMRM TEZ7T BREDS  2017F &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Food and Beverage Segment

Industry Review and Prospects

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the domestic
revenue of food and beverage industry amounted to approximately
RMB4 ftrillion in 2017, with growth of 10.7% compared to that of the
corresponding period of last year. The growth rate was higher than that
of the aggregate retail sales of social consumer goods.

We observed that during the past year, China’s food and beverage
industry underwent massive shifts and rapid changes beneath its overall
speedy growth. However, despite the constant emergence of new
brands and new technologies, the nature of the food and beverage
industry remained unchanged. The increase of disposable income per
capita, the rise of urbanization level and the accelerating pace of life
remained the base driving forces behind the long-term and constant
growth of China’s food and beverage service market. Meanwhile, during
the evolutionary process of consumption upgrade, safety, convenience,
reasonable price and high-quality product remained to be the basic
pursuits of consumers. Figuring out how to achieve the best balance
among cost, efficiency and consumption experience while maintaining
swift growth was still the core factor for a food and beverage brand to
gain a differentiated competitive edge.

In 2016, we remarked that China’s food and beverage industry was
experiencing significant and drastic changes. During the past year, we
observed that one important aspect of the changes arose from the
innovation in the operation model and organization form within the
industry. The magnifying effect of mobile internet enabled emerging
brands to obtain immediate and explosive exposure within a short period
of time, while also providing them with the opportunity to quickly breach
through obstacles in terms of brand marketing, personnel training,
information system, supply chain, channel expanding and product
research and development system, which was complex systematic work
reliant on support from the system. New platform-based enterprises had
also begun to emerge, and by way of establishing a collaborative
network covering each central step in the operating process of food and
beverage, they provided single food and beverage brands with “capacities”,
helping them quickly break through the “sound barrier” and leap forward
in its process of development.
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Strategic Planning Review and Prospects

Taking into account the state-of-the-art of China’s food and beverage
industry, Best Food now upholds its strategy of promoting the
continuous growth of corporate value through a dual-wheel driven
strategy using investment management and operation management.

For investment management, the revenue and profit from the controlling
projects represented an important source of revenue for the food and
beverage segment as well as a core component of collaborative network,
and therefore the Group will place great emphasis on completing the
layout of core controlling brands. For joint-stock brand investment, strict
standards will be applied to single out brands boasting a size to a certain
extent, possessing unique features and having established a leading
position in its own category. Meanwhile, the Group will enhance its
efficiency in each stage of operation of its brands and accelerate their
development by tapping into group-level systematic value-added
services.

In respect of the operational management, the Group will pool its
resources to build a value-added service platform, strengthening its
systematic support capacity for its brands in terms of internet marketing,
training and human resources, supply chain synergy, channel expanding
and product research and development. Meanwhile, the Group will
further bring the operation process online with new internet technologies,
S0 as to achieve real-time sharing of each system supporting module on
the platform, promote collaborative efficiency and form data sediment
and accumulation. In the future, the Group will gradually provide data
intelligence-based decision support capacity to its brands.

During the past year, the Group marched forward with courage, and the
strategic direction being practiced by Best Food Holding represented the
possible path of future breakthrough for China’s food and beverage
industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Business Progress

Development in Investment and Investment Management
In 2016, the Group acquired the controlling interest of HHG, a leading
fast food chain in Beijing featuring rice meals, and acquired a non-
controlling interest in Yujian Xiaomian, a prominent emerging brand, and
West Master, a leading Chinese fast food brand in Beijing. In addition,
the Group entered into an investment contract with Sexy Salad, a rapidly
emerging and prominent brand of salad within the food and beverage
industry in China in March 2017 and completed the first round of
investment in April. It entered into investment contracts with Yuepin in
March 2017, who owns two iconic brands of Vietnamese cuisine, Muine
and Pho Nam, with Claypot King in April 2017, a brand of typical
Cantonese-style clay pot rice, and further with Dafulan in May 2017, a
prominent emerging brand featuring Hunan rice noodle and traditional
snacks. The Group completed the first round of investments in all these
brands in July 2017. In May 2017, the Group entered into an investment
contract with Seesaw Coffee, a typical specialty coffee brand, and
completed its first round of investment in October. In October 2017, the
Group signed with Foook, an upgraded notable brand for spicy hot pot,
and in September 2017, the Group signed with “Xinyi Technology”, a
service provider of information system for the food and beverage chain.
The Group completed the first round of investments in these brands in
December. In 2018, the Group will promote the investments in the
Controlling Brands with increased efforts, and gradually realize the
potential value to be produced by its high-growth Joint-Stock brands.

Establishment of Management Platform

In 2017, the Group set up the basic structure of the platform for value-
added services based on core modules of operation, and has hence
gained preliminary capacity for control and value-added services.

For example, the Group established an internet marketing center,
commenced the construction of an internet-based marketing platform
and achieved synergy amongst the brands under Best Food Holding
based on the offline store network of the brands. The Group sought for
crossover brand resources under Lenovo and Hony to conduct joint
marketing activities with its own brands, while advancing the launch of
membership system for its brands as well as online retail business of
food and beverage derivatives.

EEENWR D@
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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For human resources and training, the Group had formed a team of
experts and established Best Food University. Taking into account the
common demands of its brands, the Group will provide management
skill training for the management at all levels.

For information system, the Group had established a big data center
and, based on the current information systems of each brand, accessed
data interfaces and built a data collection and analysis system based on
SAAS structure.

Controlling Brand

Store Network: In 2017, HHG had a total of 143 stores, of which 23
were franchised stores and 32 were newly opened. In 2018, HHG will
continue its intensive business development in Beijing and North China,
while increasing trial regions for the franchising of the business.
Meanwhile, overseas expansion is being rolled out in an orderly fashion.

Sales Growth: HHG continues ameliorating its store service model,
striving to improve the consumer experience. Meanwhile, HHG further
upgrades its store image, enhancing the fashionableness while optimizing
the store layout. In addition, HHG keeps improving overall consumer
experience through optimizing the menu, launching new products,
adjusting dish varieties, reviewing pricing strategy and improving dining
environment. For the period ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of
HHG amounted to approximately RMB409.5 million, which increased by
19.6% as compared to last corresponding period of last year.

Comparable Same-store Sales Growth: The comparable same-store
sales growth rate of HHG for 2017 was 6.5%, sustaining a fairly high
same-store growth level. During this period, HHG increased its efforts
into expanding the take-out business and augmented the online
operation team. Take-out sales of HHG increased significantly in 2017,
accounting for over 40%.

Supply Chain: In 2017, HHG obtained a parcel of land, the plant and
production facilities for the setup of a central kitchen in Baodi, Tianjin.
Meanwhile, HHG further improved the processing capacity of the central
kitchen in Beijing. In the future, besides meeting the demands of its own
store, HHG will expand third-party customers, including other food and
beverage companies, convenience stores and hypermarkets, and
expand its business scope and take full advantage of its vertical supply
chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Attached is the statement profit or loss of HHG for the year ended 31  Hi&k A& AH E2017E12 A31 B 1 B
December 2017. BmE-

Statement of Profit or Loss of HHG MERBEHER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2017F 12731 H 1FFFfA

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® TAR®E
Revenue U A 409,524 342,446
Cost of sales iHE AR (156,592) (145,766)
Gross Profit EF 252,932 196,680
Distribution and selling expenses o= &=k DN (185,510) (156,873)
General and administrative expenses THEHR (27,661) (26,186)
Other income H by A 4,148 1,920
Other losses, net Hih 518558 (1,117) -
Finance income B 75 I A 203 -
Finance expenses BiEER = (536)
Profit before taxation B 753 A o A 42,995 15,005
Income tax expense B (11,738) (4,313)
Profit for the year & A A 31,257 10,691
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Joint-Stock Brands

In 2017, all Joint-Stock Brands of the Group achieved fairly rapid growth
with the improvement of operating systems. The investment and support
to all operating circles from the Group laid a solid foundation for the rapid
development of these brands in the future. The following is a summary of
business data for the year ended 31 December 2017 of the associates
invested up to the date of this report:

Revenue of Associates for the year ended 31 December 2016/17
and Year-on-year Growth

BROEXBER

2017F  AEFEBETE 2R mEHEES
AGRANBERER T KIEEEK - K&
ENREREELERANIFTRZIZR
mBRESRERBEFTTER BEE2
ERRRERENEREARER 2K
mEERKOER B AREB RN EEER
R AT REC2RBE0N7TEBBIER
E: S

SZRLE0M6/M7TFEX£ERRELERE

Unit: RMB’000,000 W 2016
B ABARY W 2017
63.0
50
355
E_ ol
2 8 = 232
17.6
» E_ ol
M 1 HE
% D 2
Yujian West Master Sexy Salad Yuepin Dafulan® Clay Pot King Seasaw Foook
XiaorTi%l i HeIRDH 5 RFEH FE% R B/E
BRI

* Start from August, 2016

*2016F8 A tBiEE

Yujian Xiaomian, under Guangzhou Yujian Xiaomian, is a new prominent
chain brand established in Guangzhou in 2014, the central product of
which is Chongging small noodles. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the revenue of Yujian Xiaomian amount to RMB51.7 million,
increased by 92.2% as compared to last year.

West Master is a Chinese fast food chain brand established in Beijing in
2014, the central product of which is the Chinese hamburger. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of West Master amount to
RMB99.2 million, increased by 53.4% as compared to last year.

Sexy Salad is a new prominent brand quickly rising in the salad branch of
China’s food and beverage industry, having risen from nothing and
become one of the leading salad brands in the South China area within
two years. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of Sexy
Salad amount to RMB27.8 million, increased by 23.2% as compared to
last year.

BMBR /G ETHEBE/NEME -
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23.2% o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Yuepin, established in 2013 and with Viethamese cuisine as central
product, is currently operating two chain brands, “Yue Xiao Pin” and “Mei
Nai Xiao Guan”. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of
Yuepin amount to RMB64.7 million, which increased by 28.4% as
compared to last year.

Dafulan was established in July 2016, and focuses on Hunan rice
noodles and Hunan traditional food. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the revenue of Dafulan amount to RMB16.9 million.

Claypot King was established in 2012, and its central product is
Cantonese-style clay pot rice. Over 10,000 clay pots are sold daily,
making it the sales champion for its kind in the Beijing market. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of Claypot King amount to
RMB63.0 million, which increased by 18.3% as compared to last year.

Seesaw was established in 2012, and has positioned itself as a leading
brand in the specialty coffee segment industry. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the revenue of Seesaw amount to RMB35.5 million,
which increased by 101.4% as compared to last year.

Foook, the owner of the “Foook Spicy Hot Pot” brand, has made great
development in Shenzhen. It directly operates outlets one after the other
in many famous shopping centers. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the revenue of Foook amount to RMB43.0 million, which increased
by 85.4% as compared to last year.

EEENRED T @
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Manufacturing and Sales of Handbags Segment

Industry Review and Prospects

In recent years, certain sectors of the manufacturing industry have begun
to shift from China to Southeast Asia. A new concern arises whether as
the prices for labor force, land and energy, among others, go up, China’s
manufacturing industry which has been skyrocketing since the 1980s
may be replaced with those in lower-cost regions. However, it is our
belief that the East Asia manufacturing network with China at its center
will not be replaced by other regions because: firstly, the manufacturing
capacity of the current cluster in East Asia is able to easily satisfy the
global demand, and, as such, it will be difficult for newly emerging
regions to compete; and China, with its supply chain management
capacity due to its colossal scale, will continue to be at the center of the
Secondly, to reproduce China’s rise in the
industry and undertake massive amount of outsourcing orders, other
regions have to commit to low-cost infrastructure construction on a
national basis, which is virtually impossible outside China.

manufacturing cluster.

Meanwhile, we also observe that certain shifts of plants from China to
Southeast Asia are the result of internal structural adjustments in the East
Asian manufacturing cluster. The shift of manufacturing to Southeast
Asia implies only an expansion in the radius of the supply chain network,
where China remains to be at its center.

In line with the above trend, the Group has implemented production
capacity layout optimization for the handbag business, where the final
step of the process will be completed in Myanmar. Meanwhile, the core
functions such as management, design and sales remain in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, where efficiency is the highest.

Business Development

In 2017, the Group conducted a series of improvements for the handbag
segment, enabling it to turn around to profit in spite of the extremely
unfavorable external environment. Firstly, the Group brought the handbag
business into focus. The significantly loss-making retail business was
disposed of at the end of 2016. Its resources were pooled into the
handbag processing business where our core competitiveness lay.
Secondly, the Group further streamlined personnel at the head office and
lowered the management expenses on the basis of the more focused
business. Thirdly, the Group continued to push forward the construction
of its plant in Myanmar in order to shift its production capacity.

RERHEFREBRHR
TEOERERE

e FER - By R EXERBRTREARE
EE&O*E%W?Em%%%%M@
Bt SEZEBRO LK PE
%Lﬁ@%iﬁuk VAU I 3% R m B0

FRAE TR RE P A R P AR o i 3R A
BE APBEAFLONREHEXERES
TEREMmEIRA - HRERER: —
TE BRERTEFRENHERN EL
EREZMEEHRONFTR  HIE RN TR
HMERDRERETHETF MPEARHE
BARBRUEMBEINHRERERES &
MRERNEEAREXREFORLLE - 5

*Eﬁvﬁ@ﬁﬁ“ﬁ@@¢lWEmﬁ
B ABREABENEE R FEUERA
ﬁhkﬁﬁﬁ$m%““mL B
BlAINREATATREEIRA ©

EERMERE I ITHETREERS

THER EERIVEXEZREAR
ETHEBERAE - REXARBETE
BogHERNEEREEEKOELERAK
T EDARAPBEAFRL -

ERIEEIALBY KAEBHFREBKD
ERETELAR BSRENTRHES
RASEYE  REHZONER Rt #H
ERERBERERSNAREREE -

EBER

REBE20I7TFHE FREBRBETT
RO EBILES 2mﬂHW%%VﬁﬁTﬂ
EETNABRTRBAERN -F— HF
m%%ﬁﬁ%%vﬁmmiimﬁﬁﬁg
BHRENTEELE BEREEREEZ
DETHFANTIER - F- EEBER
EERLE E—SPHELATAERE B
REEBEAIH- ChnEEEEE T
@Lﬁ’%%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%k°

/v/v —



1t & % @

BREERERAF

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Through the above means, in 2017, the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment recorded revenue of approximately RMB342.3 million
and profit of RMB1.8 million (loss recorded by the handbag segment in
2016: RMB6.7 million).

Looking ahead to 2018, the Group is confident in the steady
development of the handbag segment. For revenue, the Group currently
has sufficient orders in hand and actively expands customers in Canada
and other European and American markets. For the adjustment of
capacity layout, the productivity construction at the plant in Myanmar has
been completed, and is currently in the stage of trial operation.
Production is expected to formally commence at the Myanmar plant in
the first half of 2018, which is expected to lower the overall average
production costs of the manufacturing and sales of handbags segment
and improve the cost structure of the handbag segment. For cost
control, the Group will transfer some of the employees to the Myanmar
plant or directly hire local manpower as a means of strictly controlling
sales and management expenses.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2017
was RMB925.9 milion (31.12.2016: RMB303.1 million). As at 31
December 2017, the Group had current assets of RMB611.0 million
(31.12.2016: RMB267.5 million) and current liabilities of RMB373.1
million (31.12.2016: RMB164.4 million). The current ratio was 1.64 as at
31 December 2017 as compared to 1.63 as at 31 December 2016.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no outstanding bank
borrowings (31.12.2016: nil). As at 31 December 2017, the Group
maintained bank balances and cash of RMB398.0 million (31.12.2016:
RMB108.3 million). The Group’s net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash
equivalents net of total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.43
as at 31 December 2017 (31.12.2016: 0.36).
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The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the property, plant and equipment improvement in the amount of
RMB7.7 million.

The Group has sufficient cash and available bank reserve to meet the
Group’s capital commitments and working capital requirements.

Human Resources

At 31 December 2017, the Group had a workforce of about 4,500
people (Food and beverage business: 1,400 people, Manufacturing and
sales of handbags: 3,100 people). The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees, and provides them with proper training
and competitive compensation and incentives. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional experience
and prevailing market situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary
and bonuses based on individual merits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 January 2016, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices and Corporate Governance Report (“New
CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) was amended. The Company has adopted the code provisions
set out in the New CG Code. The Board is committed to complying with
the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that the
directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and
practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the New
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 except where
stated and explained below.

— Mr. Zhao John Huan is the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. He oversees and manages the Group’s business
as the chairman with the assistance of the Group’s senior
management team. Other functions normally undertaken by a chief
executive officer of the company are delegated to members of the
Group’s senior management team. This structure deviates from
the code provision of Code that requires the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer to be separate and not performed
by the same individual. The Directors has considered this matter
carefully and decided not to adopt the provision. The Directors
believe that the current management structure has been effective
in facilitating the operation and development of the Group and its
business for a considerable period of time and that the necessary
checks and balances consistent with sound corporate governance
practices are in place. Accordingly, the Directors do not envisage
the Group should change its current management structure.
However, the Directors will review the management structure from
time to time to ensure it continues to meet these objectives.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2011. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive director

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprises three executive directors
(one of whom is the Chairman) and three independent non-executive
directors. The three independent non-executive directors represent more
than one-third of the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-
executive directors possess appropriate business, professional
accounting qualifications and legal expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.
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The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the
Listing Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
independent non-executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any director appointed by
the Board or elected by the shareholders of the Company to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in
respect of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors
within reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board
meetings are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided
with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.
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During the year under review, nine full board meetings were held andthe RREIBEFEEARN S AR A HEE S
individual attendance of each director is set out below: ZSEFLFEBRFYGOT :

Number of board
meetings attendance

Name of director EEnNA HEEEEEE XY
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) BB E(EE) 8/9
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FNBERAE 9/9
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng FRAERAE 9/9
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei B # 5 4 9/9
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence LA 9/9
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August 2016 and B IIB%E % 4 (A2016 F8 F9H 1/9
resigned on 4 January 2017) R2017F1 S4B BT)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (appointed on 4 January 2017) ZEHESA (PR2017F1 A48 LT) 8/9

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and K HFEZFTEFTEZ TR @EES —1BSD
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has & FHEYESEAZEM AR IS - A
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group MR FEH A EB XK LREEEREDNT
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the 2 > W2 B E R E TR B XA @)%
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also fIiRE T 2B ELREFT AEEER - K
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional AR e TR EERBHEEENLE X
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever 2E » & B ANAQ &5 #&IE -

necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes AR ARG AEBEBKLEE RV ENREER
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative 15 7 &8  NEESEL @ FZ NI BB E XS
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or FH#FRESEHTEHEFLES -
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2017 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:

TRERBRE W@

EEAHEESTH012F4 1B RER 2
CEEATUNEBESHE I ZTAIBGE
A651|% I EZ2017F12A31HIEFE - &
REEHALHEREENESNHZH LK
REvHEBEZERRE TERAARQARER
#Fﬁ?i FEIMERNT

Reading regulatory Attending external

updates seminars/programmes

BEERTE SHEMRBBER
Name of director EEpng BEHER mate EE
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) BB LEAE(EE) v v
Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/EESRAE v v
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng TR A v v
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TBR 4 58 4+ v v
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence EX AL v v
Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August £ JIE#F 45 4 (72016 ££8 A - -

2016 and resigned on 4 January 2017) 9H EEIWH2017 F1 A
4 BEHE)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHTAE v v
(appointed on 4 January 2017) (FA2017 1 B4 B £1T)

Audit Committee EREES
The Audit Committee was established in 2011 and its current members BB Z B @ W2011FK Y HIEEKE R
include: i
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman) REHELE(EE)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TP 4 5 A&
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BEE

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

\

EEeRRBRERZEENEHABER
EEER BERZBQETREAELE
AOREERERER -ERZBEIRRE
EREMAE ETMMRAIEINVEZRTE -

/
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of
the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

ERZEeTHRGARNAER 2B B
EHRLETHRRZEMEN  AFEZER
ROEREERERERZARERETS
- BRZERYREZTENARAER
ficEAcEE2RR EERELSENSE
BBz B R B

ERZESCDHEERBRTAEBETRM
ZEHRARES TERERERE K
HERRMBERSSHETHR EF
BIEEMEIL0I7TE1I2AMBIEEEZE®
FHERE °

REEFEN HARM_-_AEXLZESE
#RBEBKENHEBREINMT

Number of attendance
Name of director EENE R
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 58 4 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BENXSE 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai kei (appointed on 4 January 2017) 22 & & %4 (R 2017 1 A4 B HF) 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2011 and its current
members include:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

YMEES

FMZEEER20MFERL ERHBFKE
B

REELLE ()
FEERE
B R M 55
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The majority of members of the Remuneration Committee are
independent non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee
advises the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to
the provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the
Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine the
policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management. During the year
under review, one Remuneration Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

TEER/RTE @

ARBOHEMEESK B ABIIENTE
E-HMEECTAALEEESRARER
B BRBBRRREBRESSED
BHR - FTWEZEeHRMEESTIEMLM
HBANSHETERNGZHM - BFEH
TEERTAUEX FWEZESHITNE
BEEDR2012FIAREWN - WE FIFHR
AARWEN

EEETRNTESZMeR FHEZES
DEBEERNEZ BREEHFSKY &
EMERZERARERE SEANONE
BEANERBEHBZHME

FNEZEESERAFERESUBTEESZ
MEeBERTFHERTEERETSRER
BrzRBE REBFEN £BH—KFH
MEZzEgez SLM@AAKNENTERBR
Hymr

Number of attendance
Name of director EEHE IR
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR #E % A& 1/1
Mr. Wang Xialong FNEEAE 11
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REESLA (R2017F1 A48 LF) 171

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:

¥ 24 B Hr A

AEIE2017F12 A31HIEFE » i AR &
MEK B AR ERHENERIERTRE
BARARINEZEEMEMHEBEINOT

RMB’000

AR T

Audit services EiT R 2,000
Non-audit services FEEFRE 225

2,225




30 Best Food Holding Company Limited  Annual Report 2017

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEERTE @

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

The majority of members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee has the duty of
reviewing annually the board structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company’s website.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will report formally to the Board for decision.

During the year under review, no Nomination Committee meetings was
held.

Board Diversity

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience and
background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress
towards achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December
2017.

BB A (E/E)
REESLE
REXEE

HABOKEYRBUFNTES 124
ZESREIEFRINETSRBRENK -

REZEEGMNBEHEECN2012F3 A ®
Ry YCTHERARBAB/EAR UFE
HEERTAMRE -

REBABUZENAERTSR REE
BEefEBEBAE YHEEBLKED
Zrlt-EFEXRBEZRABHZETE
ETEE BEETRRFHK MR X
tES BEER BEEBRULRER
RAEBEARTKNARBTREHENR
E-REZBEZRBANLAREESSE
IAESRTE ©

REBFERN RERRELZEEEH

Exgz

TR ARREBEEREETSARNNSZ T
LK ZHREBRESSLZTURBAKE
TERA WAZTEERBGKHEZEE
EAR-HE2017EI12A3MBLFE - 12
LEESREFBENT B K K88
MESZ2HARFE CrIVAtE2E2
NEREEOBE  TERERBEHBED
HE o
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The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance
the Board'’s effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implementing and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and
when it considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the
Company and the market from time to time.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
executive management the implementation of the system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.

TEER/RTE @

ARRANLREBLEETNFER HEH X
TER HEESUREXELRSHE
AEARABMEBEARAETRFRR
TEFETWMEMX-

ARAREFRE ZTLALRRENTE T
FREHAEER SRRAEFS UL RE
FRKFEEEAREWERZ -ARAES
KBEBEEARARR M IS T AEFE
K HEERRBEFTE2HERNFZMNA
BRBUARTREREEENS T -

| B 2R % P R BE 4

EFEerEARAKREZRAREE KA
EERGERBROTEARE - EEERNE
TERREEZRBREERABEZERS
URERRANERAEEANEE - EFE
EEERRTEEEAREZEHBAEITA
REELRAMERERR RGN AEHEREY
BB g RRERRREREEI G

FEFENRBREEBRABELEERZAFTEER
TEERBREBROFAE §EEHE
AEBEZBNLEREREBBEEMEYH 2
BEAEAR REEERNREEEDHA K
RE MREEZEZ G CHEAREHRA
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The Group established the internal audit function to assist the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal monitor maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, provides
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance
with appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, Including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for
all reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism
to handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.

AEBRINPEZBREBHEETEGRE
AZEERERMSASERREE RAE
EERGHORY - EECIERREERA
XBOZLEBEER SENHBEER
BB G YEEERZEN
E/SEEBELBBENEERRMNKR - Z
BHEARERFERTAREERARESE
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R/ SREHEEEM -

EERCERERZTECRAEEER
017 12A31BIEFEZRBERE KA
HERERSG BRI HETFERS - B8
ERKERRFTARSTEEGAEANZRAR
ERRARELRRZRSF AR -EEEMH
F ERBEAERFENBELT A%
B REE2017F12A B IEFERKRE
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RE AR EFEETMNEATBIERNKIE
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LR TERBEFTEIZERNETE W
WREBERBEIRTD  BEAGBREREE
R BEMEIERERGEHME THIR
B WHEEE - N ESE AR RIS E R e
FEEZHNTEE -

AEECHEARBEREK Y EHRE
EXELEEZEETHEAMARTERN
BE - RERSBEEREICHNEIT
A ES B BRAL T A M I A BE 3R I R R B R
Mg 28 ABEENERZTENHA
BB AR R - B K N HB BS PR ERBA K B R A B 3R

ERFZRBE-



EEBEBRARAT —T—t+EFH 33

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. The company secretary confirmed that he undertook no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and relevant updates
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company’s
articles of association.

Shareholders of the Company can: () convene an extraordinary general
meeting; (i) forward enquiries to the board of directors; (i) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

TEER/RTE @
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Investor Relations and Communication

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the
Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman and Directors
and external auditors are available to answer questions on the
Company’s businesses at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meeting on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Executive Director

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 55, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Group, is the chairman and the chief executive officer of Hony
Capital Limited (“Hony Capital”), a private equity firm in the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Zhao also serves as Executive Vice President of
Hony Capital’s sponsor firm, Legend Holdings Corporation (HKSE:
3396), the parent company of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 0992). Mr.
Zhao also serves on the boards of Lenovo Group Limited, China Glass
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300), Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. (SZSE: 000157, HKSE: 1157), Shanghai Chengtou
Holding Co., Ltd. (SSE: 600649) and Shanghai Jin Jiang International
Hotels Development Co., Ltd. (SSE: 600754 (A Shares) and 900934 (B
Shares)). Mr. Zhao was also a non-executive director of Chinasoft
International Ltd (HKSE: 0354) between July 2011 and April 2015, an
executive director of CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Limited (HKSE: 1093)
between December 2008 and May 2015, a non-executive director of
New China Life Insurance Company Ltd (HKSE: 1336) between
November 2012 to March 2015, a non-executive director of Wumart
Stores, Inc. (HKSE: 1025 before withdrawal of its listing in January 2016)
between November 2009 to June 2014, a director of Fiat Industrial S.p.A.,
a company listed on MTA ltalian Stock Exchange between January 2011
to September 2013, a non-executive Director of New China Life
Insurance Company Ltd. (HKSE: 1336) between November 2012 to
March 2015, a director of Jiangsu Phoenix Publishing & Media
Corporation Limited (SSE: 601928) between June 2009 to June 2012
and a non-executive director of Hospital Corporation China Limited (HKSE:
3869) since March 2016. Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from the
Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University and dual
Master’s degrees in Electronic Engineering and Physics from Northern
lllinois University.

HITES
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Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 42, an Executive Director of the Group, is
currently the managing director of Hony Capital. Mr. XL Wang joined
Hony Capital in 2004 and has been consistently focusing on investment
in the consumer and retail sector since then, with a particular emphasis
on subsectors such as retail, food and beverage, chain restaurant,
apparel, etc.. Mr. XL Wang holds directorships in Anhui Commercial
Capital Co., Ltd. (NEEQ: 835433), Sichuan Lessin Department Store Co.,
Ltd. (NEEQ: 833860) and Guangdong Coagent Electronics S&T Co., Ltd.
(NEEQ: 833323). Mr. XL Wang holds a Tsinghua-MIT Joint MBA degree
from Tsinghua University and a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. WANG Yuanzheng, aged 36, an Executive Director of the Group,
joined Hony Capital in 2011 and is currently vice president of Hony
Capital. Mr. YZ Wang has been focusing on investment in the consumer
and retail sector since then. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. YZ Wang
worked as an associate director in the investment banking department at
UBS Securities. Mr. YZ Wang holds a Master’s degree in Financial
Mathematics from Kaiserlautern University and a bachelor’s degree in
Pure and Applied Mathematics from Tsinghua University.
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, aged 55, an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Group, has over 25 years of work experience in the food and
beverage industry and retail industry in Hong Kong and China. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s Restaurants (HK)
Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from 1988 to 2012,
and used to play managerial roles in various departments. In 2012, Mr.
Leung joined Walmart China Company Limited as the senior vice
president of business development department responsible for its
business development. Since 2014, Mr. Leung has been working in
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited as the country manager.
Mr. Leung holds a Master of Management degree from Macquarie
University and a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of
Sydney. He is a qualified certified practising accountant in ASPCA of
Australia.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 40, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial
College of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London.
He is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng serves as an independent non- executive director in China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005), SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code: 1399)
and Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). He also
serves as the company secretary and authorized representative of China
Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 55, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in 1993 and he is currently the sole proprietor of Tsang & Co., H.M.
Mr. Tsang obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from the University
College London, the University of London. He also holds a bachelor’s
degree in law from the University of Westminster, United Kingdom. Mr.
Tsang serves as a non-executive director in Goldway Education Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8160).
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Senior Management

Mr. JING Shen, aged 38, Chief Financial Officer of the Group, joined the
Company in November 2016. From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing
held the position of chief executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial
and Trading Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital In 2008 and
was eventually promoted to vice president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School in February 2008 and a bachelor’s degree from Beijing
Foreign Studies University in July 2002.

Mr. XIAN Shunxiang, aged 52, Chief Operating Officer of the Group,
was the vice president of Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company
Limited (HKSE: 2298) and responsible for their retail operations. From
May 2008 to October 2011, Mr. Xian held the position of chief operating
officer at Real Kung Fu Catering Management Co., Ltd.. In 1990, Mr.
Xian joined McDonald’s (Shenzhen) Limited as one of the trainee
managers and was eventually promoted to operations director. Mr. Xian
graduated from China Europe International Business School, Shanghai,
upon finishing the China Europe Leadership Development of Senior Level
Programme in January 2010. He obtained a college degree in Chinese
from Shenzhen Institute of Education, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in
July 1988.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 43, Company Secretary of the Group, has over 18
year experience in financial reporting, management accounting, auditing,
tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate finance and
Company Secretarial practice of listed companies. Prior to joining Hony
Capital in September 2008, Mr. So worked as the Qualified Accountant
and Company Secretary at Golden Resorts Group Limited (now known
as Kingston Securities Limited, HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing
overall financial control and reporting functions, treasury, corporate
finance, and regulatory compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr.
So worked in Deloitte where he engaged in audit assignments for various
public/private companies and leading several Initial Public Offer (IPO)
projects. Mr. So is a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow Member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Zhao Shen, aged 68, Chairman of HHG. In 1968, Zhao Shen had
been to the Great Northern Wilderness, stationed troops and reclaimed
and safeguarded the border regions for more than ten years; in 1982
entered the Beijing Second Steel Rolling Mil. In February 1988, Zhao
Shen took up the post of elevator factory director in Shougang Group.
On July 1st. 1996, Zhao Shen took up the post of general manager of
Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food Co., Ltd.. In 2004, Zhao Shen founded
Beijing HeHeGu Catering Service Management Co., Ltd., determined to
inherit traditional Chinese food culture, and explore the model of double-
kitchen, to achieve the standardization of “Chinese People Fast Food”.
He has successively won the titles of “Shougang Labor Model”, “Top Ten
Factory Director of Beijing”, “Labor Medal of National May 1”, “Beijing
Excellent Socialism Constructor of Chinese Characteristics”, “Beijing
Outstanding Communist”, “Chinese Catering Industry Outstanding
Entrepreneur”, “Chinese restaurant industry annual top ten figures” and
other honors. Nowadays, Zhao Shen is the vice president of China
Cuisine Association, the Chairman of the Professional Committee of
Chinese Cuisine Fast Food, and the Chairman of HeHeGu Catering
Service Management Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 36, Chief Manager of HHG. Zhao Jingjing
joined HeHeGu company in 2007, and started at the bottom. He has
been working in Marketing, Operation , R&D Department successively,
and accumulated Plentiful experience of marketing, operation
management, product design and development, informationization
construction, establishing new model etc.. In October 2015, Zhao
Jingjing was appointed Chief Manager. He has been rated as “Excellent
Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging Enterpriser of Chinese Food
Industry”. He is also committee, CPPCC member.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company act as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 59.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.5
cents per share.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Management Contract
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year.
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Distributable Reserves

The company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2017 is set out in the note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 200 of the annual report.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

Mr. Xian Shunxiang (appointed on 9 August 2016 and
resigned on 4 January 2017)

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (appointed on 4 January 2017)

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executives

At 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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THABRAARSEER LB (TERE
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Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
e 8T HAARE BT
EEnA g7 ZBERHAE REBDE
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
LB REREEE 2w (M)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei Beneficial Owner 462,000 0.04%
RERLLLE EREEA
Note: Bt 5
1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight 9. £ = A R A & & Fortune Eight Alps Limited

Alps Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII
(Cayman), L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital
Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by
its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited, which
is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited, which is owned as
to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by
Exponential Fortune Group Limited, which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao
John Huan.

2 k&= & W B A & M Fortune Eight Alps
Limited % Hony Capital Fund VIIl (Cayman) *L.P
(— =X /B Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) *

LP(RE—ZTBARBAN)EBZEBREE
REZEE) Z%QWE 7] © Hony Capital
Fund VIl GP (Cayman) * L.P.f3 H I — ¥ &
4 % A Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman)
Limited & 2 ° Hony Capital Fund VIII GP
(Cayman) Limited F Hony Group Management
Limited 2 & ¥ A& ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited # /5 Hony Group Management Limited
80% # #m ° Hony Managing Partners Limited
i Exponential Fortune Group Limited & & #
A - i < 5 & B B Exponential Fortune
Group Limited 49% 1 25 °
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

The directors of the Company were entitled to participate in a share
option scheme adopted by Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (the “LM
Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2017. No share option was granted under the LM Share
Option Scheme since its inception.

In addition, on 18 May 2011, the Company has also adopted a share
option scheme (the “Handbag Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company'’s directors and employees are entitled to participate, details of
which are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. No
share option was granted under the Handbag Share Option Scheme
since its inception.

Save as above, during the year neither the Company, its holding
company nor any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

At 31 December 2017, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

L3

Number of

issued ordinary

AR EK010B T Z Bk

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

FFE®RT GAARBERT
REREH v} ZBERHE i =
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,5620,440 116.50%

Exponential Fortune Group Limited

MEEEEZ s ()

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company

FFE#T HAQTERIT

RREH =7} ZBERHAE BAE D

Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)~ 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Managing Partners Limited REEEEZ #Ew (MEE1)

Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)~ 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Group Management Limited R EE = (M)

Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited 7 5 28 3 [® 7 #E %5 (Mf 35 1)

Hony Capital Fund VIII GP (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)~ 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman), L.P.  pAs2#m k@ 2 fE 2k (M E1)

Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. REEEEZ #Ewm (1)

Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)~ 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Fortune Eight Alps Limited R EE = (M)

Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1)~ 1,701,520,440 116.50%

E=AERAR

REZAEZ s (1)



BREERERAF

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight
Alps Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII
(Cayman) L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital
Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by
its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited, which
is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited, which is owned as
to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned by
Exponential Fortune Group Limited, which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao
John Huan.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31,
between the connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) and
the Company has been entered into for which relevant disclosure had
been made by the Company by way of announcement in compliance
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

2017, following transaction

On September 18, 2016, the Company and Sonic Tycoon Limited (the
“Investor”), a direct substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into
an investment agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue and the Investor agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount up to HK$1,500,000,000 for a total
consideration equal to the principal amount of such convertible bonds.
The proceeds from issuing the convertible bonds are intended to be
used for the Company’s future acquisitions in the mass market focused
consumables sector including, without limitation, the food and beverage
industry, to diversify the Group’s business and broaden its income
stream. In 2017,HK$750 million of the Convertible Bond had been
issued, of which (i) HK$270 million had been converted into Shares at
the conversion price of HK$1.18 per Share on September 22, 2017; and
(i) HK$480 million had been converted into Shares at the conversion
price of HK$1.18 per Share on November 13, 2017.
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In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these

transactions entered into by the Group were:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so
far as the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(i) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iv)  within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need
to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transactions”,
no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
respectively from pages 5 to 7 and pages 9 to 22 of this Annual Report.

BRUIFNTE
L VEE

$u«u;\% ZrKE.nT\ %E

() EAEBEABEE - REBFET:

() () E % B SRR ok o) 8 T H
B RS AR A AR B )R 2
FAE

(i) R (a) ¥ 5 R K H(0)E & uth F W
B TERBRTHEBILE=TTFE
ZAEFR ]

v FIphkeBETBEERBEIMIEEZ
EHmx=RE-

&%J:‘Xﬁﬁﬁﬁ'éﬁ\\']rﬂﬁcﬂﬁﬂﬂ AR
EWRAZ R ERE R RE

EENERSHNPz2ER

BRIMERZ | —BRABEIN AR
R AR S EAE MR R B A T&Bﬁ‘%”
AR FRIFANEA R ES R A
ARREZFEEXAHBEERAEENERXN
BH -

\Iﬂi

EHXOERKRE

MEARRBEREE MR ARKEE
RERARMBARARZ BEEZREZNER
MO DR IR AFRFESEFTH
MEIFEREERFIZ2ANEREN®
&R



agzpaRAm —=—+558 47

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers comprised approximately 28% of the Group’s total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer were
approximately 15% of the Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 11% of total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of The
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as
required by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
pwc

To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 59 to 199, which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life

° Impairment assessment of investments in associates
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

B EE RS @

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNBESNAEEERETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

PR AR A B AR E R

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLRRAMBHRERME21 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(*HHG Group”) in 2016. As at 31 December 2017, goodwill
amounted to RMB45,495,000 and trademarks with indefinite
useful life amounted to RMB99,669,000.
EEENEERTEEARPNOPEEEERNER £
ZRAR2016FHREILRMEREREEBR AR ([F
EAEE] - R2017F12A31H - B2 545,495,0007T
AR - I 0 FI R B3 #9791 499,669,000 7T A R # o

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment.
BHERYTEEARMOBRAGFREFERETRE
HEATRAERT A -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the future cash flows of
the cash generating units (“CGUs”") of the relevant group of
restaurants and to determine the assumptions, including the
revenue growth rates, gross margin and long term growth
rate used in the cash flow projections and the discount rate
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

FEETREN GRS TEELERAGUGRARHERE
SENReEFEMNRKRRERE  VETRR B
FReREAMFEANRALRE - EFE KK HIE
RE -URBERERERNBZHREMEBOITER

% o

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:

REHZERETEE HARTUATIRRF

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite life, including the assessment as to
whether any indication of impairment exists during
the year ended 31 December 2017;

o FMEEIEEH A KIS AR EIRAR
B HBEE  BEFHEZE2017F12A31H 1L
FERGFERETR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer engaged by
the Group to determine the recoverable amount,
based on value-in-use method, of the CGU;

. TEESEEANBLGEEMNER IR
FEIE UREACEELAETREELEUDY
A E S

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

o  HEMAMETENEE ML
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMNEFNMEERREFSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that there is no
impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
life as at 31 December 2017. This conclusion is based on
recoverable amount, which is determined based on value in
use, exceeding the carrying amount of the CGUs including
goodwill, trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets as at 31 December 2017.

BiE BEEEETHRETIGHER BEHERIER
FAMREAEIZR201I7TFI2ATATERE  ZEw D
BEATBOEEET  TRESEITE2017F12 A31
HeEABESE THEHBEE®E WECSHARIN
AEREEEEANNReEFEMNEmME-

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management and the
independent valuer in the determination of value in
use of the CGUs, mainly in relation to :

o AEEEEREBIAEMEIETReELEMN
FHBEEREHANFEZERNEGENE =25
X

- the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical
financial data;

- TARFEHEWAMER - E B EE LR
BEITHER

- the long term growth rate, by comparing it
with the relevant economic forecasts; and

- REEREX BHEAEBBACERAETL
B8R

- the discount rate, by comparing the rate
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies; and

- FREBESEKAMLLEMET LA
BILLEHEITHR &

o Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations
in the recoverable amount of the CGUs and the
relevant carrying amount, including goodwill,
trademarks with indefinite useful life and operating
assets as at 31 December 2017.

o BlH T ER2017F12A3A RS E A ELLH
Aok ERBERE TERECARPOER

EEEEANNERERRENS T ERL -

We found the key assumptions adopted in relation to the
impairment assessment to be consistent with the available
evidence.

HPZERABEFEAEANEIEZREEEITK -
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Key Audit Matter
ERETSEE

B EE RS @

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNBESNAEEERETSE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEARKREREBETG

Refer to notes 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLRRAMBHRERME20-

The Group has significant investments in associates, which
are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31
December 2017, investments in associates amounted to
RMB287,142,000.

EEBEYHBERNFANRESTEERN WHAEREZ
H o R20175F 12 A31 A - Bt & 2 Al 1% & /287,142,000
TARE -

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

e RNRIREBEREFERMETREETRERTR -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross
margin and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash
flow projections of the associates, and the discount rates
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

FEETREN R  TEELERAAB UGS E%5E
BEEEARRRRERE  WEEMRE  Hl0HRE
HHMELARARERNEFAAEANBRAZERE  ERER
RHEBERE URREARAKRE2RFTREAREMES
TR X -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:

REHZERETFE ZARTUTIRRF

° Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether
any indication of impairment exist during the year
ended 31 December 2017, including:

T EEBENHEZE2017F12A3BIEFE
EERFAEEMMBEDIROTGE  B3F:

- significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the
associates operates;

- GERFREMEN IS AL BRIFE
EBEATFIEI

- significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the associates below their costs;

- GERARNTFTEEAIRABREZENA
B

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

o FHAFAMBETENEEE:
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Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMNEFNMEERREFSHE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that there is no
impairment of the Group’s investments in associates as at 31
December 2017. This conclusion is based on recoverable
amounts, which are calculated based on value in use,
exceeding the respective book amounts as at 31 December
2017.

BE BEEEETORENGESR ﬁm EEERBER
RAIEZRER2017F12 A3 AL ERE - % 4w HRE AT
Bl FEEE - AJEIeEIREAEERS ﬁ WHH & B R
2017912 A31 HMEREE -

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
determination of value in use of investment in
associates, mainly in relation to:

. AEEREEEECHE AR REEAEERE
AOEFERFEHEEE  FEW K-

- the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical
financial data;

- TAGHEHEWARER - E EE L 58
BT

- the long term growth rate, by comparing it
with the relevant economic forecasts; and

- REERE GHBEMEECHETAAETL
E 4

- the discount rates, by comparing the rates
used by the Group to those of comparable
companies; and

- FIRE  BESEHRAMLL AL QA
BILL =T &

° Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations
in the recoverable amount of the investments in

associates.
. AR ERE AR ENIT RS ENHHTE
M o

We found the key assumptions adopted in relation to the
impairment assessment to be consistent with the available
evidence.

BPIERRBEFEAERANTIERRBETK -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Corporate Information and Management Discussion and Analysis (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Chairman’s Statements, Corporate Governance Report,
Profile of Directors and Senior Management and Directors’ Report, which
is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statements, Corporate Governance
Report, Profile of Directors and Senior Management and Directors’
Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.

B EE RS @
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ping Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEREBaRR

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2017 2016

NOI= RMB’000 RMB’000

B 2 FARY TFARK

(RESEIE))

(Eit)

(Note 3)

(P 5E3)

Revenue A 6&7 751,801 477,587

Cost of sales 6 B AR 9 (404,485) (329,638)

Gross profit ES 347,316 147,949

Distribution and selling expenses HE Ry KA 9 (219,004) (51,379)

General and administrative expenses — B RITEHAX 9 (97,666) (114,076)

Other income Hiplg A 6,116 6,778

Other gains, net HAp = F 58 8 9,722 33,044

Operating profit KERR 46,484 22,316

Finance income B 75 U A 10 203 —

Finance expenses % ER 10 (9,533) (6,512)

Finance expenses — net MR ERFE 10 (9,330) (6,512)

Share of loss of associates FEIREE & R REE 20 (2,450) (196)

Profit before taxation K 5 B o A 34,704 16,608

Income tax expense Frig %2 i 11 (14,018) (6,739)

Profit for the year FEREF 20,686 9,869
Profit for the year attributable to: FREFEBR

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE SN 15,216 8,686

Non-controlling interest 1 AR T = 5,470 1,183
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Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

2017 2016
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FAR% FARK
(RESEIEE))
(Eat)
(Note 3)
(MF7E3)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 mE W=
ltem that will not be reclassified to profitor T&@ &N EEEH 2 EE :
loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit EMEECATENGREE
assets 35 296 343

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently E& Al @ BN AT B R

to profit or loss: ZIER -
Exchange differences arising on BB INE TS M E E
translation of foreign operations PE W =% 5,398 10,760
Other comprehensive income for the year 45 A B fth 2 & Yt 25 5,694 11,103
Total comprehensive income for the year £ X 2 T Yg 5 48 58 26,380 20,972

Total comprehensive income for the year FREHE K EESFER
attributable to:

— Owners of the Company . N/NETE: PN 20,910 19,789
— Non-controlling interests — IR RE RS 5,470 1,183
Earnings per share (RMB cents) — basic &R & (9 AR ) — E K 13 1.61 1.05

Earnings per share (RMB cents) — diluted &M & (D ARE)— % 13 1.61 1.05
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HERERRSR

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
M12H31H W1B1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TARK TAR®
(RESEWCE)) (RESEUCE))
(Fat) (FEit)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &E 16 168,643 98,193 50,728
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEREA 17 44,007 46,590 27,762
Investment properties "EWE 18 32,896 32,045 24,449
Investments in associates B NRRE 20 287,142 84,305 —
Goodwiill EES 21 45,495 45,495 —
Intangible assets WML EE 21 101,535 89,199 —
Derivative financial instrument TEESR T A 23 - 634 —
Deferred tax assets FELERIBEE 27 10,805 15,066 2,395
Defined benefit assets AENEEE 35 4,710 4,521 3,852
Trade and other receivables W E 5 & E 58 22 19,565 38,664 2,254
714,798 454,712 111,440
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 19 83,539 61,977 60,277
Prepaid lease payments ENHEERE 17 520 1,170 708
Trade and other receivables EYE 5 Kk H A 5RIE 22 100,038 80,048 81,346
Tax recoverable EIRLqEE = 795 1,079 743
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFEAHR
through profit or loss BE) T ABENSH
BE 25 27,000 15,000 —
Derivative financial instrument TESRMIA 23 1,029 — -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZEEY 24 398,033 108,264 253,032
610,954 267,538 396,106
Total Assets EEHBE 1,325,752 722,250 507,546
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
mEEEEBERW

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
MA12A31H M1B1H

2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH% TAR®  TARE

(RESEEE)] (Restated)

(E) (Eit)
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables BB 5 RHEAMRIE 26 147,478 156,025 58,611
Derivative financial liability TEsmI A - — 1,053
Loan from a third party E=FEX 28 221,000 - -
Tax payable J& < 5t 38 4,653 8,349 1,683
373,131 164,374 61,347

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BT AR 27 24,584 24,380 1,370
Loan from a third party BE=ZHEX 28 — 228,800 213,200
Deferred government grants i 3E BUAS 18 B 2,175 1,572 —
26,759 254,752 214,570

Total liabilities EEHEE 399,890 419,126 275,917
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
mEEEEBR®W

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
MA12H31H ®1A1H

2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®  TARE

(RESEEE) (RESEIEE))

(Eam) (Fa)
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital [N 30 122,949 69,055 69,055
Reserves & 766,158 185,464 162,574
Equity attributable to owners BERARRERA
of the Company ok 889,107 254,519 231,629
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R = 36,755 48,605 —
Total equity EREE 925,862 303,124 231,629
Total liabilities and equity EERERAE 1,325,752 722,250 507,546

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 199 were FHNFLS9F1ENE AN EREKES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March & R 20183 A7 H BB R IZHE % « If i

2018 and are signed on its behalf by: UTALTREESE:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HSE FEE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEHQEDR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distributable revaluation Translation ~ Special  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-Total interests Total
K
~ RIDEE f#E i #E FhEE REAF Nat A&t
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M FARE TAR®E TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR%E TAR%E
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818 69,055 - 823 8,724 (30,289)  (23,950) 208,636 232,999 — 232,999
Prior year adjustments ~ BAEFEHE 3 - - - - 65 - (1,435 (1,370) - (1,370)
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 810
(as restated) (Zit) 69,055 - 823 8,724 (30,224)  (23,950) 207,201 231,629 — 231,629
Profit for the year E R - - - - - - 8,686 8,686 1,183 9,869
Other comprehensive R E 1 2 E W :
income for the year:
Remeasurement of BHNEHELATH
defined benefit assets ~ HEE 35 - - - - - - 343 343 - 343
Currency translation EREE-BE
differences NS
— associates - - - - (1,249) - - (1,249) - (1,249)
Currency translation EHZBE-—Hfi
differences — others - - - - 12,009 - - 12,009 - 12,009
Total comprehensive 4 &y 2 [ W #
income for the year ~ #%8 (£ i)
(as restated) - - - - 10,760 - 9,029 19,789 1,183 20,972
Deemed contribution AR E A
from shareholder 23(a) - - — — - 3,101 - 3,101 - 3,101
Non-controling g 10N
interests arising from R ER
acquisition of
subsidiaries 34 — — — — — — — — 47,422 47,422
Transfer to non- BATRA SR
distrioutable reserve B - - 106 - - - (106) - - -
At 31 December 2016 42016512831 H
(as restated) (i) 69,055 - 929 8,724 (19,464)  (20,849) 216,124 254,519 48,605 303,124




BREERERAT —E—+55% OD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEREHR@

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERERAERA

At 1 January 2017

Share
capital

e

NOTES| RMB'000
1 BN

R2017F1A1H

Share
premium

RGO EE
RMB’000
TAR®

Non-
distributable
reserve
AAR K
i
RMB’000
TAR®

Asset
revaluation
reserve
BEEf
e
RMB’000
TARH

Translation  Special

reserve  reserve
EifRRE BHREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TARY

REENED]
earnings

REEF
RMB’000
FARH

Sub-Total

/J\%i-
RMB’000
TAR®

Non-
controlling
interests
FER
B
RMB’000
TAR®

Total

A%
RMB’000
FARH

(as restated) (Eit) 69,055 - 929 8724  (19464) (20849) 216,124 254519 48605 303,124
Profit for the year FREF = = - - - - 15,216 15,216 5,470 20,686
Other comprehensive % iy £ ftr 2 [ I 35 :

income for the year:

Remeasurement of BNEEZARAE

defined benefit assets ~ FlzE & 35 - - - - - - 296 296 - 296
Currency translation EXZE-HE

differences NS

— associates - - - - (4,269) - - (4,269) - (4,269)
Currency translation EHZE-Hf

differences — others - - - - 9,667 - - 9,667 - 9,667
Total comprehensive ~ FRZH W HAE

income for the year - - - - 5,398 - 15,512 20,910 5,470 26,380
Issuance of convertible %77 ] % & 5

bonds 23(0) - - - - - 88,930 - 88,930 - 88,930
Shares converted from i ik fE 5

convertible bonds A& 13 23(b) 53,894 582,056 - - - (88,930) — 547,020 — 547,020
Change inownership & EH 1 41

interests in subsidiary ~ ZE M B2 A

without change of BEAERE

control 33 = = = = - (22219 — (22279 (18651) (40,923)
Non-controlling interest U && i & 22 &

arising from EERES

acquisition of a

subsidiary 37(a)(ii) - - - - - - - - 1,331 1,331
At 31 December 2017 A2017%12831H 122,949 582,056 929 8,724 (14,066) (43,121) 231,636 889,107 36,755 925,862
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FERERER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2017 2016
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B = FTARY FARK
(RESE1ETe))
(FEit)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEBEERE 29
Cash generated from operations KEEBIMBRE 41,715 48,337
Interest paid BB = (5,779)
Interest received SRR 203 126
Income taxes paid AT PS5 (13,367) (4,200)
Net cash generated from operating BEEEBFRA
activities 28,551 38,484
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHFERERE
Investment in associates B NRIEE 20 (209,556) (85,750)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and W HE K B A7 (KSR S
cash equivalent acquired FIREEED) 34(d) (24,290) (68,585)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE W W= MK E (84,585) (43,145)
Purchase of prepaid lease payment BEBEMNEERE - (18,620)
Settlement of derivative financial liability EETETHRAEE = (1,127)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BENAAEEFEEAE
through profit or loss B A AEHBENERMEE (27,000) -
Proceeds from redemption of financial asset B&E LA A # BETE B H &
at fair value through profit or loss FEIAZHEENCREE
Fr i3 58 15,000 —
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (12,718) (179)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash and HENBEAR(FIBREHER:
cash equivalent disposed KIREEEM) 38 — 25,168
Government grants received 2 4 IK 7 #5 B 760 1,766
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE Y% - BE MR EME
and equipment IE 1,071 72
Loan to associates Bl ER/NECTH= 5,254 324
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFRE (336,064) (190,072)




BEEBREBAT —E-+5El O/
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)
FmEEERER®@

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2017 2016
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 TARW FARY
(RESEIE))
(Eit)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests ina Y B B /B A 7 JE I IR M 25

subsidiary 33(a) (40,923) —
Repayment of borrowings BEER — (6,250)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible BT MRESH TS A

bonds 23(b) 648,452 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMEFTBHREFIRACGRE)

financing activities 607,529 (6,250)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRBESEEWEM
cash equivalents (R 2D) EEE 299,982 (157,838)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REFI 2R S RIS ESEY

year 108,264 253,032
Exchange gains on cash and cash Re LB EBYNER
equivalents U = (10,213) 13,070

Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERZEESRBRESEEY
year 398,033 108,264




68 Best Food Holding Company Limited  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMEBERME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412A31HILFE

1 General Information 1

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants and manufacture and sale of
handbags under various locations.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22
of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-111, Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK
dollars” or “HK$"), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.

—RER

BRERERARIR(ARA]) REM
BRA(IAEE) TEREEHER
RERBMWFREEREE -

RAARRBEREHE R RE(EIBE])
FRERHAESHESFMKRILA LT
ERRAT BEBRMDRBEEBRER
SHERAB (B e &
RAIBEZTERAA —RNEEB
R RAESAMKR I AR ME
& R % B% A 7] A Exponential Fortune
Group Limited ([ Exponential Fortune]) -
—XRHESHEESEMAIH AR -
Exponential Fortune &) fx #8 1% i A% &
EHSE  BNMARRAIER AR
7] 2 & 9% = &R #b 41k A Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
111, Cayman Islands °

BRERAN R2ANDEEER
B (BT kHKS]) - 4R & B 7%
BRUAARBE(TARED 27 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties and derivative financial instrument,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

2 EXREHHEREBE

RESAMBEREAEANEIEGS
BR#INMT-RIFSZBHA L
BER—BEERRNARENFND -

21 RBER

AEENGEAMBRRERE
EEEABASEMONMA
EANEEMHEREEMNTE
AHMBHREEADGER - A
B 7% MR THIR T L B AR 1B )
B OERENEEGRRTLES
MTASHREAABEIIE-

RAENABTEMBRE LN
MBREAFTEERE THRES
A -EEEREREARE
AAEBE S RRNBERTT
EEHE D FRBEFREEH
ot e M & - SRR HE
HAEREEAVBHRERME
BERWEE - HRMFEST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(@)  Amendments to HKFRSs effective for the financial
period beginning on 1 January 2017 do not have a
material impact on the Group.

(b)

Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group

(i)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and
a new impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and does not expect any significant
impact from the adoption of the new standard
from the financial year beginning on 1 January
2018.

° Financial assets currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss will likely
continue to be measured on the same
basis under HKFRS 9.

2 EARETHEHBE @

22 S BERBEEL

(@) 20171 B1BRBEHE
AR A B BB B 75 3R
HEEABTHAER W&
EAFE-

(b)

EEM{EREER N
AERBABERNNZ
&

(i)

BB HEER
FoRIEMT A
BEMBEREER
FoOREMITAIR
BeRMEEMS &
BEMNDE FTEM
RIEHER  XSIAT
EHEHSFOH
BEARETBREE
H R EREL -

HE
REBEREHES
MEERBE WA
B3R 20184F 1 A1 H
1A B B I B AR IR AR
A RIS & 1S K A A
EWN-Z K

. BATRAAE
BEAtEEBHEZ
FHABERW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9
(Continued)

‘Financial instruments’

Impact (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss and the Group does
not have any such liabilities.

The derecognition rules have been transferred
from HKAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments’:
Recognition and Measurement’ and have not
been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules have no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
have any hedging relationships.

2 ERETHEHBE @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9
(Continued)

‘Financial instruments’

Impact (Continued)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (“ECL”) rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial assets classified
at amortised cost, debt instruments measured
at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
lease receivables, loan commitments and
certain financial guarantee contracts. While the
Group is in the process of undertaking a
detailed assessment of how its impairment
provisions would be affected by the new model,
it may result in an earlier recognition of credit
losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

(i)

(i)

HKFRS 9
(Continued)

‘Financial instruments’

Date of adoption by the Group

Must be applied for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply
the new standard retrospectively from the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018, with
the practical expedients permitted under the
standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS
18 which covers revenue arising from the sale
of goods and the rendering of services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts.
The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

2 ERETHEHBE @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
with customers’(Continued)

Impact

Management is assessing the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements. The application of HKFRS
15 may result in the identification of separate
performance obligations in relation to the
contracts which could affect the timing of the
recognition of revenue going forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to
adopt the new standard using the modified
retrospective approach from the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018, which means that
the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R 2R MY EE )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 ERETHEHBE @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

22 EBERKEZ L
(%)

(b) © %8 1B & & H i

AERANERNE

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

-3¢ )
(i) HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (i) & &R B HKEE
BIE165%[HE]
Nature of change HEHE

HKFRS 16 was issued in May 2016. It will result
in almost all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has certain non-
cancellable operating lease commitments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet
applied by the Group (Continued)

(il HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The Group has not yet assessed what
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the
lease term and the different treatment of variable
lease payments and of extension and
termination options. It is therefore not yet
possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities that will have to be
recognised on adoption of the new standard
and how this may affect the Group’s profit or
loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group
does not intend to adopt the standard before its
effective date. The Group intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior
to first adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that
would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 EXREHHEBEmw

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

23K B 1 |
23186t

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
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power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated HmEBEERN BB iﬂﬁ
from the date on which control is transferred to the ERZEED ,E%j) KN
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that FRBZSOW B ﬁ =
control ceases. BEBESIE-HBA
RiEhlEEBEARE l =
HRZEEIE REREE
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(a) Business combinations (a) ¥BEOf
The Group applies the acquisition method to KEB KB WREE
account for business combinations. The ABRZEBE M - W

consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
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owners of the acquiree and the equity interests mBEELANEEF
issued by the Group. The consideration BIIRENARE
transferred includes the fair value of any asset B -BERELER
or liability resulting from a contingent SAREBLZHME
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets FREMEESNE
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities BERAREE RE

assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of profit or loss.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying
amount of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 ERETHEHBE @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.3 B A 7 @)
2.3.2 Separate financial statements 232 % I B | &
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost NGO = AR 474

less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.4 Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ’'share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive director of the company that makes
strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the Group’s presentation currency. The
Company'’s functional currency is HKD.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

()

Transactions and balances (Continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the statement of profit or loss within
‘finance income or expenses’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of profit or loss within ‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and
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2 EXREHHEBEmw

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.6 INEEBRE )

(c) Group companies (Continued) (c) EERAF @
() all resulting currency translation differences are © FBEEHINEIR

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

recognised in other comprehensive income. EEBRYREMAZ

Y 2= TR
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the WEE B N A B E £/
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and EELANARBEAZIES
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are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories, retail outlets

and offices. Leasehold land classified as finance lease and
all other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 5%

— Leasehold improvements 5%-25%
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-20%
— Motor vehicles 15%-25%
— Plant and machinery 15%—-20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other gains — net’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or administrative purposes, are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes all construction expenditure, professional fees,
borrowing costs capitalised and other relevant expenses
directly attributable to such projects. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time when construction work is complete and the costs of
construction are transferred to the appropriate category of
fixed assets when available for use.

2 EARETHEHBE @

27 ME - -BERZE@®

Hib&E®NIENE KA
F REGHAAERFHBE
KRADEEENGEE;E

ERAMGFAGEAFESRAT
—BF 5%
—HENR 5%-25%
— R M RBEREZE 15%-20%
—AE 15%-25%
— B E RS 15%-20%

REBEWR AEER YA
BB 5 P BT TR
% R TR B -

WEENR@EBRBE A
WEHE EENKREES
BB I3 5T 2= H AT U Bl BEE (B e
2.10) o

RERBRSRAREER
mEZENERE YRBEERX
[HL Ui 23 )% 58 | P fERR o

BERAEEREEEMNNERY
¥ BEREZEHEZEKARZRT
WEBE(NE)INERE AR
EAERERY ZXBR &
FEEERAREERBZS
EEMEMMARBAS T£#T
BHATIN £EIRETG
BTE BEIRERANERH
R A EAMETEEESR -



BREERERAT —E-—+55% O/
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R 2R MY EE )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 ERETHEHBE @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.8 Investment property 2.8 WEWE

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for capital appreciation, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the definition of
an investment property is met. In such cases, the operating
leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external valuers.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
statement of profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss
in ‘other gains — net’.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (‘CGUs”), or Groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued) 29 B EE @)

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademarks acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite useful
life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on non-financial
assets (Note 2.10)).

(c) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of five
years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets

2.11.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are investments in wealth management
products that are designated as fair value
through profit or loss. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2NEMEE @

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.1Classification (Continued) 2115 Em)

(b) Loans and receivables (b) B HEWKFHE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative B E W R IE R
financial assets with fixed or determinable A7 FE R SE BB ™ 15 ]
payments that are not quoted in an active B A & & E kAl
market. They are included in current assets, WMELB2IETE

except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables” and ’'cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet (Notes 2.15
and 2.16).

2.11.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (continued)

2.11.2Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the statement of profit
or loss within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

21BERMEERE
BBEKETRY

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (@)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or Group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a Group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a Group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

BE
REEEEERE AR
HREABEEERBEERX
HeMEERRXEALRE
ERLCRE-HEEERE
EBREAREREREE
BREE-FIEREMNE
HRERAHR(EBERS
H) mMEZERIZFER
=R ARLZAERE
EMERERBRSREK
AREMFHNEE B
CRMEESTEHBRRER
EERERERE -

BETFRABFERAX
—HEBAEXERUB
W 8 B R X A
BT EH AT
WEXRETEMUBE
M RABRINBER
RMEFFARKRBZRE LR
A EFER D - Pl R R
Bk HIREEHEREMKL
AR



94 Best Food Holding Company Limited  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

213 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held- to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’'s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2 ERETHEHBE @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.14 Inventories 214 7 E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Costs of inventories include the transfer from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of
raw materials.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
See Note 2.11.2 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.13 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2 EXREHHEBEmw

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.19 Borrowings (Continued) 2.19 & FX (@)

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of shares
to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument
is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognised initially at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component, which is
included in shareholders’ equity in other reserves. Any
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

2.20 Compound financial instruments (Continued)

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the
respective equity component of the compound financial
instrument, together with the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is
classified as current unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2 BEAEFHEBRE@
Policies (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 221 BN R EE AT 8 B ()
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EFEFTHBB

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans and post-employment medical plans.

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that is not a defined contribution plan.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan,
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
employee benefit expense, except where included in
the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,

curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
statement of profit or loss. Changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Other post-employment obligations
Some Group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to
these benefits is usually conditional on the employee
remaining in service up to retirement age and the
completion of a minimum service period. The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the
period of employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise. These obligations are valued annually by
independent qualified actuaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

2 ERETHEHBE @

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition 223 WL ATRRR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage

business

The Group operates a chain of restaurants for selling
fast food. Sales of goods are recognised when a
restaurant of the Group passes the food to the
customer and the consideration is received. Retail
sales are usually in cash, by credit card or by online
payment platforms. The Group does not operate any
loyalty programmes for its retail customers.

Sales of finished goods are recognised when the
Group delivered the products to the franchisee and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The
franchisee does not have a right of return upon receipt
of the products. The Group does not operate any
loyalty programmes for its franchisees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Revenue from manufacturing and sales
of handbags business
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

o The amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° [t is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.25 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

3 Prior Year Restatements

(a) The Company has carried out a reassessment on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the prior years
and identified the following misstatements. The directors of
the Company decided that the most appropriate treatment
for these misstatements is to restate the comparative figures
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. A detailed
description of the nature of each prior year restatement is
provided in notes 3(a)(i) to 3(a)(iii) below. The amounts of the
prior year restatements for each financial statement line item
affected are presented in the tables in note 3(c) below.

(i) There was a misstatement on the financial impact of
derivative financial instrument (put option on issuance
of convertible bonds) in 2016 mainly due to: 1) the
incorrect assessment of fair value of the derivative
financial instrument as at the recognition date and 31
December 2016; and 2) the change in fair value of the
derivative financial instrument in 2016 was not
recognised as at 31 December 2016.

(ii) Deferred income tax liabilities were not recognised in
prior years for the fair value change on an investment
property in Thailand. The tax effect of the above fair
value changes is expected to be realised

subsequently.

@iy ~ There was a misstatement on expenses cut-off in
2016. Certain expenses occurred in 2016 while not
yet billed were not recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in

2016.

(b) In addition, the Group has changed its accounting policy as
described below. The change has been applied to the
Group’s financial statements on a retrospective basis. The
effect of adopting the new accounting policies is presented

in the tables in note 3(c) below.

(i) In prior years, the Group’s consolidated financial
statements were presented in HK dollars. After the
acquisition of food and beverage business in mainland
China from October 2016, the Group decided to
change the Group’s and the Company’s presentation

currency from HK dollars to RMB.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

3 Prior Year Restatements continued) 3 BAEFEFIM@m
(c) Summary of the effects of restatements (c) EMFERLE
The following is a summary of the effects of the restatements UTRHEMNTZENRLE
on:
)  The Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss () AEEEZ2016F12 A 31
and other comprehensive income for the year ended BIEFENGAERZRE
31 December 2016: fh 2 E R E K
For the year For the year  For the year
ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
BZ2016%F BE20165F #HZE2016F
128318 12A31H 128311
tEE AR LEE LEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 RMB’000
THr FEr  FTErT  TEx FRT FARE
(as originally
stated) (@) (a)(ii) (a)(ii) (Restated) (Restated)
(k) (@) (a)(i (&) (i) (Fit)
Revenue A 559,632 - - - 559,632 477,587
Cost of sales $HE R A (386,250) - - - (386,250) (329,638)
Gross profit EF 173,382 - - - 173,382 147,949
Distribution and selling expenses £ & K 7> $8 Ak 24X (60,195) - - - (60,195) (51,379)
General and administrative —REITHRAX
expenses (132,424) - — (1491 (133915  (114,076)
Other income H A 8,176 - - - 8,176 6,778
Other gains, net H Aot Yz F 58 41,655 (2,860) - - 38,795 33,044
Operating profit 15 % A 30504 (2,860) - (1,491 26,243 22,316
Finance expenses, net BB AR (6,565) - - - (6,565) (5512
Share of loss of associates B EREEE (224) - - - (224) (196)
Profit before taxation P& %5 A a A 23,805 (2,860) - (1,491) 19,454 16,608
Income tax expense Fr 1S %% 32 i (6,578) - (1,275) - (7,853) (6,739)
Profit for the year ERBEF 17,227 (2,860) (1,275) (1,491) 11,601 9,869
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

3 Prior Year Restatements (continued)

(c)

Summary of the effects of restatements
(Continued)

3 BEFEEIR®m@m

()  The Group’s consolidated income statement of profit () AEEEZ20164F12 A 31
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year AEFERNGREEaRE
ended 31 December 2016: (Continued) EmEmkER: (B)

For the year Forthe year  For the year
ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
220165 BE216F HE2016F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
LFE AE LEE tEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
THT FET TET TR THT TAR®
(as originally
stated) (@) (a)(i) (a)(ii) (Restated) (Restated)
(FRitt) (2)l) (a)(i) (a)(i) (Eqt) (Eit)
Profit for the year FRBFBER
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ADREEA 15,868 (2,860) (1,275) (1,491) 10,242 8,686
Non-controlling interest FIERER 1,359 - - - 1,359 1,183
17,227 2,860)  (1,275)  (1,491) 11,601 9,869
Other comprehensive income Hi2E K
ltem that will not be reclassifiedto ~ FTEEHEZERFZ
profit or loss: BR:
Remeasurement of defined benefit ~ EHHEZ RFE
assets FREE 403 - - - 408 343
Item that may be reclassified HEemgegmsg
subsequently to profit or loss: ZE&H2ER:
Exchange differences arising on RGEBNES
translation of foreign operations T2 £ RE X,
8 (8,758) - 159 - (8,599) 10,760
Other comprehensive income for the & & #b % M 25
year (8,355) — 159 - (8,196) 11,103
Total comprehensive income for ~ FR2ERHAE
the year 8,872 (2,860) (1,116) (1,491) 3,405 20,972
Total comprehensive income forthe £ N2 W % 25 &
year attrioutable to: BR:
Owners of the Company AVNGIE 2PN 8,784 (2,860) (1,116) (1,491) 3317 19,789
Non-controlling interests ks 88 - - - 88 1,183
Earnings per share (in cents) 2 F|
— basic -EX 192 (0.35) (0.15) (0.18) 124 1.0
Eamings per share (in cents) BREF
— diuted -BE 1.92 0.35) 0.15) 0.18) 1.24 1.05




ageparss —=—+as 109

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

3 Prior Year Restatements (continued) 3 BAEFEFIM@m
(c) Summary of the effects of restatements (c) EigERLEwm
(Continued)
(i)  The Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 iy AEER2016F12A31H
December 2016: MireEEBER:
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
2016 F H2016 5 H2016
12A318 AE 12A318 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
FTAT FTHL FET FTET FET FTARE
(as originally
stated) (@) (a)(i) (a)(ii) (Restated) (Restated)
(Ritt) (@) (a)ti) (a)ii (Zitt) (Ei)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - W%&Eﬁ{% 111,582 - - — 111,582 98,193
Prepaid lease payments BREEHE 52,943 - - - 52,943 46,590
Investment properties BEME 36,414 — - — 36,414 32,045
Investments in associates BENRRE 95,800 - - - 95,800 84,305
Gooduwil BE 51,699 — - — 51,699 45,495
Intangible assets BVEE 101,357 - - - 101,357 89,199
Derivative financial instrument TEERMIE 7,020 (6,300) - — 720 634
Deferred tax assets EREREEE 17,123 - - - 17,123 15,066
Defined benefit assets REFREE 5,138 - - — 5,138 4,521
Trade and other receivables EUE 5 R At 508 43,937 - - - 43,937 38,664
523,013 (6,300) - - 516,713 454,712
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 70,428 - - - 70,428 61,977
Prepaid lease payments ENBERE 1,329 - - - 1,329 1,170
Trade and other receivables EWE SR EMZIE 90,963 - - - 90,963 80,048
Tax recoverable ALK EHE 1,226 - - - 1,226 1,079
Financial assets at fair value through 8 A/ BEzI 8 B &
profit or loss FFABED
tREE 17,045 - - - 17,045 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEYD 123,028 - - - 123,028 108,264
304,019 — - — 304,019 267,538
Total Assets EEAE 827,032 (6,300) - - 820,732 722,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

- R Ay / A L3
3 Prior Year Restatements (continued) 3 BAEFEFIM @
(c) Summary of the effects of restatements (c) EMEERLE @m)
(Continued)
(i) The Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 iy AEER20165F12H31H
December 2016: (Continued) MGZEEEREBRR (B)
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
#2016 % R2016F 20165
124318 RE 12A31A 124318
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
FTAL FTHL FET FTAET TR TAR®
(as originally
stated) (a)) (a)(il (a)(i) (Restated) (Restated)
(fRat) @ (a)() (a)i) (Eit) (Ei)
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ENESREMTIE 175,810 — — 1,491 177,301 156,025
Tax payable FEfHIE 9,487 - - 9,487 8,349
185,297 - - 1,491 186,788 164,374
Non-current liabilities *¥RBER
Deferred tax liabilties BERFAEHAR 24773 - 2,932 - 27,705 24,380
Loan from a third party EZHER 260,000 - - - 260,000 228,800
Deferred government grants BT R B 1,783 - - - 1,783 1,572
286,556 — 2,932 — 289,488 254,752
Total liabilities EEAE 471,853 - 2,932 1,491 476,276 419,126
Capital and reserves BARRE
Share capital A 82,500 - - - 82,500 69,055
Reserves Bhf 217,449 (6,300) (2,932) (1,491) 206,726 185,464
Equity attrioutable to owners of BERAREEEA
the Company MR 299,949 (6,300) (2,932) (1,491) 289,226 254,519
Non-controling interests FeiEft g = 55,230 - - - 55,230 48,605
Total equity EREE 365,179 (6,300) (2,932) (1,491) 344,456 303,124
Total liabilities and equity EERESAE 827,032 (6,300) - - 820,732 722,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H |[FFE

3 Prior Year Restatements (continued) 3 BEFEERm
(c) Summary of the effects of restatements (c) EXREFEELE@w
(Continued)
(i) ~ The Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 1 iy ARQFR2016F1A1HH
January 2016: mEEEAGR:
As at As at As at
1 January 1January 1 January
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
R2016 4 20165 20164
1818 mE 1818 1818

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000  RMB’000
TExXT TET THERT THER TEL TAR®

(as originally
stated) (a)(i) (a)(ii) (a)(ii)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Rit) @1 (@)(i) (a)(ii) (FEi) (Ei)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #) % - i &= &
B4 61,863 — — — 61,863 50,728
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 33,856 - — — 33,856 27,762
Investment properties wEYE 290,816 — — — 29,816 24,449
Deferred tax assets EIETBHE B 2,921 - - - 2,921 2,395
Defined benefit assets REMZEE 4,697 - — — 4,697 3,852
Trade and other receivables ~ fEW & 5 K
H o 5RIE 2,749 — — — 2,749 2,254
135,902 — - - 135,902 111,440
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 73,508 — — — 73,508 60,277
Prepaid lease payments A E K8 864 — — — 864 708
Trade and other receivables  EWE 5 K
H 3R 99,202 — — - 99,202 81,346
Tax recoverable AT 4[5 4 18 907 - - - 907 743
Cash and cash equivalents BekReHE
B 308,576 — — — 308,576 253,032
483,057 - - - 483,057 396,106

Total assets EEMAE 618,959 - - - 618,959 507,546
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12 831 H [FFE

3 Prior Year Restatements (continued) 3 BEFEEMR@m
(c) Summary of the effects of restatements (c) EMEERLE @m)
(Continued)
The Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 1 @iy AAFR2016F1A1HH
January 2016: (Continued) mAEBEABER: (B
As at As at As at
1 January 1January 1 January
2016 Adjustments 2016 2016
A2016 F A20165F R2016%F
1A1H AR 1A1H 1A1H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 RMB’000
FETL FTHxT FTET TERT FET TARK
(as originally
stated) (a)(i) (a)(ii) (a)ii)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Rit) (@) (a) i) (a)(ii) (Eqt) (Ei)
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables BNESREM
KIB 71,477 o — — 71,477 58,611
Derivative financial instruments 474 & &t T & 1,284 - — — 1,284 1,053
Tax payable FE (< F 18 2,053 — — — 2,053 1,683
74,814 - - - 74,814 61,347
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities BREAMSHAaE - — 1,636 - 1,636 1,370
Loan from a related party RE T B 260,000 — — - 260,000 213,200
260,000 — 1,636 — 261,636 214,570
Total liabilities EEH8E 334,814 - 1,636 - 336,450 275,917
Capital and reserves ERREE
Share capital ik 82,500 — — — 82,500 69,055
Reserves E 201,645 - (1,636) — 200,009 162,574
Equity attributable to owners &7 & A 2K 2 &)
of the Company A AMER 284,145 - (1,636) - 282,509 231,629
Total equity RxmE 284,145 - (1,636) - 282,509 231,629
Total liabilities and equity BEREZEE 618,959 - - — 618,959 507,546
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4 Financial Risk Management 4 BIBERER
41 B EKREZ

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance
department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Company’s finance
department identifies, evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board of
Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use
of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally
conducted in HK dollars, RMB and US dollars,
which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in
currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and US
dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group
did not enter into any forward contract to hedge
its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

AEBHEBERSENBHR
% 5 E e (B 1 I & LR A
RenEMNEAR)  ERARE
MRBERR  AEEMER
EBREEAIETRERTIS
BN A TEORIME - B AR &
BHMBERRIBNOEETNE

ERERE-

AEEUWBEHIREARAES
SHENBRRATRREIRE -
ARRHBHEAEEZLSE
BRURETBHIE P kAT
KRR AR EESRMHE
BRREENEERA AKX
SMERBE - ERRER - PTES R
TARFTEEZMIANEA
UERGBRBDESNRESFA
BOEME@MBEK -

a) WMEEE
() SMEREE
REBEBEENS
T AR RETE
T-mMAET AR
ke & E T ASNE B ST
B/ 5 MR HNE
B o HNEE [ F 2K B 3%
IMEEETEHE R
BERBEBEUREE
R HE20ITFE R
2016412 8318 Lt
FE AEBIWEE]
SE AR B A 49 A
0% BT E R A SN E R

)
A
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in currency other than
functional currencies of the respective Group
entities are as follows:

B R B B B )

4.1 B EREE @
() fﬁ%ﬁtl@(%@

(i)

S BE 7 B (4%)

® 2017 F12 A 31
B REBUEARE
BEEBRBNNEEE
NINEETENE
KEERBEERED
(ER N

31 December 2017
20175128310

31 December 2016
201612 A31H

HK dollar  US dollar RMB | HKdollar  US dollar RMB
B EYH ARM BT E AR¥
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 “RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
FAR®E TAR® TARY PEARE AR AR
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Eit) (&Fitt) (Eat)
Cashand bank balances 32 & M 4R 17 45 6% 2 328 — 8 1 -
Trade and other receivables  JE U ZE 5 & E fth
I8 2,342 - - 1,862 - -
Trade and other payables ~ FERE 5 & H ith
Ig 7,957 - 12 5,773 2 9

As at 31 December 2017, if RMB had 20179128318 -
weakened/strengthened by 5% (2016: 5%) with ARty /s
all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for 5% (2016 FF : 5%) -
the year would have been RMB265 lower/higher AR T A H b &

(2016: pre-tax profit for the year would have
been RMB196 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated cash
and bank balances, trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables.

ETE FRABRFBIE
15 18 & R D
2657C A R ¥ (2016
F - FRR B A F
&SR 1 hn196 7T
ARBE) FEAR
H#ATRET
ENESREIITHE
% EIRE S REAM
FREUAREMNES
LEMKREBEBERH
SR Uk 35 B 8 o
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued) 4 HBEREREE@
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 B R EE @
(@) Market risk(Continued) (@ WHEERE @
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate (i) BERERAIR
risk 18 (& Fi F |7 iz

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. As at 31 December 2017
and 2016, the group did not have borrowings
with variable interest rate.

(b) Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties provided by the Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also
exposed to concentration of credit risk as a substantial
portion of its sales is generated from a limited number
of customers. At 31 December 2017, the top five
customers of the Group accounted for about 65%
(2016: 29%) of the Group’s trade receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

AKEBHBARE
EXBRERER
BETXTIER K
R E - R20174F
K2016% 12 A31H -
LN SRR

A3 -

(b) EARR

R2017F 128318 &A%
EfEREeRERSHTF
REBITET R AEBE T
12 B 7 MR AR TS K R
SEMBEANERER
B Ty E A B AR A B AR
NEMIIHIEBERRS
MEEMNKRAME - ARA
FERRITHMEERE
EREENTFL  MA%E
EEBREFNEREER -
R2017F 128318 » A&
B RHAEPEAEBEER
Z 5 B M #65% (2016
& 29%) o

RBERRRREESE -
rEEEEBECDZME A
ABREEBEEFRE#EE
EEHEREMERIE
Fro AREMR 2 R BUE & IR
ETEBH R DB HRE - It
Sho AEBERERERRK
mESHENEZERLZ
AU El &R AR
AT U [B] £ B A R R R E
BiE-UmME AAF
EERA/EXEHERZERA
b 2 AR BRI
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

The credit risk on bank deposits and other financial
assets is limited because the counterparties are banks
with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also
has available banking facilities to meet its short-term
working capital requirements. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent the interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows) and
outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the
contractual maturities as the management consider
that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of
derivatives.

B R B B B )
41 B EREZE @

(b)

(c)

£ AR @)

MR FHAEERTY
BT MBTERREAM
SREEZERERA
5 o

B E < ER

EEERDESRRE
AEEEERERREER
ReEEYNRERERR
RWEKT - N AE
HeE THERSAE
KRBT B KRB
RMEBRITHEAMEHRE
HEEBEEeFE-EHE
ERRTERERIER
WHEREBTEREL -

TRAJNAEEETES
BMABZHBHE LY
HeZzRDIRBERNEEZE
NHRZzxFRHz2®E
BERFTARERERE -
BEREMETESREE
ZEHBALERBEER
BRI E - Z REBME
EASHRESRE - WAL
RERERZTHN X A
ATREBIOREREHAR
BRI R EA o

AN - TR AEEDT
EFERTAZRBESS
fre ZRDRETES R
TRANFEGEEZRFTR
BRFREORA) Rt
Miwme- AEBEITE SR
TAZRBES DR
BEEERRIR T BT
ETARESRENEFHEM
EREZNANIMAM
R
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4 Financial Risk Management (continued) 4 B iR BB )
4.1 Financial risk factors (Gontinued) 4.1 B AR EE @
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBESERMR @

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within Over undiscounted Carrying

rate% 1 year 1 year cash flows  amount
¥
BERA= AFRAE

% B

As at 31 December 2017 FA2017 &

12H31H
Non-derivative kTSR
financial liabilities =R
Non-interest bearing %8 — 100,328 - 100,328 100,328
Fixed interest rate EFETA
instruments 1.25 226,803 - 226,803 221,000

327,131 327,131 321,328

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within Over undiscounted  Carrying

rate% 1 year 1 year cash flows ~ amount
ik B
BB A = AFRHE S
% —FA —FHE mEEE

As at 31 December 2016 /2201612 A31H

(as restated) (Eiq)
Non-derivative EfTES R
financial liabilities aE
Non-interest bearing % B — 90,969 — 90,969 90,969
Fixed interest rate EEILHE
instruments 25 — 234,996 234,996 228,800

90,969 234,996 325,965 319,769
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4 Financial Risk Managementicontinued) 4 HMBEREREE@

4.2 Capital management 42 EXEE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including 'current and non-
current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as 'equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio is nil as
its cash and cash equivalents exceeds its total borrowings.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio is 28%.

AEBEEEANBBERESR
AEBENKBERERT AR
P BR B R B K A8 H b A & AR
B 7 Bl E A w0 IR B R E R
BREBABEESKA

RERAHBELAGER X%
A RABENTRENR
Bef HEXRETRE  #
THREBR AL EEE " N
WA BAE

AEBNEERBERRELER
REN BEMEAAL -
BEABLEXDRER FHEK
NERBEAE - BHFRET
REERBE(BRGREERAR
KRR ZIRERIFERBE K]
RESLEEEYFHE-&
AEBENDEGEEERBERM
T EEIMERFENE -

R2017F12A31H AR A&
ENReRREEEMBARE
FEE o WHEEEREXRART -
R2016F12A31H KEERK
BEBEEA28%-
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4 Financial Risk Managementicontinued) 4 HBEREREE@

4.3 Fair value estimation 4.3 A REEME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TREAABEZEMHERMN
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2016 by level of the BMASEBESERA M AEER
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. 2016F 12 A1 H LA A R BEET
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair ENTMITE - B@EEH AZBE
value hierarchy as follows: BEAULNTAREBEERERN =

Al
° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREEXBEEERMS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). FERE CRFAE) (B14) -
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 o BESBEOHAREAS
that are observable for the asset or liability, either B R B A F1R AN
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived WE TwmaE(EBER)
from prices) (level 2). s (R ERIRE)
(o) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o BESBENE AZSET
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) EERNAERO TS SIE
(level 3). (BIT A # =y A BUER)

(B3 o
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4 Financial Risk Management(continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are

measured at fair value at 31 December 2017.

B R B B B )

4.3 A REEMF @

TRINRAEBRKR2017F12
BIBUARAABEFAECEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R E2M E3M &=t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARY TARH FARM
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair NanEETER
value through profit or HEHTARR
loss ZEMEE
Investment in unlisted wealth 7 3E 71 12 81 & &
management products & & — — 27,000 27,000
Derivative financial fTEemI A
instrument
Put option on issuance of ~ ZX{TE[ AR E A
convertible bonds ROk AR - - 1,029 1,029
Total = - - 28,029 28,029

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2016.

TRINRAEBKR2016F12
SIEBUAABEMAEZEE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 FE2M EIR & &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARK FAR® FARKE
(Restated) (RESEIET)) (RES EIET)) (RESEUE))
(Ea) (Ea) (Ea) (Eat)
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair UaRnEETER
value through profit or Hegit ABR
loss ZEMEE
Investment in unlisted wealth 72 3 7 32 Bf & @
management products S & - — 15,000 15,000
Derivative financial TTEEMTAE
instrument
Put option on issuance of 277 A] ¥ % f& %
convertible bonds 2o HA 4 - — 634 634
Total &5t — — 15,634 15,634
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F 12 A31HILFE

BEERERE @

4.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3
The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

4.3 A REEMF @

FIRETMITAE
TR ¥R E E20174F K 20164
12A31MH EFEMNEFEIRT A

2016.

28 -

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

UAREBEFEEEZBFA

ERveREE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM TARKE
(RESEE))
(FEuh)
Opening balance B 1)) 4 &4 15,000 —
Addition, net AEFE 12,000 15,000
Closing balance HA R 45 8% 27,000 15,000

Derivative financial instrument

fTESRMIA

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® FAR®

(RESEIET))

(FEia)

Opening balance BR A 45 84 634 -
Addition NE - 3,101
Change in fair value NHEEE 385 (2,470)
Currency translation difference PE X =58 10 3
Closing balance H R &5 6 1,029 634
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5 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite life have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.12. The recoverable amounts of
groups of cash-generating units (“the CGU”) have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (Note
21).

As of 31 December 2017, as value-in-use of the CGU
that contains goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite life was higher than its carrying amount there
was no impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite life.

5

B4 & & ot 6 5T & I iR

mEt kA DREBELRIEMEA
ERBEETHE REERXREEES
MBEATHEEARAREHAELZRE
A e

51 RS HETRER

A& B RKMEDLGEFTRR
R-BHER FAARIE
FIEBEERBR - Xt &
fEEt R B &RE A AT gE R T fE B
BEEANEBHEERBEBEZR
EEHBEERFE -

@ AEREFERSE
MBI EERE
7 % B 5 R 15 212
A 5 ESROB B B R
AEmBFRZENAE
REHBRE ReEE
B ((ReEEB N
AU B % B8 T AR 95 62 R 1
BHEEE - REHET
BT E (M aE21) -

HZE2017F128318 821
HEREBERFHIER
EEMASESBEMNER
EEaSNEEREE wEE
REBERFH BT EE
I £ (B
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5 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for interests in associates at the end of
each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.13. Interests in
associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of interests in an associate exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates.

Intangible assets with an indefinite
useful lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives for intangible assets based on their
historical experience in the industry and various
studies and market research performed by them,
which support that the trademark may have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net
cash flows for the Group. It is possible that future
results of operation could be affected by changes in
this estimate. A change of useful lives of the
trademarks from indefinite to finite would increase
amortisation charges and decrease non-current
assets.

5 BRI RHAE @

51 BRE A RRER

(%)

(b)

(c)

REBEQ AR ZER
B
AEEBREREBARIRIE
MY sE2.13 A7 it & 51 B3R 5T
HRBERNRZEERS
HERETFR - RBEAQ
RIZ XN HBEREER
BE AW B 2 R B AT
BRI R o B R E QA
ZEEESEEESRETY
Bl E(REERAEBES
HET)NFERE %5
ATEHREEITER .
EEERERFH
ZERILEE
AEEERERBEEITE
FEEEBRETENZEE
LIS E T ER
BEMMETAIRAFEH &
P REEREA
AEEBERFRESREDN
HM I & e] 78 R AR & o
EAEEEE RS
RRMEBEEE - FEA
FAFHRERARAEBR
HeF@yERgInKLE
MENVEERD °
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5 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

6 Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

5 BREESITEFTRHAEH @

51 BREMATRRBR

(#)

(d) FriE®

6 WA

REBARE TRAER
B EH BEEMEHR
BEFZMEBHE RZ
R PR ER KA IR
NAEETE - AEBIRE
ELREBMBEIIALZ
hEH ERYBEHRGEE
REEZEE -MEES
HZ &R R E &)
AREBEBEMIR %F
EHERBTENBEEHA
Z BT 18 B IR KT PR B
o

AEERFROBADFTET

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TAR®
(RESEIEE))
(Eit)
Revenue from food and beverage BRREFWA

business 409,524 55,138

Revenue from manufacturing and sales  #l4k & $5 € F R E KU A
of handbags business 342,277 422,449
751,801 477,587
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Segment Information

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, based
on information reported to the Company’s executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, which focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, The Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 — Operating Segments
are as follows:

0} Food and beverage business; and

(ii) Manufacturing and sales of handbags business

SHEH

LTRREBEEEMBHREENFESHR
REDHBHAEBIRBE D BOWKA
MEENDT  AARBRITES
MEE2EERRETETELERR
FEDERERDERFMEDMBRIRM
ERCER ETFRAXMHERE
WX AR 7% 2 FE Al o

HE2017F12A31BILFEE AEH
REBTEHREELFEH — K& D
ETZREERFEDHBHIWOT
() BREH: R

(i) HERBEEFREH



1 26 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

7 Segment Information (continued) 7 2EHMER@
Segment revenues and results DEWRAMELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by T AEAEBEIZREE D2 WA TZE
reportable segment: BT
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZ2017F12A31AILEE

Manufacturing

Food and and sales of
beverage Handbags
business business
EMN
Z28 HEFH =H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY TARY
For the 31 December 2017 HZE2017F12A31H
IEFE
Total revenue WA B EE 409,524 342,277 751,801
Inter-segment revenue 7 B E A = = -
Revenue from external customers SN EB YA 409,524 342,277 751,801
Segment gross profit DEEF 252,933 94,383 347,316
Distribution and selling expenses 7§ K 5H & A AR (219,004)
General and administrative expenses 17 & FH (97,666)
Other income H A YA 6,116
Other gains, net H At Y25 0 F 58 9,722
Finance expense, net W75 E R R (9,330)
Share of loss of associates /N o= (2,450)
Profit before taxation B F5 BiT S5 A 34,704
Income tax expense FrisHi sz i (14,018)
Profit for the year F R 20,686
Other Information: HAfE 8 :
Significant non-cash expenses BEXRFHReH
Depreciation and amortization ELEHY 14,604 6,164 20,768
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A31H
Total assets BEMRE 1,004,844 320,908 1,325,752
Including: B
Investments in associates BENAEIRE 287,142 - 287,142

Total liabilities BEER 309,616 90,274 399,890
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7 Segment Information (continued) 7 DHER@
Segment revenues and results (Continued) 2 EUYAFEE @

Year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated)

For the 31 December 2016

B ZE2016F12 A31H

BZEZ2016F 12831 AL FE (E)

Food and
beverage
business

B
RMB’000
TARK

Manufacturing
and sales of
Handbags
business

RiEm
HEFH
RMB’000
TARY%

Total

a5t
RMB’000
TARK

IEFE

Total revenue Nk 55,138 422,449 477,587
Inter-segment revenue 7 B U A - - —
Revenue from external customers GNER I A 55,138 422,449 477,587
Segment gross profit 7 & E A 14,203 133,746 147,949
Distribution and selling expenses o =& = k- DN (51,379)
General and administrative expenses 17 & F (114,076)
Other income Hab g A 6,778
Other gains,net Hib s %88 33,044
Finance expenses, net VBB RFAE (5,512)
Share of loss of associates & N TR R (196)
Profit before taxation R 5 AT vt A 16,608
Income tax expense g’ it (6,739)
Profit for the year F R T 9,869
Other Information: HEifzE 8 :
Significant non-cash expenses BERFREXH

Depreciation and amortization e Ny 3,666 13,675 17,341
As at 31 December 2016 R2016%F 12 A31H
Total assets AEME 426,130 296,120 722,250
Including: B

Investments in associates BENBIRE 84,305 - 84,305

Total liabilities BEHEHE 362,102 57,024 419,126
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

7 Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

Revenues of approximately RMB113,870,000 (2016:
RMB113,365,000) are derived from a single external customer.
These revenues are attributed to the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets, other than
derivative financial instrument, defined benefit assets and deferred
tax assets is presented based on the geographical location of the
assets.

7 EHE R @

2B UL A TN A& )

8 5 A #0 B R TR SR B2 K
S HEAR -

EXGREN D ERAIBRBINRF
FrEE WA - RELZE2016F & 2017

F12A3AFE R ED 2
=

47113,870,0007T A R ® (2016 F :
113,365,000 A R ) B9 AR 8 —
BNEEP - ZEWRAGBEREER
HEFREB-

& &
FEERTESRIA AEMNEE
ENEERBEENZIRBDEESR
HIREEWMREZRY -

Non-current assets
RBEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

FTAR®E TAR®

The PRC s
Thailand B
Myanmar 4 )

571,713 332,567
14,426 32,044
113,144 69,880

699,283 434,491
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Segment Information (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical
location during the year is as follows:

7 EHER @

bR )

FAREERBINFIF P OB AL
BEOFEBOT

Revenue from
external customers
Year ended 31 December
REIIEBEFHBA
BZE12ANALEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

The PRC

The USA

Other Asian countries
Canada

Italy

Other European countries
Germany

Hong Kong

The Netherlands

South American countries
The United Kingdom

The Middle East and Africa

&

xHE

H A EMNE R
mEX
BRH

H A BN B R
=E

BB

a5 B

EE)

R

3R B3R

FTARY TARE

428,034 79,993
141,373 155,623
38,253 55,163
32,764 35,632
30,935 47,401
26,357 20,990
17,706 7,812
14,449 36,316
8,497 23,969
8,019 5,391
4,310 8,212
1,104 1,285

751,801 477,587
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8 Other Gains, Net 8 HiuWz=FE

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A1BLEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TAR®
(RESEICE))
(FEit)
Net exchange gain P& 3 Uk &% 58 1,346 3,245
Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes on PTHESRTAANABEZSKE
derivative financial instrument (E548) 385 (2,470)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEME - BE REE RS
plant and equipment (E38) 295 (2,184)
Gain on fair value changes of REWEZ AR BEEZH RS
investment properties 404 5,545
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H S Y 8 A 7 s (B E38)
(Note 38) — 28,908
Recovery of other receivable from a W 18] BT B B A B 2 H th B U F B
former subsidiary 7,292 —

9,722 33,044
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9 Expenses by Nature 9 EMEIEZEXH

Year ended 31 December
BZE12ANBLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE

(RES EIET))
(Eat)

Raw material used and changes in BN MIERR 2RV &
inventories of finished goods and work £ & & &)

in progress 401,647 305,276
Employee benefit expense (Note 15) B TREMMXZ (FE15) 148,374 80,567
Operating lease payments KB HE N 72,083 34,223
Depreciation and amortisation T E L 20,768 17,341
Water, electricity and fuel IKE R R 18,676 3,728
Transportation expenses REER 12,640 12,725
Property management fee MEERER 7,368 6,850
Office expenses WAERX 4,604 2,725
Advertising costs &SRR 2,611 2,878
Auditors’ remuneration % BRI B & 2,225 2,801

— Audit service — BT RS 2,000 2,290

— Non-audit services — EEHRE 225 511
Other expenses HEm 27,934 23,178

Total cost of sales, distribution expenses $5EK A - S E A NLITHRE H
and administrative expenses 4= 721,155 495,093
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10 Finance Income and Costs

Finance income
Interest income on financial assets at

IR UN

NAREEFELEEEHF ABE

10 BB A R KA

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARY

(RESEICE))
(E=at)

fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEZNERA 203 —
Finance expenses MEER
Interest on bank overdrafts H|ATE B = (19)
Interest on loan from a third party FE-FHERAE (2,333) (5,466)
Interest on consideration payable for WEEMT B A 7 E R EF &
acquisition of subsidiaries. (783) —
Interest on convertible bonds Al (& 25 F B (KT 5E23(0)
(Note 23(0)) (7,434) -
Interest on loan from non-controlling FE AR M S BRI B
interests = 31
Less: Interest expenses capitalized B B B X 1,017 —
(9,533) (5,512)
Finance expense, net M ERFRE (9,330) (6,512)
Weighted average effective interest rates ;t A BEREEE N L& H
used to calculate capitalization BT FA hn A& 39 BB F &
amount on qualifying assets 1.25% 0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412831HILFE

11 BB H

Year ended 31 December
BE12ANALEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM AR ES
(Restated)
(E )
For the year ended December 31 BZ12A31HILEE
Current income tax BN ERFT 1S X
HK profit tax BANEH 2,999 4,341
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) REEMER(EEMSEH] 6,344 2,601
9,343 6,942
Deferred tax IR E R IR 4,675 (203)
14,018 6,739

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25%

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®

(RES EIET))
(Eat)

B Bt A s A 34,704 16,608

12 25% 1 E 51 1 (2016 4F : 16.5%)

(2016: 16.5 %) 8,676 2,740
Tax effects of: NTIHEEMBBTE -
— Associates’ results reported —HE AT EMABRBEESR
net of tax 612 31
— Effect of different tax rates of L NGIENER S04
subsidiaries (384) 530
— Income not subject to tax — \EAGHA - (4,769)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — ET BN AR A
purposes 844 2,449
— Utilization of previously —EALAABROREER
unrecognized tax losses (478) —
— Temporary differences and tax — AERELEFMEHEENT R
losses for which no deferred MEBREMBEEER
income tax asset was recognized 4,748 5,758
Tax charge B ER 14,018 6,739
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11

12

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Myanmar

The Myanmar subsidiary is subjected to Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax at a rate of 25%. No provision for Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax has been made for both years as the Myanmar
subsidiary incurred losses for both periods.

Thailand

The Thailand subsidiary is subjected to Thailand Corporate Income
Tax at a rate of 20%. No provision for Thailand Corporate Income
Tax has been made for both periods as the Thailand subsidiary
incurred losses for both periods.

Dividends

11

FREB X H @
'

BENGSHRIREMESE 2G5 E
R E FIE16.5 % T RaTH o

&

REFPBECEMBREREEMER
EEEGD PEMBARZHEH
2008F1 A1 HRA25% °

iRz

AR E R RALR25 %W TR YA
BRBAEH - AR AN E QR
MEFERELERE W ESEA
BE LA R R FTIS AT IR A -

RHE

BB A RIZB IR 20 % MY T R T 2=
BRAMEHR ARNFEMERTAR
w8 HA F R E AR S 1R B ME R A
BESFE QRS HATIREE -

12. B2

Year ended 31 December
BZE12ANNALEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY

(Restated)
(=)

Proposed final dividend of HK$1.5 cents #§ & 2K HA % 2. G A% @ A% 1.578 1

per ordinary share (2016: nil) (20164F : &)

18,623 —

On 7 March 2018, the board of directors proposed a final dividend
of HK$1.5 cents per ordinary share totaling HK$21,909,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB18,623,000) for the year ended
31 December 2017. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a
dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements, but will
be reflected as an appropriation of distributable reserves in the
year ended 31 December 2018.

MN2018E3A7TH  EE o= RER
E2017F12A31B I FERBK B
T E B K158 - A ££21,909,000
B (8 5 » 418,623,000 A B
K)o ZEZRE W AR R A ENK
BIANGZAEUBHRE BBERER
201812 A1 H L FE XM & 7] #
DIREE S EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

13 Earnings Per Share 13 SREF

Year ended 31 December
HZE12AIBALEE

2017 2016

RMB cents RMB cents

PARY PARE

(RES EET))

(F3h)

Basic earnings per share BREARAF 1.61 1.05

Diluted earnings per share i % 72 & 7 1.61 1.05
(a) Basic (@ EZX

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the

BEBRARREE ANESR

BREABRFNDEZEENAR
AR ANGNBRIAFEAE &
TERBRAMBEFHEHE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12ANBLEE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARE

(RESEIET))
(Zit)

Company 15,216 8,686
Weighted average number of ordinary & 3% 17 & 3@ i% &9 h# F 5 2 (T)
shares in issue (thousands) 942,924 825,000
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13 Earnings Per Share (continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.
The Company’s potentially dilutive ordinary shares
comprised shares which may be issued under the
convertible bonds issued by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The convertible bonds are
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares and
adjusted for the impact of interest expense of the convertible
bonds. During the year ended 31 December 2017, this
potential adjustment results in an anti-dilutive effect in the

calculation of diluted earnings per share.

13 R EF @)

(b) i

ERmERFERBAERE
BEEMN LT BEREBR 2NETYH
HEEMN - ARREEBEE
BREERBAATREZR
2017F 12 A1 H L FEEITH
AMRESATEEITHRD -
BRETRBRELFCEBRAEE
WA WARE TR EF R
EXHMNEEHETHAE - HE
2017F12R1 B IEFE % /B
CHABCERBERNGNGE
FEETRMERE-
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14 Directors’ and chief executive’s 14 EERTHEATZHNS
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, WIEER FTHRAEAFEE - E
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies NEERTREH ZHESBEZRROT

Ordinance, is as follows:

Other emoluments
HiE <
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes

Fees benefits contributions Total
FER RIKEF

e H 1t 18 7 =T &l &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARY FARY FARY

2017 20174
Executive directors HiTEE
Zhao John Huan (Chief — #8<E (7T 42 %)

Executive) - - - =
Wang Xiaolong BN — — - -
Wang Yuanzheng FEAE - - - =
Independent non- BUIIHBITEF

executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei PR 4 156 — — 156
Tsang Hin Man Terrence FEX 156 - - 156
Leung Kwai Kei (appointed 2 & £ (72017 &

on 4 January 2017) 1A4REZMT) 156 - - 156

Total FERE 468 — — 468
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H LFE

14 Directors’ and chief executive’s 14 EERTHAZN S @
emoluments (Continued)

Other emoluments

H i B &
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other schemes
Fees benefits  contributions Total
ek R RAE A
we H i 48 A =T 2l R =X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®  TAR%®  TAR%K  TARK
(RESEE)] (RESEIE)) (RESEE)) (RESEE))
(E) (E) (E) ()
2016 2016
Executive directors HITESE

Zhao John Huan (Chief — #< B (77 E#2 %)
Executive) (appointed (20168 A9H

on 9 August 2016) EEF) - - - -
Wang Xiaolong (appointed T /)N 8 (FA 2016 4F

on 9 August 2016) 8BHOHEZM) - - - -
Wang Yuanzheng TR (FR2016 5

(appointed on 9 August 8 A9 H EZE ()

2016) _ _ _ _

Wai Siu Kee (‘Ms. Wai”) &L & ([#F&+])
(resigned on 9 August (201648 A9H

2016) BHE) — 603 — 603
Kung Fang, David (resigned Z24k (722016 4

on 9 August 2016) 8HOHEIT) — 556 9 565
Lee Man Ching (resigned 2= 32 8 (R 2016 4

on 9 August 2016) 8 HOHET) — 260 9 269
Independent non- BUIHHITESR

executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TB =X 4 128 - - 128
Tsang Hin Man Terrence % % X 128 - - 128

Xian Shunxiang (appointed )5 JIE £ (722016 4
on9August 2016 and 8 A9HEEEI
resigned on 4 January MH2017F1 A48

2017) B T) 47 - - 47
Leung Kwai Kei (appointed 2 & £ (2017 £

on 4 January 2017) 1A4BEZT) - - - -
So Wing Keung (resigned % sk 3& (74 2016 4F

on 9 August 2016) 8 H9RET) 7 - - 7

Total ke 380 1,419 18 1,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

14 Directors’ and chief executive’s 14 EERTHRAZHE @
emoluments (continued)
The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ EXIRZATEERBIENTE
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in EMe IR EEEBERARRQA
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company RAREEEBFARBFEERARE
and the Group and for their services as directors of the Company EW AR M A e
respectively.
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no emoluments H =2017F K%2016F12 4318 I F
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join B AEBIESMITMAEISESN
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for a loss of office. AREBRESEREERHE - BB
No directors waived any emoluments during these years. EENZEFEARETHMSE
15 Employees Benefit Expenses 15 EERAZH

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARH FARY

(RESEVE))

(FEuh)

Wages and salaries TERF® 132,884 73,093
Social security costs and housing fund M &REHX LEEES 5,808 1,512
Staff benefit and welfare EEEH&E 8,739 4,662
Mandatory Provident Fund contribution 38 & 4 f 7% 943 1,300

Total employee benefit expense EEEANXHAE 148,374 80,567
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15 Employees Benefit Expenses (continued) 15 EEFA X H @

None of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REBRAEZESHMMATHHELR
Group were directors of the Company whose emoluments are NEIEFE  EFEME HN LM 14
included in note 14 above (2016: two). The aggregate emoluments (2016F : MA) s A mma WA T
of the five highest paid individuals, including directors, were as (RIEES)Z2EME 0T -

follows:

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

TARH FARH

(RESEUCE))

(Eit)

Salaries and other benefits He REMET 4,912 4,593
Contributions to retirement benefits SRR T EH 8 3K

schemes 233 62

Discretionary bonus payments xEMEERS 414 76

5,559 4,731

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s (I BR84S X E R EF KL ELE -
operating results, individual performance and comparable market A XR LA TS Gt HIEMET ©
statistics.

The emoluments were within the following band: BENFToMEE :

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLLEE

2017 2016
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE®E EE#HE
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 /8 #8 1,000,000 % 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T 2 1,500,000/% 7T 3 4
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16 W% BEER®E

16 Property, plant and equipment

Furniture
Plantand  fixtures and Leasehold  Construction in
Machinery  equipment  Motor Vehicles Buildings  Improvements progress Total
5 4~
BER#SE % T BT HEHR ERIR Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE TARE® TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2016 R2016 %
(as restated) 1A18 (E#)
Cost KA 45,508 25,826 5,289 79,582 38,080 5,110 199,390
Accumulated depreciation 23t E R E
and impairment (36,003) (22,950) (4,422) (68,050) (17,237) - (148,662)
Net Book Amount RHEHE 9,500 2,876 867 11,532 20,843 5,110 50,728
Year ended 31 December  E Z2016F
2016 (as restated) 128311
L FE(Ef)
Opening net book amount ~ F ] R /5 58 9,500 2,876 867 11,532 20,843 5,110 50,728
Currency translation EREE
differences 749 636 98 705 222 1,199 3,609
Additions NE 499 2,605 897 - 3,499 29,474 36,974
Acquisition of subsidiaries U & [ & A 7] 2,295 8,943 648 - 19,860 512 32,258
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBLA - (878) - - (5,198) - (6,076)
Disposals HE - (164) (164) - (1,752) - (2,080)
Transfer upon completion 52 i s & 2 - - - - 2,406 (2,406) -
Depreciation charge FEXH 2,179) (2,345) (478) (4,131) (8,087) - (17,220)
Closing net book amount & K BR [ /% &8 10,864 11,673 1,868 8,106 31,793 33,889 98,193
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F
(as restated) 12A31 8 (Eif)
Cost X 17,798 37,456 6,204 85,405 52,323 33,889 233,075
Accumulated depreciation 24 E R E
and impairment (6,934) (25,783) (4,336) (77,299) (20,530) - (134,882)
Net Book Amount BEEE 10,864 11,673 1,868 8,106 31,793 33,889 98,193
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ma Rt

For the year

16 Pro

vk ELEERC )

ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31 B L F[E

perty, plant and equipment (continued)

Furniture
Plant and fixtures and
Machinery  equipment Motor Vehicles

&

BERKE RERRE E
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

16 M¥ BERRE@m

Buildings

L E5
RMB’000

Leasehold  Construction
Improvements in progress Total

HEHRR ERIR Ch
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000

TAR® TAR®  TARH

Year ended 31 December & Z£2017 F

TAR®

TAR®E TAR® TARH

2017 128311
LEE
Opening net book amount ~ F ¥ BREF & 10,864 11,673 1,868 8,106 31,793 33,889 98,193
Currency translation EXER
differences 972 62) 51 (276) (408) (1,359) (1,082)
Additions NE 19,686 10,924 486 25,935 5,905 29,758 92,694
Disposals HE (235) (467) (26) = (48) = (776)
Transfer upon completion Ak B ik = - - - 15,759 (15,759) -
Depreciation charge MEZH (4,402) (4,880) (649) (1,411) (9,044) - (20,386)
Closing net book amount & RERE B8 26,385 17,188 1,730 32,354 43,957 46,529 168,643
At 31 December 2017 R2017%
128318
Cost B AR 36,350 42,578 6,136 108,429 72,948 46,529 312,970
Accumulated depreciation  Z 1 & L&
and impairment (9465  (25,:390) (4408)  (76,075) (28,991) - (144327)
Net Book Amount RERE 26,885 17,188 1,730 32,354 43,957 46,529 168,643
(a) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests @ AEEVEEZNEEERERE
comprises buildings on land under medium-term land use FREEAN R EREL
rights in the PRC. M ERIEF -
(o)  During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs b)) FRN AEBEMNEEREER

amounting to RMB1,017,000 (2016: nil) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average
rate of the Group’s general borrowings of 1.25% (2016: nil).

B AE AN S5 A1,017,000
TTARE (20165 : T) - fEEK
AN LAZK & B — 218 5K i 1
% 1.25% (20164 : &) B (L o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

17 Prepaid lease payments 17 BB EFHIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold lands REB ZEAMNEERBEREETHREE
held under medium-term lease located in: + AR -

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARY FARE
(RESEE)]
(FEiat)
The PRC 2] 17,768 18,643
Myanmar k) 26,759 29,117
Analysed for reporting purpose as: BRE®/RAOMTWOT : 44,527 47,760
Non-current asset IERBEE 44,007 46,590
Current asset BB E 520 1,170

Balance at the end of year FREH 44,527 47,760
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

18 Investment properties

18 REWH

As at 31 December

W12H831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® FARY
(RESEICE))
(Eih)
At fair value RAAREBE
Investment properties "EYE
Balance at beginning of year F R 32,045 24,449
Gain on property revaluation Y EH 404 5,545
Effect on foreign currency translation INESIEN ZREM R
difference 447 2,051
Balance at the end of year FR A 32,896 32,045

The Group’s property interests held for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties situated in Thailand were revalued as at
31 December 2016 and 2017 by Thai Property Appraisal Lynn
Philips Co., Ltd., an independent firm of professional property
valuer, on the basis of open market value in existing use. One of
the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the
market price of completed properties nearby the Group’s
investment properties. An increase in the market prices would
result in an increase in fair value measurement of the investment
properties. For the appraisal, the valuer inspected and considered
any related factors of the appraised property such as rights
according to the law. Specific type of the property, the appropriate
usage or utilization development, general market condition are also
considered.

AEEFEENR/ENEBENYFE
BIRARAEBEREAGE UHER
RARBREYE -

20164 K 2017612 A31H (L N T &
MEEMECHBLEEMEMLAED
Thai Property Appraisal Lynn Philips Co., Ltd.
BENRERGRETHARAMEEM®L-
REVMELEMBNEZ@HAHE 2
—RAKEREVMEMOEZRDE
BWHE - mEREEBREMENRD
REBEFTEEN - WRATE - AR
BIERAGEDENEAEEEE - ]
IEERENS  TEBTWENARE
BOEENRRRER —RWMR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

18 Investment properties (continued) 18 REW % m)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about R E B R2017F12 A31 H k20164
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 12ANHZHEMEFBREBAAR
2016 are as follows: BEEARZERHTNT

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

31 December 31 December

Level 3 2017 2016
12017 5F 20164

12A31H 12H31H

£33/ ZAREE FE3R ZonfEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARY FEAES FARE
(RESEIE))

(F3h)

Industrial property plants UREBEHTEDE

located in Thailand W= 32,896 32,896 32,045 32,045
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. NEBWEYENREILE AEL o
19 Inventories 19 78
As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARH FAR®

(Restated)

(Fa)

Raw Materials R %t 42,484 36,532
Work in Progress TR 23,913 11,691
Finished goods AR Gh 17,142 13,754

83,539 61,977
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20 Investments in associates 20 REfE RN T 2R

As at 31 December

W12H831H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTAR® TAR®

(RESEICE))

(Eit)

At 1 January ®W1A1H 84,305 —
Additions NE 209,556 85,750
Share of losses for the year eI EREIE (2,450) (196)
Currency translation differences 5 =5 (4,269) (1,249)

At 31 December M12A31H 287,142 84,305
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 REtE RARI 2R @
Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2017 are as NEB B E QT R2017E12 A31H
follows: ZEEBWMT

Place of business/ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest method
T et e EMA LR BERESK FEAFR
2017 2016
Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management (Beijing) The PRC 18.92% 18.00%  Equity
Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note)
FHAAEHREER)ERDA Y i ¥
([&2ERE AL (PFE1)
Guangzhou Yujian Xiaomian Catering The PRC 20.00% 20.00%  Equity
Management Company Limited
EMNBRNEERERERAT B P #
Shenzhen Love's Kitchen Internet and The PRC 21.43% —  Equity
Technology Limited Company
RINATFEFBERRERRA Y P 1
Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% —  Equity
RNTREZERERER DA B PR e
Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% —  Equity
ANTHRERERBERLDA i i
Tianshuilai (Beijing) Catering Trade Management The PRC 26.26% —  Equity
Co. Ltd
ERRKRERERBER A A Y P
Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Company Limited The PRC 25.00% —  Equity
(“Seesaw”)
LA EMEARAE (FE)) ket B
Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC 42.86% —  Equity
BHREEER)BRAA HE i 1
Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service The PRC 25.00% —  Equity
Co., Ltd.
RITIRBZEREHRB AR A A 2 P ¥
Note 1:  Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou is less than el - B EAEERFERAFR IR
20%, the Group is able to exercise significant influence over 20%  AEBEAHFHRATEE
Qidiantongzhou because it has the power to appoint one out of HES TR IEEZARER
seven directors of that company under the Articles of Association WA REBBEEZITRAFT LA

of that company. EEFHEP—RES-
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20 Investments in associates (continued) 20 REEE N T 2= @)

(@) The following table ilustrates the summarised financial (@ TxarzuRARTE2(RA
information of Qidiantongzhou and Seesaw that are HAEBEMEBEEN)NPKSE
individually material to the Group: BHEZE

Qidiantongzhou Seesaw
FEEA mE

2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY BEPAEES TARY AR

(RESEIET))

(Eat)
Current assets mEEE 79,939 95,413 49,585 *
Non-current assets ERBEE 191,377 184,709 140,229 *
Current liabilities BB & (19,207) (11,104) (16,818) *
Net assets HEE 252,109 269,018 172,996 *
Revenue A 9,369 6,502 35,485 *
Loss for the year FEEHE (12,686) (1,093) (903) *

Total comprehensive loss % T &5 18 4258 (12,686) (1,093) (903) .
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20 REtE=E

(@) (Continued) (@

N A 2 o)

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

LR ERGE BN E R

to the carrying amount of the interest in associate RIEZINEAVERRERZ
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: BREEZYER:
Qidiantongzhou Seesaw
HFHE il
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FTAR® FARY TARK
(Restated)
(Eit)
Net assets of the BENRzEEFE
associates 252,109 269,018 172,996 *
Proportion of the Group’s 7~ £ [& A Bt & A 7
direct ownership CERRAEEERS
interests in the B9
associates 18.92% 18.00% 25.00% *
Net assets of interest in 7N £ [& & (5 B & R &)
associate attributable Wz BEFE
to the Group 47,699 48,423 43,249 *
Goodwill (SRS 13,957 12,131 10,525 *
Carrying amount of the 7N 2 B RO B & 2 A
Group’s interestin the  #25 2 BRE &
associate 61,656 60,554 53,774 *
* The disclosure of financial information of Seesaw in 2016 is * WEAESNR2016FMEKSE

not applicable as the investment is made in 2017.

HIEr@Em BEHRER

2017 F{EH -
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20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 RAEE DT 2R @
(b) Individually immaterial associates b) EFI FE RIS
YNNST|
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, M EXFATEESIN KEEIN
the Group also has interests in a number of individually RETHEZEZAFEARBEBI
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity TEANBEES AR EEREZ -
method.

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARE
(RESEET))
(FEit)
Aggregate carrying amount of BEEWAEKNOELE QAN
individually immaterial associates EREECEE 171,712 23,751
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s R A S B A A T 4858
share of:
Profit for the year &F 5 F 90 -

Total comprehensive income FHEABEE 90 -
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21 HEREREE

21 Goodwill and intangible assets

Computer

Goodwill software Trademark Total

BmE EEE4 [k a|F

RMB’000
T AR

RMB’000
N

RMB’000
FARM

RMB’000
TAR®

At January 1, 2016
Cost

R2016%F1A1R
BN

Accumulated amortization 2 &t 4 & B E
and impairment — — — _
Net book amount BRE S — — — _

Year ended December 31,

B Z2016F12H31H

2016 (as restated) LFEE ()

Opening net book amount 4 %] iR [ /5 58 - — - -
Additions nNE — 175 — 175
Acquisition of subsidiaries i ¥ B BB A 7]

(Note 34) (FF5E34) 45,495 1,945 87,200 134,640
Amortization charge BT H - (121) - (121)
Closing net book amount £ X BR [ F & 45,495 1,999 87,200 134,694
At December 31, 2016 A20165F12H31H

(as restated) (F )

Cost K 7R 45,495 2,120 87,200 134,815
Accumulated amortization 23t 84 KOBE

and impairment — (121) — (121)

Net book amount BREFH 45,495 1,999 87,200 134,694
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21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continues) 21 BE2RETLEE @

Computer

Goodwill software Trademark Total

BE  EREM4 (K &t

RMB’000
TAR®

RMB'000  RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

RMB’000
TAR®

Year ended December 31, #HZ2017F12H31H

2017 L+EE
Opening net book amount  4F /] BF )% 58 45,495 1,999 87,200 134,694
Additions nNE - 249 12,469 12,718
Amortization charge BT — (382) — (382)
Closing net book amount FXRERME F & 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030
At December 31, 2017 A2017%F12831H
Cost X AN 45,495 2,369 99,669 147,533
Accumulated amortization 2 5+ # 85 MR E

and impairment - (503) - (503)
Net book amount BREFH 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030
(a) Useful life of intangible assets (@ BREEETHEH

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
trademark continuously and has the ability to do so. Various
studies including product life cycle studies, market,
competitive and environmental trends and brand extension
opportunities have been performed by management of the
Group, which support that the trademark has no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the trademarked products are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademark is considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life. The
trademark will not be amortised until its useful life is determined
to be finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

BTN BAERFHIFEA
AB AR -

EIZEEFH A10F - WA A
MTHMBOKATI0FEE —
R RNRBEBRE AEETA
SEEENE URABEB
M TE - AEEEREEE
ETZEMMR BEEMS®
BEATHE  mH - BFRRES
DEERMEBE - ZEWE
AYRHAEHEEREERRE
HAAEEELAFHRESREDN
MY EABRES -

Ait  AEEEREERRBE
ERERUERFH -BEE
AEETAEAERFHAL
TEHE ESSETFER
BEAR REEBTRISAUES
BB B TR (BRI
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21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued) 21 BE2REFEE @)

(b) Goodwill (b) FEE

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
groups of CGUs comprising two subsidiaries in the food and
beverage business segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, management of the
Group determined that there are no impairment of the CGU
containing goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial forecast approved
by management covering a five-year period, and pre-tax
discount rate of 17.3% (2016: 18.7%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Cash flow projections during the forecast period for the
CGUs are based on the expected revenue growth rates and
gross margins during the forecast period. Forecasted
revenue growth rates and gross margins were determined
based on past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of the
CGUs to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGUs.

RBEAATE BERAA
BIRAIERFIMZEIET DR
EReELBEMARN BEE
FREE TS 73 7R 8O W P P /B8 22 &)

B ZE2017F12 A3 B IEF & -
AEEEREET BERE
REEERAFEAFHNEIEZ
IR S EE B EFIE -

HeEEEMNKES R
DHIRBEERAEETEMESE -
ZAENDRBEEEERAERS
AFEHEMNY BB RERM
AT 3T IR K B17.3% (2016 F :
18.7%) HFABE S REB A ®&
ToREHMBZESRE DN
3%MIBE R ML - ZER
KT EREEITEERENS
- B HBEABITENST
HREAKRE-

ReELE BT HEOR
EREBADERIENHED
BEHMRAEEXTRENXRF
He BRAKAERERERNX
DERTHLEROBERAR
EEEHEHENGSL - €12
EBHEE BEEMNZEREL
REMSIEREZES  HET
EEYRCELEUNEEE
BERSELBLNTRE D
R
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22 Trade and other receivables

22 BERE S REMNKIE

As at 31 December

W12H831H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

SN TFAR®

(RESEICE))

(Eit)

Trade receivables (a) U E 5 BR 5K (a) 54,710 47,504

Prepayments (b) FEAF FIH (b) 30,716 28,719

Other receivables (c) H b E Y FKIE (o) 34,177 42,489

Total trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R HEh R IE &5 119,603 118,712

Less: Non-current portion ko FEBDEREE (19,565) (38,664)
Trade and other receivables — current  JEUN B 5 & H fh Zv 18 — BN A2 &

portion 100,038 80,048

(a) Trade receivables

Third parties

(@) BEWE SRR

As at 31 December

M12A318

2017
RMB’000

FTARY

i
N
o

54,710

2016
RMB’000
FAR®
(RESEIEE))

(Eit)

47,504
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The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b T E Y EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

22 EWE Z K EHMIAKIE @

(@ EWEZRR@m

RUEEBESEREZBERN RS H
RBBERBZREOWHT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH FARE
(RESEE))
(FEit)
Not exceeding 30 days T AE30K 29,620 24,597
31-60 days 31E60K 22,825 15,339
61-90 days 61£90K 1,194 2,536
over 90 days 90K A E 1,071 5,032
54,710 47,504

Trade receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:

RMB
HKD
usb

AR
BT

JEWE SRF AT G :

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARY
(RESEIE))
(Eat)
8,765 8,766
2,244 —
43,701 38,738

54,710 47,504
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 EWE S K HMRIE @

(@ EWEZRR@m

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality by investigating its
historical credit record and then defines its credit limit. The
Group generally allows its trade customers an average credit
period within 90 days. Trade receivables of an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB52,783,000 (2016: RMB45,528,000)
that are neither past due nor impaired have good credit
quality with reference to the track record of these customers
under internal assessment by the Group. As of 31 December
2017 and 2016, no allowance for doubtful debts has
provided for receivables aged over 90 days. Included in the
Group’s trade receivable are debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB1,927,000 (2016: RMB1,976,000)
which were past due at the reporting date but for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. There has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the amounts are still
recoverable as there are continuing subsequent settlement.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired.

61-90 days 61E 90K
over 90 days QKM E

REMNTERFEFA A% H
EBRRAEECERFZBAE
Bl EEEEZ #m
ATHEEEE -AEB—K
LKTYTHESHEP ZFHREKH
BIORXN - K2EZEEFR
REBE /AT GBS
8 ™ 42 {8 #£52,783,0007T A &
¥ (2016 4F : 45,528,000 7T A
R ) 8 K 8 5l 75 KR (5 FE e
E5ENEBRIFEEHE -
20174 M 2016F 12 A31H -
MERBBBIOXZERE S
ERGTIRAERREE - XEEH 2
EWESEFBIEEETDEE
1,927,0007C A R # (20164 :
1,976,0007T A & ¥ ) 2 & UK BR
HoHRBREBHELE S
MAEBWER U RBES
B-HEBRPZEEEETE
EAEY HHREBBELS
R MASBERBZERED
AT E o AN KB M gh S A
BRIFE A ARIFE R -

80 B 1 R OBk (B /O FE WE B 5R0R
Z Rk

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARH FARY
(RESEIET))
(Eat)
856 —
1,071 1,976

1,927 1,976
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 EWE Z K EHMIAKIE @

(b) Prepayments (b) TN FKIE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARK
(RESEET)]
(Eih)
Prepayments for rental AEMBEMNZE 13,473 10,304
Prepayments for raw materials R KL TE A FRIB 6,717 3,870
Prepayments for property, Y% ERERENEMNRE
plant and equipment 2,456 6,753
Others Hi 8,070 7,792

subtotal INEF 30,716 28,719
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 EWE Z K HMIARIE @

(c) Other receivables (c) HibpEWFIE
As at 31 December
M12H831H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTAR% FARK

(RESEE))

(Ea)

Lease deposits HEZRS 15,861 13,075

Deductible VAT input Al F0 5 18 (E T IR 6,788 5,629

Amount due from related parties FEU R 3E 75 5K IA 5,578 324

Advance to employees BARTREE 1,384 1,412

Franchise fee FRTic e & A 445 283

Debenture BEEE 335 347
Other receivable from a former = gl NSNS R E]

subsidiary — 15,711

Others Hib 3,786 5,708

Subtotal INEF 34,177 42,489
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

23 Derivative financial instruments

23 fTHEE€mMTIA

As at 31 December

W12H831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
(RES EIET))
(FEit)
Current BN HR
Put option on issuance of convertible %% 77 A] % % (& % 28 1 # (a)
bonds (a) 1,029 -
Non-current I BI HA
Put option on issuance of convertible %17 A] 4% % (& % 2 d 1 # (a)
bonds (a) = 634
1,029 634
Notes: B EE -
(@  Derivative financial instruments (@ fTEE@MIA

The balance represented the fair value of the Company’s put option
on issuance of convertible bonds as at the end of reporting period.

On 18 September 2016 and 10 October 2016, the Company and
Sonic Tycoon Limited (shareholders of the Company) entered into an
agreement and a supplementary agreement (collectively, the
“Investment Agreements”) in relation to the issuance of convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount
up to HK$1,500,000,000 for a total consideration equal to the
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The Investment
Agreements was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 13
November 2016.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreements, the Company has the
option to issue all or part of the Convertible Bonds to Sonic Tycoon
Limited at any time during the 2 years commencing from 13
November 2016. As a result, the directors of the Company are of the
view that the above put option constituted a derivative financial
instrument for the Company and should be accounted for as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

BEBERARARS PRETABRE
BHEOREBENA A EE

7201649 A18H K20164 10 A
108 AR EAEARQAREE
TERARABRBITACHEE
1,500,000,000% 7T 2 f] # & & %
([AI 2R (E ) 7T 3L 1 % I 78 1
FREHRD  LREMBAZERZ
SRR ESFZASE - REWHE
2016411 B13HE AR R AR R
Ao

BEREWMHE AQFATEER
20164 11 A 13 A & M F R Ba B 1)
HETHERAFETE2E KL TR
BEH B ARAAEERA L
MBHEEBRARRNITES R
TE YRERIEAARAAEBENER
HESHTALHETNESREEA
EEO
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23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(a) Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The initial fair value of the derivative financial instrument at the
recognition date which amounted to RMB3,101,000 was recognised
as a deemed contribution from shareholder and recorded in
shareholder’s equity on special reserve. Subsequent change in fair
value of the derivative financial instrument is recognised in profit or
loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the derivative financial
statements was determined using the binomial valuation model, and
the key inputs into the model at the balance sheet dates were as
follows:

23

4=

TTESRmI A
Ba ()
(a) eI A (E)

MESHTAERERABENTHA
#t (B & &3,101,0007t A R - #R
ARBREIE WIEARHE
FABRREZ - TESRTARAR
BENEESSHTREETER -

R20175E12 8318 fTEF K HRE
ZARBEDNEAZEXNGHERRN
Br ZEARLEERAZEZEBHA
IR ¢

As at 31 December
M12H831H

2017 2016

Conversion price (B
Share price i (&
Expected volatility TEHK B
Remaining life T 4 5 B

Risk-free rate 2 & B F &

HK$1.180 HK$1.180
1.1807& T 1.180/% 7T
HK$1.300 HK$2.010
1.3007%& T 2.010/8 T
17% 19%

0.87 years 1.87 years
0.87 4 1.874F
1.02% 1.08%
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23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds

The major terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds are as
follows:

0}

(ii)

(iif)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate:

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds
at 3% per annum.

Conversion price:

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s
shares at the initial Conversion Price of HK$1.18 per share,
subject to adjustments. The Conversion Price will be subject
to adjustment for, amongst others, consolidation, subdivision
or reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

Availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years commencing
from 13 November 2016 and neither party will have the right
to extend.

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible
Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the
seventh anniversary of the date of issue.

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and
cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible Bond at
an amount equal to the principal amount on the maturity
date, plus accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or
outstanding under the Convertible Bonds which remain
unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not redeem
the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption
on delisting as described below.

3 fTESMI AW
MEsE - (48)
(b) AR ES

AR E S 2 X B ER AR NT

@M FE:
KRR BB E N R 3% 2 4 A L&
HZRE .

(i) BRE:

ARk ESE AR S ERESR
118 L EHAARNR AR - A A
THE- @;%ﬁ—fﬁ%‘a\l(ﬁqﬂ’?
BB & 6 IR EHR S E
Mt FEEERE BRDIK - J&%\‘
R ) RS R H A E
7o BENEARE R M RRETEM
El

(i) ARARITARKRESZERH

RARBITABRRES 2B XA
2016¢11 A13B BT AHMF - £
fAl—FHEELEER -

(i) FHA

BENRBRESENOTAS &
(BESHEARE)%TEEN £
B

(iv) ZIEjEE[E

BRIEEMCED BHRRUBE R
e ARFHRE A ER A SR
BF RERIHPANLTEHE
5 00 A] R % 55 B AT A S R B HR
BADR XA 8 P B B Al R SR (B
BRIE - ARRNGEDH B AE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

23 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Convertible bonds (Continued)
v) Redemption at the option of the bondholder
(1) Redemption on change of control

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the
bondholder will have the right at its option, to require
the Company to redeem in whole but not in part such
holder’s Convertible Bonds. The redemption price is
the HK dollar equivalent amount which is the
outstanding principal amount, plus the amount of
interest representing 8% of the internal rate of return
of the principal amount of the Bond from the date of
issue to the payment date (the “Early Redemption
Amount”).

2) Redemption on Delisting

In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be
listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the bondholder shall have the right, at its
option, to require the Company to redeem, in whole
but not in part only, such bondholder’s Convertible
Bonds at the Early Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond at the issue date. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option and
recognised in shareholders’ equity on special reserve.

23 TTES®MIHwm

fst - (%)

(b) TFERRES(E)

v)

EHFEFAEAEERE
(1) 7F 1| 4eE 2 B A5 BE [

@

BAEZREERR A
SRAENGRETRE
ERAQBED2H
(B 3EH D) ZEFF
BARAIB IR E S -
EERAREERESH
WETSESREMNEE
FERTHBENKA
HES A S EAELE R
Tenw M B & &([1R
AEESED -

B 1 B B [

AR AR N BEES
BT E TR
EEBBMXMETR
- AEAFFEAGRE
BITREZERAQAR
RAELOSEBOZE
FEAEANZE(EL
FEERD) WO AT R B B 7

BEFINAABER
BRETT A BRI L FE AT 3
B AR 75 10 T 35 ) K A
8- RAMEHREI R
EHMENERE A
BEBRRESTER -
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23 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during
the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

23 fTES®MIHwm

Mt s ()
(o) THARES (H)

HE0I7TF12A31HIEFE > AJ#
REFAKT D ZEEWT -

Liability Equity
component component Total
8EHD EEBD &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARE TAR® TARE

As at 1 January 2017

R201791 818

Issuance of Convertible bonds (i) BATARRE () 559,522 88,930 648,452
Interest expenses (i) PN () 7,434 — 7,434
Conversion of Convertible bonds (i) B2 0] 2 3% (& 5 (i) (547,020) (88,930) (635,950)
Exchange difference e =5 (19,936) — (19,936)
As at 31 December 2017 M2017512A31H — - -
Notes: B3 -

)

Details of the Convertible Bonds issued and converted during
the year are as follows:

0 ERETRERZTRRE
EREMT

Number of shares

Issue date Principal issued Conversion date converted

EER

BITHH BITAESE HEHBRAH R4 BB

1st issuance 4 January 2017 HK$160,000,000 22 September 2017 135,593,220
B—IRET 20171 R4H 160,000,000 7T 201749 H22H

2nd issuance 31 May 2017 HK$110,000,000 22 September 2017 93,220,339

% IREAT

3rd issuance
FZIRELT

2017%¥5A31H

110,000,000 7T

13 November 2017 HK$480,000,000
2017911 A13H 480,000,000 7T

201759 A22H

13 November 2017 406,779,661
201711 A13H

The interest expense of RMB7,434,000 was calculated using
the effective interest method.

(ii) A B B £ 7,434,0007C A R ¥
DEAEBRMEESE -
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23 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Convertible
Bonds with principal amount of HK$750,000,000 were
converted into 635,593,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
which resulted in an increase in share capital of
HK$63,559,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB53,894,000) and share premium of HK$690,564,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB582,056,000), respectively.

24 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and

short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

currencies:

23

L=

)

feE : (8)

(b)

@I Aum

8K ()

s (&)

(i)

B ZE2017F12A31HEEE &
4 % A750,000,0005% 7T /) 7] 5%
& % B #1% A X 1 7)635,593,000
BEBEB  BEBRARROEES
il £ 163,559,000 T (18 5 R4
53,894,0007C A R #) 690,564,000
7 70 (18 5 R 49582,056,0007C A K
#) o

24 HERBREEEY

ReRBReSEVEEASEREZ
BEeRRIBBA=ZF@ARURNZ
RERTER - ZEGFHRIRERN TS
FF E N F0.01% = 0.35% (2016 4F
0.01%%E0.35%) 5t & °

RehBReFEMATIERE:

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARH TAR®E
(RESEICE))
(FEi)
usb EV 340,093 15,927
RMB AR 35,048 34,314
HK dollars BT 21,282 53,774
MMK 4T 1,538 4,192
Euro B 55 5
THB =8k 17 52
398,033 108,264
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b T E Y EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

25 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

REHMERNIRE

Investment in wealth management
products

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

RMB’000
TARY

RMB’000

FARE
(RES EIET))
(Zit)

27,000 15,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all
denominated in RMB.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

None of these financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
either past due or impaired.

NARBEAEEEEHFABEZ
CMEEHUARBEE -

UKAREBEAEERZHFABREZ
EREEERTE ETRTHEITHE
PERNKE  TAE—-—FRNER -

WA E - EAERR NS ER B
MA% EE B AREBHABEZ
SRAENEEME -

ZENAABEFEAEEHFAR
BZEREEDREHLRE -
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26 Trade and other payables 26 ENESREMAIE
Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts ENEBESNEMPTEFEZAEESHE
outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average ERFERNISKAZANESE - B 5
credit period obtained for trade purchases is 7 to 60 days. BEZFHRERA7TZE0X -

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY TAR®K

(RESEE))

(E i)

Trade payables (a) BT E SRR @) 73,655 36,504

Other payables and accruals (b) HEmEMZIERIERER®D) 73,823 119,521

147,478 156,025

(@) Trade payables () ERESERXR

The aged analysis of trade and bills payables based on the ENESERREREEREERD
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HRMEBHRZERROTWOT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARK
(RESEIET))
(FEuh)
Not exceeding 30 days THEB30K 61,079 32,638
31-60 days 31E60X 6,938 2,445
61-90 days 61E90K 984 539
over 90 days 90K A F 4,654 882

73,655 36,504
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

26 Trade and other payables (Continued) 26 ENE S K HEMAEG@E
(a) Trade payables (Continued) (@) ERNEZERRu@m
Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies: ENESEAUATIEEE:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARM
(RESEE)]
(Eih)
RMB AR 56,618 32,954
HKD BT 4,616 2,272
usD ETT 12,421 1,278

73,655 36,504
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26 ENEZREMKRIEm@m
b) HENREREIR
-3z

26 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b) Other payables and accruals

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

TARE FARE
(RESEIE))
(Eih)

Wages, salaries and other employee T & -~ & MEM B TEF|

benefits 26,927 31,606
Consideration payable for acquisition U & b} B A 7 FE (B

of subsidiaries (Note 34) (Fff 5£34) - 23,507
Advance from customers and prepaid & F £ zk & 78 1~ F

card 16,387 13,314
Payables for rental expenses ENEEER 14,727 18,217
Payables for renovation costs BT EAE R A 4,905 5,956
Interest payable JEA B 3,501 953
Tax payables (excluding current FER T 1B (1~ 63 45 BN HY

income tax liabilities) Fristi & &) 335 19,183
Others HA 7,041 6,785

73,823 119,521

27 Deferred taxation

The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

Deferred income tax assets BEEMBSHERE
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFMESHEaE

27 EERIE
BEREREE (BE)DTWT :

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® FAR
(RESEIE))
(Zit)

10,805 15,066
(24,584) (24,380)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

27 Deferred taxation (continueq) 27 IE B IE (@)
The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as FRNELEMSHEELHB LML ¢
follows:
Payroll and
accrued Amortization
expenses differences Others Total
IR
EtEA BEE5E Hity ®Et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
TAR®E FTARE TARE TAR®

At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 201651 818 (B k) — 2,395 - 2,395
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss 5t A#B%(RIEZENB) 422 1,202 (35) 1,589
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 =N

(Note 34) (M 5534) 7,979 2,670 466 11,115
Currency translation PE H &

differences 104 (12) (125) (33)
At 31 December 2016 M2016%F12H31H

(Restated) (E k) 8,505 6,255 306 15,066

Acquisition of a subsidiary U B& BT BB &)

(Note 37 (a)(ii)) (M 5E37(a)(i) — 414 — 414
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss &t A%, (R Bz HK) (5,023) 76 373 (4,574)
Currency translation PE 532

differences (101) - - (101)

At 31 December 2017 R20176F12831H 3,381 6,745 679 10,805
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

27 Deferred taxation (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is

7 EERIE @)

FRELERMBHRBEZHBERNT

as follows:

Fair value Fair value

adjustment on change on

intangible investment
assets property Total

BREE REWHE
AABEARZ Q2AEEAR mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FTARY FARY
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) R2016F1 818 (Fif) - (1,370) (1.370)
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 34) U 8% [t & 2 & (M 5:34) (21,800) — (21,800)
Charge to profit or loss RIEE R - (1,386) (1,386)
Currency translation differences PE W A - 176 176
At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 2016412 831 B (Fif) (21,800) (2,580) (24,380)
Charge to profit or loss R =R - (101) (101)
Currency translation differences [E 5 9% - (103) (103)
At 31 December 2017 A2017F12A31H (21,800) (2,784) (24,584)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unutilised tax
losses of RMB29,086,000 (2016: RMB13,833,000) available to
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. Tax loss of RMB 18,713,000 (2016:
RMB 5,906,000) may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB8,061,000 (2016:
RMB4,894,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RBEHR AEEBARANRE
/5 $829,086,0007T A & # (20164 :
13,833,0007T A K # ) LA 85 R K &
Fl o 3R R 2K FE R B i A 7 B 1 0] 7R
A BT A SRS S B R R B 1A
& E o BT 518 3% 18,713,000 A B
# (2016 4F : 5,906,0007T A R #) s 7]
EIR A4 -

BRI ZRRERE - #£200841
A18# - BB R R F7EEUG F
MERZ KRBT TEHMTARTIE - B
FA A 5 (B B 4 PR i) 8 B BT B 1 E R A
B R R RG] g T Em
TR ERE WAV BHRRTERR
SERTEMBERAR R EMN Y
B 4 2 %8 3£8,061,0007T A R # (2016
F 4,804,000 AR M) FHIRIEEF
B o
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REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

Loan from a third party

The amount represent a loan from a former director of the
Company of HK$260,000,000 (2016: HK$260,000,000). The loan
bears interest at 1.25% per annum during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 2.5%). The loan is repayable in September
2018.

Cash flow information

(a) Cash generated from operation

28

29

E=ZFERNR

ZEeEARBARAA —RAES
®) B 260,000,000/ JT (20164 :
260,000,000/ 7T ) © # 201712 A
STALFE  BERERFEFR125E 5t
B (20164 : 2.5%) ° % & Z /A 2018
FOREE-

RERERER
() REXBMBESR

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A1BLLEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARY
(RESEE))
(E)
Profit before taxation B A% A & A 34,704 16,608
Adjustments for: EEEES
Depreciation and amortisation I8 I 20,768 17,341
Amortisation of deferred i RE AT R B 8
government grants (361) (232)
Amortisation of prepaid lease TEATFE & R IA 5
payment (Note 17) (M 5E17) 3,233 1,147
Finance expenses-net (Note 10) B 58 AFE (M FE10) 9,330 5,512
Share of loss of associates JE (L Bk & 2 RS 18 (M 3£ 20)
(Note 20) 2,450 196
Fair value adjustment to derivatives ~ $74 T B/ A R BEFAE
(Note 8) (MisE8) (385) 2,470
Fair value adjustment to investment &£ &E W E N L BEFAE
property (Note 8) (F5E8) (404) (5,545)
Net (gain) loss on sale of non- HEFRBEE
current assets (Note 8) (Uezk), /B8 F 5 (i sEs) (295) 2,184
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBQA KR
(Note 37) (M 5%37) = (28,908)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEWE 5 & H b5 I8
other receivables (), m (21,619) 27,704
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOgm, wd (24,072) 7,474
Increase in trade and other JEH B 5 I H 5 IR
payables 18,366 2,386
Cash generated from operations LEEBEES 41,715 48,337
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29 Cash flow information (continued) 20 HEREREE @
(b) Net debt reconciliation b) FEBHAD
As at 31 December
A12831 8

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000
TAR® TAR®

Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEY 398,033 108,264
Borrowings — repayable B ——FRNEE

within one year (221,000) —
Borrowings — repayable Bk — —FREE

after one year - (228,800)
Net cash/(debt) FHe S (AE) 177,033 (120,536)
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMRESEEDY 398,033 108,264
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEBE-TE (221,000) (228,800)

Net cash/(debt) FEHe S (AE) 177,033 (120,536)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

29 Cash flow information (continued) 29 REREREE @
(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (b) FEGEFAT @
Borrowings. Borrowings.
due within due after
Cash 1 year 1 year Total
—FR —FHE
RE BHER EIHfER =

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
TARE  TAR® TAR®  TARE

Net cash as at M20165F1 B1H 2

1 January 2016 FHE 253,032 — (213,200) 39,832
Acquisition of a subsidiary e B B B A A — (6,250) - (6,250)
Cash flows e (157,838) 6,250 — (151,588)
Currency translation differences 4 & i 28 13,070 - (15,600) (2,530)
Net debt as at M20165F12A31H

31 December 2016 ZEaE 108,264 — (228,800)  (120,536)
Cash flows RWen 299,982 — — 299,982
Currency translation differences 4 [ & £ (10,213) 7,800 — (2,413)
Other non-cash movements ~ E s3I & & §) - (228,800) 228,800 —
Net cash as at R2017%F12831H

31 December 2017 ZERE 398,033 (221,000) — 177,033
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30 Share capital 30 IR
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREA &8
HKD’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: FRAEECI0E T Z LB
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 M20166F 1 A1H 20164
and 31 December 2017 12 A31H X2017%12 A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount Amount
ZEREE ot ot |
HKD’000 RMB’000
FHET FARE
Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE -
At 1 January 2016 and ®2016F1H1H -
31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 825,000,000 82,500 69,055
Shares converted from convertible AMRESER RGN
bonds (Note 23) (Pt 5F23) 635,593,220 63,559 53,894
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 A31 H 1,460,593,220 146,059 122,949
31 Share option scheme 31 BREE
The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was RNAFIRE —BR2011E58188 @
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the B RER DEMEBIREZ (5t
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons. D UNEBHEFRAERAL &
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from BN N AT R B0 ERNBR - I

adoption of such scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021. R2021F5817H @MW ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

31 Share option scheme (continued)

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could
at their discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an
Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any
customer, supplier or adviser as may be determined by the
directors of the Company from time to time to subscribe for the
shares of the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any point
in time. The maximum number of the shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal
value of the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the
date of the grant of the options; and (i) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of the grant of the options.

No share options were granted since the adoption.

31 BRETE w

REBEFE ARREZGEAHBER
ARBRARBHEERAELR 2 A A
AR ZHBRAR(HERR] 2
EAEE EEHEM: R ZmEA
BRARFRXBB LR ZEMESE -
B BB 2 A 2= i)
ARRIRBEAR 2EMNES EE
FERERBEA AR H(vEAR
AEEENTHREZEFMNERS  f#
ERBEER TEREARBERR
AR o

BET2BRESARERE A B
ARNEMN - ERREFIMELZ
BREMSR2ARABRNDEA &
FAREREHTEEBARFE#®
TTRA Z210% © R FERIEBE X BT £ 7
RAERFARBRERLE  BRIVE
1218 A HER FEMMENALZE
BEMERZ&EBARARABRMNEE
TEBARZI2EAMEZ&E—A
ZEBITARBBMDZ1% °

BREINRARRESETZAEH
M (ZHEKRETEREREE R
Bt t+FR XEEBERENT FITE
RIBARFEZHEHR(AE) AT
& BREAESAFELNBNRZ
BRTHRL LAR TR =" &
SEERTEERNIARRARN 2@
1B (i) R R RS BB
BRI 2SR E R hn
REZFLEAHAMAEEXAEBRRT
Frz BRI ZFIERKHIE -

AN AE - 0 8 5 A R
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32 Commitments 32 EE

(@) Operating lease commitments — Group () REHEEARE — &K
as lease RAEAMEA
The Group leases office buildings under non-cancellable AREBRBETAIRENLLHE
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 3 EmEHERAERE-HE
and 10 years, and the lease agreement is renewable at the HRIFE10F HEBZE AT
end of the lease period at market rate. THEIE RS MEERE -
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- BETTRHELELEHEN KK
cancellable operating leases are as follows: SEMBENHEBLOT -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARM FARM
(Restated)
(Eit)
No later than 1 year —F R 43,694 50,545
Later than 1 year and —FUAEERFER
no later than 5 years 90,290 119,436
Later than 5 years REE 15,051 18,445
149,035 188,426
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but NEKREITHBRELANEKR
not yet incurred is as follows: MEHET :

As at 31 December
W12H831H

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR® FAR
(RESEIE))
(Eat)

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEZE 7,747 7,864
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

A\

33 EFEREZEXRZ

33 Transaction with Non-Controlling
Interests

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the major transaction
with non-controlling interests were as follows:

HZE2017F 12 A31 A ILFE - BT

EEm s EFEZHIT

(@) Acquisition of additional interest in a (@ WHEK B 7 %8 /&
subsidiary =

In January 2017, the Group acquired an additional 19%
equity interest in Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co.
Ltd. (“Beijing HHG”) from certain non-controlling
shareholders, for a purchase consideration of
RMB41,000,000(which was paid in USD 5,929,000 and
equivalent to approximately RMB 40,923,000). The Group’s
shareholding in Beijing HHG increased from 60% to 79%
upon completion of the acquisition. The Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB23,087,000 and
an increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB17,836,000. The effect of the above transaction on
the equity attributable to owners of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2017 is summarised as follows:

Consideration paid to non-controlling 3z < 3E 42 f% # 25 89 K (B

R2017F1A AEBEME T
FEBRBRRERBIERME A
EgERERAE(ERAM
AR BEIIMO%KE WER
& /41,000,000 A R (B
¥ 45,929,000% Jt - % A =
740,923,000 A R ¥ ) Ik
BrEAE AEEELERME
B KR #E b ] F60% I8 I =
79% ° ARE BRI LR E S
B 4 23,087,000C A R ¥ K 53
BRARAIEAE AMN LN
17,836,000 T A R# o L2 5
HWE ZE2017F12A31B 1L FE
EEBRANREEANERZ
EEBMmMT

For the year
ended

31 December
2017

BE2017F
12831 H
HEE
RMB’000
FTAR®

interests 40,923
Less: carrying amount of non- B BTURE R AR S A BRI ME

controlling interests acquired (23,087)
Excess of consideration paid REFZEIANENREBEESE

recognised within equity 17,836




178 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

33 Transaction with Non-Controlling 33 EIZERERZRZ @

Interests (continued)

(b) Capital injection into a subsidiary

In March 2017, the Group injected additional capital of
RMB50,000,000 into Beijing HHG and the Group’s
shareholding in Beijing HHG increased from 79% to 82.5%
upon completion of the capital injection, which resulted in an
increase in non-controlling interests of RMB10,500,000
(representing the capital injection attributable to non-
controlling interests) and an decrease in non-controlling
interests of RMB 6,064,000 (representing the carrying
amount of non-controlling interests acquired) respectively.
The effect of the above transaction on the equity attributable
to owners of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017 is summarised as follows:

Increase in non-controlling interests ¥ & 5| #£ &9 JE 422 A% #E 25 1% Hn

(b) AMBEIFEE

R2017F3A - AL B M =
M A A &SN T & 50,000,000 7T
AR MPREEZTKE K
EEEILRFE B8R B
H79% 3% 11 £82.5% + 7 Bl & 2
I #5° B% #E = #8501 10,500,000 7T
AR (BE R BB IEE R
WEEERE) RIEERERR D
6,064,0007C A K& (48 & 7 BT i
BIEEREENEREE) - bat
T ZEEE2017FE12 A318 IE
i}*ﬂ‘&%%ﬁ’\zk"ﬂ%ﬁ}\m%é
TEGMNT

For the year
ended

31 December
2017

B ZE20174%
12H31H
ILEE
RMB’000
FARY

arising from the capital injection 10,500
Decrease in non-controlling interests ¥ & 3| 48 &9 3E 2 IR 4 25 05 >

arising from the capital injection (6,064)
Amount recognised within equity MREZANERZ &5 4,436
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33 Transaction with non-controlling 33 EIZERERZRSZ @
interests (continued)

(c) Effects of transactions with non- (c) ME £E2017F128 31
controlling interests on the equity B b & B 3k 12 %
attributable to owners of the Company B RXSZEBEERARD
during the year ended 31 December AEEANEZNE
2017 =

For the year
ended

31 December
2017

HZE20175
12HA31H
ILEE
RMB’000
FTARM

Changes in equity attributable to KA THEBEZEBRANRNT

owners of the Company arising HEANEREH
from:
— Acquisition of additional — WHEKT B ARz BEINE I (KRR (@)
interests in a subsidiary
(Note (a) above) 17,836
— Capital injection into a — A B RBNESE (E3XH D)
subsidiary (Note (b) above) 4,436
Net effect for transactions with HEERESRZIEHBRAAT

non-controlling interests on equity A AKEZH FFE
attributable to owners of the
Company 22,272
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34 Business combination 34 (K50t

On 15 September 2016, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Ms. Chen Ying (“the Seller”), an
independent third party, pursuant to which Delightful Year
conditionally agreed to purchase and the Seller conditionally
agreed to sell 60% equity interest in Beijing HHG for a cash
consideration of RMB93,120,000 and a deferred cash
consideration of RMB24,290,000, which was paid in October
2017. The acquisition was completed on 31 October 2016 (the
“Completion Date”). Beijing HHG and its subsidiary (collectively,
“HHG Group”) is principally engaged in the business of Chinese
fast food restaurants chain business under “Hehegu” brand in the
PRC.

(a) Consideration transferred

MR2016F9A156H AR B2 EHK B
RAIEFERARABD(EF]) BB
UEZHFRELZE(EFDIVES
W B EFEKHRAEEEM
EFEBRHRBELELLEMEAZ
60% g % + 3R © X {8 /93,120,000 7T
AR KB EH & K& 524,290,000
TARE B R2017F108 2 -
B D R 201610 A31 B ([ HE D)
TR RMEARREN B AR ([
AEAEEDEFEAEFEUMAEA] R
fRfE R BB B TS -

(@ EBEBRE

RMB’000
FARME
Cash e 93,120
Deferred consideration payable FEHIRER (B 23,507

116,627
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34 Business combination (continued)

34 ¥4 8t

(b) ] B W EE B E R A
FEENEIESHE

(b) Recognized amounts of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of net assets of HHG Group acquired as at the MEAREERTHKBENFEFEE
date of completion is as follows: NAEBERAT
Fair value
AREE
RMB’000
FAREE
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ZEN= 1 7,426
Trade and other receivables (i) EUE 5 & E b ZRIE() 27,989
Cash and cash equivalents BehBReEFEEY 24,535
Financial assets at fair value through ~ LAA R EBEFEHAHEZ T AEBRZZ
profit or loss CRMEE 15,000
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NMEE 32,258
Intangible assets-computer software & & — T IE e 1,945
Intangible assets-trademark BRVEE —BE 87,200
Trade and other receivables-non JEUE 5 N E AR08 — JERNERER &
current portion 14,601
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE 11,115
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables BN E S REAMFKIA (72,013)
Tax payable e FLIR (3,452)
Amount due to a shareholder JE BR S 5RIB (6,250)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERHEAaE (21,800)
Total identifiable net assets AR FEERAE 118,554

Note (i): Acquired trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables was RMB
27,989,000, including trade receivables with a fair value of
RMB 5,449,000. The gross contractual amount for trade
receivables was RMB 5,449,000, none of which was

expected to be uncollectible.

BYREQ) : WA IE MR 5 K EL Al 3R0A

BREZREMAKBZ AR
B8 /527,989,0007T A R -
BIE R 7 B 18 A5449,0007T
ARBEZERESER B
WESERZERBREH
% %A /5,449,0007T A R ¥ -
TBEHE AT 2 EpUR E o
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34 Business combination (continued)

(c) Goodwill arising from the acquisition

The excess amount of the cash consideration over the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of HHG Group acquired
by the Group is recognized as goodwill which amounted to
RMB45,495,000 and is considered as the synergy with the
Group and work force that did not meet the criteria for
recognition as intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognized is expected to be deductible for income tax

34 K468t

c) WEELAzEHE

ReNREBBRBAEBENBENS
AEBMAHRBFEEAARE
BreoERRAARE ©8A
45,495,0007T A R ¥ - 15 A 6
REBETHEERNEAERR
EAE BB 2RI E - A
MR CEETNUEMAE

purposes. B o
As at the date
of acquisition
BEWEAMN
RMB’000
FARE
Total cash consideration BIRERE 116,627

Less: total fair value of net assets of Bl : MAREBFEELALBELSE
HHG Group (118,554)

Add: Non-controlling interests innet il : MA& AR EE FEEIFFITREZ

assets of HHG Group 47,422
Goodwill [EES 45,495
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

(d) Cash outflow for the acquisition

(e)

WERELZR2RL 1K

Outflow of cash for the acquisition,

34 ¥% 5 6ta

d WEEELAZRERH

Year ended 31 December
BE12ANALEE
2017 2016

RMB’000
TAR®

RMB’'000
TAR®

net of cash acquired BAZERS®
— Cash consideration paid to the —Y¥NFEHZRENRE
Seller 24,290 93,120
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBEBEARS
acquired - (24,535)
Cash outflow for the acquisition FRAWEBELEZIRESR
during the year 24,290 68,585
Revenue and profit contribution impact e) MARGFERTE

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
were revenue of RMB55,138,000 and profit of
RMB2,893,000 contributed by HHG Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016,
total group revenue for the year would have been RMB764
million, and profit for the year would have been RMB23
million. The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2016, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

MEeEREE B £20165F12A
318 -4 Z &R 2 WA FliE R
2 Bl A55,138,0007C A R # &
2,893,000t A R ¥ o

fig W & =18 B R 201641 51H
T FESEBKAREAT64
BETARYE  mFEHH A
ERBEETARKE - ZE=
ENEHSEPERSE AORKB
N5 B AR R I B 2016 F 1
A1EHZERZERTERES
ZWAREEERE - N TEE
BARREEZTEA -
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iR K 18 F 5 2

35 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined benefit scheme

The Group is a member of a defined benefit scheme which was
open to qualified employees of the Group’s subsidiaries. In
December 2000, all the then existing members of the defined
benefit scheme were enrolled into the MPF Scheme and their
accrued benefits for the past services under the defined benefit
scheme were frozen as at 30 November 2000. The defined benefit
scheme was closed to new employees from December 2000
onwards.

Under the defined benefit scheme, employees are entitled to
retirement benefits varying between 0% and 100% of their salaries
as at 30 November 2000 multiplied by the pensionable service up
to 30 November 2000 on attainment of a retirement age of 55. No
other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment
risk and interest rate risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to the yields of the
Hong Kong Government Exchange Fund Notes; if the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s debt investments.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan
members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an external
insurance company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as
at 31 December 2017 by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current
service cost and past service cost were measured using the
projected unit credit method.

5 E M = 5t E

AEBA—BRENZTEZKE -
ZHEAEAEE HBARIZAEE
iR B Mk o M20006 128 » REF
HATEERZMMAEKEE ER I AR
Berd HRATHRFTE TAE
Bk 7 2 2 7 Fl 2= B 720004 11 A 30
H# R4 o 5 E M 7 5T 21 78 B3 2000
12ARTHESHESNA -

BREARAEFZAE - BERFIE555%
EWZ%%*TWWZLWEHE@

W E 2000911 A30E 2 % B =
0%i1OO%Ti? + A 7 LA & 2= 2000 F
MMANR LB ERKE 2 RS
FE ANEEVFIRELMEKREE
Ao

ZatdlEASEEEREERR W&
BERBR RN ERER -

RERR

REMBBABEZRENLZRER
Eﬁﬁ&l\[%%TﬁZH&/\Iﬁﬁd&EZ
FRERGFE - Wt EE 2 @HFERN
AR BELR BIEH -

BHEMEEESSBNAERE A
- a0 # & B Er BER R E D H|
ZIEEEBMEE -

ERRASKERBCERIMR) X
18 F) 2z 2\ e e S0 BE £R B R R B R4
(O

EEERATANRAERABEZ&E
HBETE T ABEEANEEARA
AIR2017F12 A1 BELRFTE - R E
FlamAERE - Bl 2B RBEK AR
MBERBKATDRABGBEMES
EETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

35 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

35 RKERFE @

Defined benefit scheme (continued) BEF =58l @)
Investment risk (Continued) ®E Rk m)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FIRBAzEZRERIRLOT

2017 2016
Per annum

(SEE

Per annum
E=%:d

Discount rate per annum FEHIE R 1.40% 1.20%

The actuarial valuation shows that the market value of plan assets
at 31 December 2017 was HK$7,960,000 (2016: HK$8,955,000)
and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 329% (2016:
235%) of the benefits that were accrued to members. The surplus
at 31 December 2017 of HK$5,541,000 (2016: HK$5,138,000) is
to be cleared over the estimated remaining service period of the
current membership of 1 years (2016: 2 years).

BETMB R 8 EER2017F12
A318 z ™&E %&7,960,000% T (2016
F:8,9550008 L) MZFEELZ
BEEABADHAERFTEKEESF
2 329% (2016 4F : 235%) ° FA2017
F12H31H 2 & #% /5,541,000 7T
(20164 : 5,138,000/ 8 L) SRR A &
FEW1E (2016 5F 26 ) (HT R RS
FHNEE -

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows.

ReEHRasHERZEBZERER
At B RIALT -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
(RESEIET))
(Ea)
Net interest income FH B YA 53 32
Component of defined benefit assets ~ RiBzEF R 2 R TR EE
recognised in profit or loss 48 B B 10 58 32
Remeasurement on the net defined AENREEFEIENTE
benefit assets: 293 315
Return on plan assets (excluding FEEERR(TIBIEEEA
amounts included in net interest A EF FREHIE)
expense) 3 28
Components of defined benefit assets R EMEEWFFHERZ RE
recognised in other comprehensive Flax & EAKI G
income 296 343
Total &5t 349 375
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35 Retirement benefit schemes (continued) 35 EKREFETE @)

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) REF=ZGE @)
Investment risk (Continued) ®ER B @

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial BIAGEVERRERPAEEBNR
position arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined EMBZERBHAE 2 AERES 2
benefit retirement benefit plan is as follows: BEENR

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

(RESEIEE))
(Eit)

Present value of funded defined benefit SR E Fl| & & 2 IBE

obligations 2,056 3,359
Fair value of plan assets FrEIEEZAREE (6,766) (7,880)
Defined benefit asset ATEMNREE (4,710) (4,521)
Movements in the present value of the funded defined benefit FRNRENSZIAHEREZEHOT .

obligations in the current year were as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FAR% FARK

(Restated)

(Eat)

Opening balance F U 3,359 3,142
Interest income R B WA 18 16
Benefit paid RESEES (1,225) -
Actuarial losses BHEEE (©)} (28)
Currency translation difference PEH =% (93) 229

Closing balance F R4 2,056 3,359
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35 Retirement benefit schemes (continued) 35 EBIAEBEREE @

Defined benefit scheme (Continued) BREF =58 @)
Investment risk (Continued) ®E Rk m)
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year FRNFENEEALBEAZEBHNOT -

were as follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FARK

(Restated)

(FEa)

Opening balance F Y44 7,880 6,994

Interest income B WA 71 48

Benefit paid =ESEES (1,225) -

Actuarial gains 158 IR = 293 315

Currency translation difference PEH =% (253) 523

Closing balance FRE % 6,766 7,880
The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting HEBERBREH R ZTES BN

period are as follows: T

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
TAR® TAR®

(RESEE))
(Eit)

Debt instruments BEBEITA 6,766 7,880
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35 Retirement benefit schemes (continued) 35 ERHKRERETE @)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Investment risk (Continued)
The plan assets do not include any equity shares in the Company
or property held by the Group.

The fair value of the above debt instruments is determined based
on quoted market price in active markets.

The Group also operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes monthly the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of the
relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of the
PRC. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

RENZF 8 @)

RERRE @
HEAETEBEADEZRARS
REEEIEE 2 ME -

EREBTRZAABETIREEE
5 P #R T (B 1 O

REBSMBRERNEERERIL B
BEEAE LA CEERARHE
ZEEDHAFAE XHAXFEAES -
£ B A 98 15 & &t & 1 501,60078 7T
HEBEBAFMAAR 25% AREE
RE) MEER ZHRLXRBER - A%
BzhBENBAR 2 EREDRTEK
FERsBERKEBHTEHZKE -
AEBEBERFHAIZETEDLR
RIREHFEHK A EEHBEHR
RBENFBZ2EERIEHETE 2 #

Eo
A °
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36 Related and connected party 36 BHEREEIRZIEE
disclosures
(@) Transactions with other related parties () BEMEBEBERS
The following transactions occurred with related parties: BB ABEENTRS

Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions 2017 2016
BB S A8 RES REME

RMB’000 SSRMB000
TARYE BT

Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Issuance of convertible 648,452 —
bonds
EZHERAF (SN BITAIRRES
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest on convertible 7,434 —
bonds
BEZERAA [S¥/NC] AR ESFE
Lee & Man (International) A company beneficially ~ Management fee income - 262
Investment Limited owned and controlled received
(Note) by former director

Wenen Lee (Mr. Lee).
BY(BBRIKRERRRD HAIEFFEREE DWREBERA

&) (P 5E) (FxREDNERESR
&L /Nl
Capital Nation A company beneficialy ~ Corrugated cardboard - 467
Investments Limited owned and controlled and carton boxes
(Note) by Ms. Lee Rosanna purchased
Man Lai, a daughter of
Mr. Lee
Capital Nation Investments FIZ %4 2 X ZZ X E BE R KR R KHE
Limited (P &%) TTERERREH
/N
Lee & Man Realty A company beneficially  Licence fee paid - 1,063
Investment Limited owned and controlled
(Note) by Mr. Lee
BYEXERRADA HELFEEREAR BRNEAEE
(P &E) ik i d/NC]
Note: The above companies ceased to be related companies of the Mfsr - Pt AR BE2016%E6 B3R T H A

Company since 3 June 2016. NG ) NGRS
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36 Related and connected party 36 EHEENBEEIFRIEE
disclosures (continued) ()
(b) Outstanding balances arising from b) EEABAIXIELEN
transaction with related parties KREZEEER
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the TR T 5 HEEN SRS
reporting period in relation to transactions with related RIMEBARE KL
parties:

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TARKE
Other receivables from associates R BB A A HH MR 5,578 324
(c) Compensation of key management c) EEEEEMWS
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMFTEEEEBRKER
management during the year was as follows: FRZMEWT :

As at 31 December
M12H831H
2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000
TAR® TAR®

Short term employee benefits EEETREA 6,001 4,669
Post employment benefits R K18 12 F 233 62

6,234 4,731




agzraRAr" —2=—+a4x 191

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

b T E Y EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

37 Particulars principal subsidiary of the 37 KRB Z2EEME A A
company FH1F

(@) xrmzEEHEAAR017

FR2016F12H31H 27F B W

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

FE AR LR 3L it B
kB H

Issued and fulling paid
share capital/registered
capital
ERTRMEZRE
it it & 4

Name of company Principal activities

DR EH

ETREHR

REERFREBAOA

Dongguan Deluxe Handbag
Manufacturing Limited*
(Note i)

REERFRAERRQA
(P 1)

REREFRARAR

Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag
Company Limited* (Note i)

RERETRERAA
(Pt 1)

REFBFRERAA
Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag
Co. Ltd* (Note i)
REFBEFREBLA
(B &£

REBEFRERRT
Dongguan Wei Hua Company
Limited* (Note i)
REREFRERRF
(B 1)

Harvey Handbags Company
Limited

Harvey Handbags Company
Limited

Lee & Man Company Limited

BIXFTER AR

Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand)
Company Limited

Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand)
Company Limited

The PRC
11 January 2012

FE
2012%1 3118

The PRC
25 February 2014

E
201442 251

The PRC
25 September 2009

HE
2009F9A25H

The PRC
28 January 2014

T
201441728 R

Myanmar

19 August 2015
e

2015F8 A 19H

Hong Kong
21 November 1978

A
197811 A21H

Thailand

11 November 1997
s

1997 F11 A11 8

Paid-in capital
HK$1,000,000

BRAXR
1,000,000 7T

Registered and paid-in
capital HK$10,000,000

i R E kAR
10,000,000 7T

Registered and paid-in
capital HK$6,000,000

A R E B AR
6,000,000 7T

Registered and paid-in
capital HK$10,000,000

A B A A
10,000,000/ 7t

Registered and paid-in
capital USD1,500,000

GRITNSE TV
1,500,000 7T

Ordinary 100%
HK$1,000,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$1,000,000

&AM 100%
1,000,000 7T
EREREERD
1,000,000 7T

Ordinary Baht 30,000,000

&3/ A% 30,000,000 %= &k

™
Attributable equity
interest held by the
Group
rEEREZ
FE 45 B A B 22
2017 2016
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Manufacture and sale

g RHE
Manufacture of
handbags
BEFR
Manufacture and sale
of handbags
BERHEEFR
Manufacture of
handbags
BEFR
Manufacture of

handbags
HEFR

Manufacture and sale
of handbags

HERHEFR

Property holding in

Thailand
REBFAYE
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REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017412331H L FE

37 Particulars principal subsidiary of the
company

37 AAFAZEEWEAT

(@) (continued) (@ @

Place and date of
incorporation/
establishment

SEM AR 3L R 3L 3t B
RBH

Issued and fulling paid
share capital/registered
capital
BRTRAZKAE
M EA

Name of company
DEER

Principal activities

FEEXR

*

Lee & Man Handbag
Manufacturing Limited
Company

BEXFREARAT

Lee & Man Management
Company Limited

BXEEFR AR

LRMERERERERAA

Beijing HHG Restaurant

Management Co. Ltd. (‘Beiing

HHG")

LENaREREEERA

ALRNas))

REMEAERERBRAT

Tianjin HHG Restaurant
Management Co. Ltd.

REMERERERAR
A7)

REMEFRERRBERAA
Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye Food

Co. Ltd (Note ii
REMEREEERRAR
7 &) (B i)

Hong Kong
20 August 1976

&5
19768 420 H

Hong Kong
24 November 1992

BH
1992F 11 A 248

The PRC
2 December 2003

HE
200312 A2H

The PRC
11 September 2013

FE
2013F9A11R

The PRC
19 June 2014

FE
201466 A 191

English name for identification purposes only.

Notes:

)

(i)

Ordinary HK$10,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$500,000

Tk
10,0008 7T
BRZEETRG
500,0003% 7T

Ordinary HK$2

EiER2ET

Registered and paid-in
capital RMB10,000,000

AR ERE AR
10,000,000 7T A R #

Registered and paid-in
capital RMB500,000

Al R B E AR
500,0007C A K 1

Registered and paid-in
capital RMB27,368,400

R E R ER
27,368,4007T A R ¥

The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprises.

This group entity is newly acquired during the year ended 31
December 2017 without operation and was accounted for as
an acquisition of the related assets rather than a business

combination.

Manufacture and sale
of handbags

HERHEFR

Provision of
management and
administration
services

REERERITHRK

%

Chinese fast food
restaurants chain

FEBEHREE

Chinese fast food
restaurants chain

FEEHREE

Chinese fast food
restaurants chain

hEEHERE S

ES @R %I

Attributable equity
interest held by the
Group
rEBEFELZ
P15 R A £
2017 2016
100% 100%
100% 100%
87.5% 60%
87.5% 60%
94% N/A
TiEm
B 5

ZERBNIIEBE L ER

A -

ZEBEEETIRNEE2017F
12A31R I FEHUE I
BICEER WARABKE
HEEEMEEBS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

37 Particulars principal subsidiary of the
company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for HHG
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to
the group. The amounts disclosed for HHG Group are
before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

37 ARAZ2ETEHNE R F

EX-10)

(b) FEZERER

TXRIMNEARE G HBA
HEE ZEEEEHAED
kel EPNCETEY  FoR s
AP EE S A 7 RE
AR -

EEREREE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000

TAR®E TARY

Current assets BB E 175,432 83,662
Current liabilities NBEE (89,719) (88,599)
Current net assets REBEEFEE 85,713 (4,937)
Non-current assets ERBEE 188,818 149,819
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (59,667) (23,369)
Non-current net assets AR EERSE 129,151 126,450
Net assets FEE 214,864 121,513
Accumulated NCI SR IEERER 37,601 48,605
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REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

37 Particulars principal subsidiary of the
company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (continued)

37 ARAZ2ETEHNE D F

EXAC))

(b) JE 2 B% #E &5 ()

Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HUERFBE
income
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARK
Revenue W A 409,524 55,138
Profit for the year FREF 31,257 3,612
Other comprehensive income TR = —
Total comprehensive income 2HEIRFEEE 31,257 3,612
Profit allocated to NCI A 3 22 iR 4 % 9 BE /9 s 5,398 1,183
Dividends paid to NCI TAT IR R A AR B = -
Summarised cash flows REREWE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARK
Cash flows from operating activities & & EEFFEH SR E 65,387 14,447
Cash flows used in investing activities & & EE AR SR E (74,236) (3,951)
Cash flows from/(used in) financing  REEEEFTE(FFA)BRERE
activities 50,382 (4,226)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESESEYEMBEE
equivalents 41,533 6,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

38 Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 1 December 2016, the Group and an independent third party
entered into a sale and purchase agreement where the Group
agreed to dispose its entire equity interest in Pernelle Development
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Pernelle Group”) for a total consideration of HKD30,000,000. The
Pernelle Group is principally engaged in sale of handbags.

38 HEMKE QA

PR2016F 12 A1H » AEBE—£53
VE=ZFINEEWRE Bt A&
E [ = i & H % Pernelle Development
Company Limited & £ Hf & 2 7] (41 18
[Pernelese B |) 2 2 & ik #e - B E
/£30,000,000/% JT ° Pernelle s B = &
MEHEFE-

RMB’000

FARE

Cash consideration received EWBRBELSKRE 25,926

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEBRGIECEERERS
control was lost kil

1 Dec 2016

20165 12H1H

RMB’000

FARE

Property, plant and equipment YE - R NERE 6,076

Inventories FE 5,049

Trade and other receivables JEUNE 5 Kk B b FkIB 8,336

Cash and cash equivalent RehBeEFEY 758

Trade and other payables FEREB 5 RHEMFKIEA (23,201)

Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFEE (2,982)
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REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

38 Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued) 38 LHEMKE QR @
Gain on the Disposal HESE KR

For the year
ended

31 December
2016
HZ2016512
AIBHLEE
RMB’000
FARY

Consideration KB 25,926
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEFEE 2,982

k

Gain on disposal H & U 25 28,908

E\

Cash inflow arising on the Disposal HESHEFELERERA

For the year
ended

31 December
2016

B Z2016F12
A31BLEE
RMB’000
FARE®E

Cash consideration received BUWEIR € R (E 25,926
Less: bank balances and B BEHERTERLERS
cash disposed of (758)

25,168
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AR A B R 2R MY EE )

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

9 APRFEEEBRER

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement

of the company EHEE
Balance sheet of the Company APBEERER
As at
As at 31 December 31 January
MW12A31H M1A31H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY TFARK FAR®
(RESEWCE)) (RESEICE))
(E) (Eit)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investment in subsidiary WEARIEE
— investment cost — I E KA 15,802 16,361 15,245
— assets due from subsidiaries — R 577,203 198,281 31,381
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K E M zE — 15,711 —
Derivative financial instrument fTEemIA — 634 —
593,005 230,987 46,626
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeZEED 285,116 38,901 195,385
Trade and other receivables B E S Kk EAMFRIA = - 346
Derivative financial instrument TESRMIA 1,029 — —
286,145 38,901 195,731
TOTAL ASSETS EEHRE 879,150 269,888 242,357
CURRENT LIABILITY REAE
Other payables H b FEA 5RIB 4,601 5,701 1,252
Amount due to subsidiaries FEAT T B A R 5K 1,293 - -
Loan from a third party FE=FHER 200,600 — —
206,494 5,701 1,252
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REMBHRERHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

39 Balance sheet and reserve movement
of the company (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

39

AEEEEXRER
$E) ()

AEEERERM@®

/)

R b

PN
%
zx

As at

As at 31 December 31 January
R12H31H M1A31H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TFARE FARE

(RESEIE)) (RESEIET))
(FEuh) (FEuh)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREBEME
Loan from a third party F=ZHEX - 228,800 213,200

= 228,800 213,200
TOTAL LIABILITY EERHE 206,494 234,501 214,452
CAPITAL AND RESERVE EAXREE
Share capital B& 2 122,949 69,055 69,055
Reserves B 549,707 (33,668) (41,150)
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 672,656 35,387 27,905
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EERERAR 879,150 269,888 242 357

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 7 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf:

Zhao John Huan
HIE
CHAIRMAN
FE

ARNalBEERABREN2018F3A7
AgESeE WA TIESEARK
FE

Wang Xiaolong
EhE
DIRECTOR
EBF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBHRERME @

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017412831HILFE

39 Balance sheet andreserve movement 39 XAAREEEBRKf#

of the company (Continued) HE @

Reserve movement of the Company AXATREEEH
Retained Other
earnings reserves Total
REEF H i B #at

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®E TAR®E TARE

At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 201661 A1 (Fu) 351 (41,388) (41,087)
Profit for the year F N F 4,431 _ 4,431
Deemed contribution from shareholder 18 & I& 51 & - 3,101 3,101
Currency translation differences 0 5 2= 28 - (163) (163)
At 31 December 2016 A2016%F12831 H 4,782 (38,450) (33,668)
Profit for the year F R A 617 - 617
Issuance of convertible bonds BT B ES — 88,930 88,930
Shares converted from convertible A N ESFE R 2 I’ 5

bonds — 493,126 493,126
Currency translation differences E W =% — 702 702

At 31 December 2017 M2017512A831H 5,399 544,308 549,707
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
FARE TFTARE FTARE FTARE TAR®E
(RESEE)]
(Eat)
RESULT E
Revenue 3 652,799 647,721 529,260 477,587 751,801
Profit before taxation B B BT 5 F 63,221 26,642 12,471 16,608 34,704
Income tax expenses Fri8®i sz (5,411) (191) (4,427) (6,739 (14,018)
Profit for the year F I i 7 57,810 26,451 8,044 9,869 20,686

2013
RMB’000

TARK

At 31 December

2014
RMB’000
TAR®

M12A31H
2015
RMB’000
FARS
(RESE )]
()

2016
RMB’000
FARY
(Restated)

(Fa)

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES &EERE&®&E

Total assets BAERE 309,632 311,300 507,546 722,250 1,325,752
Total liabilities BB (96,040) (87,199)  (275,917)  (419,126)  (399,890)
Net assets BEFE 213,592 224,101 231,629 303,124 925,862
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY
hxERBEH

Investment Property REYE

Group’s
Location Area Use ownership
1t B mHE Az SEEEE
No. 189 Chachoengsao-Nakornratchasima Road, 16,194 square wahs Held for capital appreciation 100%

Lad-Takien Sub-district, Kabinburi District,
Prachinburi Province

16,194F 751 HFEAREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT
BR - MERELIRS

About the Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“the Company” or
“We”) to review and summarize the Company’s ESG work in 2017. The
reporting scope includes the ESG work of Beiing HHG Restaurant
Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. ("HHG”); Dongguan Deluxe Handbag Manufacturing Limited,
Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company Limited, Dongguan Lee Wai
Handbag Co., Ltd., and Dongguan Wei Hua Company Limited (“Lee &
Man”) in the mainland of People’s Republic of China. The Report covers
the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. The information
disclosed by this Report is the “general disclosures” and the
environmental KPlIs set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities released by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.

ESG Management System
ESG Philosophy

Harmony. It is the Company’s ESG vision to realize harmonious
coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and actively
fulfill corporate social responsibility, and strive to build a harmonious
relationship between the Company and the environment, employees and
the society through our constant efforts.

Team Cooperation. Team cooperation is a clear guideline for the
Company to achieve good ESG performance. As the Company’s
businesses include both the catering industry and the manufacturing
industry, it is faced with more complicated challenges in ESG
management. As a result, the Company can only realize its vision of
harmony through team cooperation.

Scientific management. It is the effective way for the Company to
realize good ESG performance. The company sticks to promoting
scientific management methods to create a more efficient ESG
management model.

B R AN &

AFERERIEBRER QA (BREIAR]K
(BB —_T—tFRE deRERT
EM B EHEAE BEHBEBREETNLER
MEAEBREEBRARALRKEMAEALE
HRBERABI(EBEIEAD) ExE2RF
RBRAE REREFRERQAA R
EMNEBERAFTERRZEREFRER QA
(BWIEXHDAEFERAEMNRE T8k
BERIEBR - HEHAR20I7TF1A1AE
201712 A31H - "I|EFEBE AR B(EH
BAERXSHMERDBES EmRADKE27
RS g RERMEEID—KE
BIRERRBERENEZIZEE -

RE #ERER/BRR
RE #H#ERERER

Mg -BRERFERESOHMHERE RN
AREBERRE HEREARARFRENHE
BRES HMAREMESMBETERLS
BEE - FE2BEBESNTHE N HEXE
HIRG BETUARMEZHEENMERR
ZRE -

BEEE - BRI ERARAERETR
B HEREARFRANBEL - K
AAEGHERBEEREEIER  ER
B-HekERTFEIEEEEESEM
BWkE - AEBBEARRCHEKRS E-
TRBEREENEARZOERS -

MBEEBE -MEEEEARAERRE
HEREARBRENAMEE - AQF
ERELEANBAENEEN L EtMAE
EMRMNERE HEREREERA -
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ESG Management Structure

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HERERET@

RE HERERRE

In order to effectively promote ESG work, the Board of Directors is & 7 BhEHEIBELeREATE &5
responsible for ESG strategy formulation and ESG direction; the @& EB5BIE HeREARHBEHNE TN
management of HHG and that of the Lee & Man create ESG plans and AR EZE : MEANEXEEE A QAR
manage their own ESG work; at the same time, all departments carry out 35 - i@ R &8st 2 Mm4l T & - Y& 548
specific work to ensure the implementation of ESG work.

Stakeholder Engagement

BMIERTERE: AN & GE8&HM
R BERBTENRITE  BERRE
HERERTHENER-

MEEEE SR

In order to effectively identify the major stakeholders of the Company’'s & 7T E RS BICEEZLH A LN ETEF R

businesses and their key expectations,

the Company proactively R HF R HEBEFRK AR H S A=

identifies the stakeholders. We have established a variety of B F#ETREMBER - HMEL T 2L
communication channels to increase the participation of the stakeholders MEREE  MINMNBEEEINL2EE -
to provide valuable and constructive ideas and suggestions for our {FF|ZABEAHFERFANERIEEHESH -
development. On this basis, we can establish a long-term effectve HEZ U E R MEE WAL ER -

mechanism for ESG development.

BUYRRRE HERELBERAORABN

el o
Major Stakeholders Key Expectations Ways of Communication
FENMZEHEBES FEFR BERK
Government and regulators o Compliance operation Major conferences, policy consultations, institutional
BT R EEE g ° BRESE inspections, official exchanges, information disclosure
o Compliance with laws ERLHE HERBH BBEZR AXEXR-EFE
. BREE 5
° Energy conservation

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Employees
BT

o ERBERBE

o Investment returns

o  KEMW

Annual reports and announcements, meetings
FRRAE - B

o Transparent governance

e E S8 % AR

° Remuneration and benefits Employee satisfaction survey, labor union, employee
e HBIER activities

o Career development EImEERAE ITg EIEF

. BEERE

° Labour rights
. HBTIREH
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BRE HERERET@

Major Stakeholders Key Expectations Ways of Communication
FERNEHEES FEHRR BERK
Suppliers o Fair competition Visits, Conferences, Telephone calls and Emails
HIER J AR RmES g% BRI
° Integrity
e HE
° Common development

Clients and customers
RPEEEE

Community
)

During this reporting period, through multi-channel stakeholder
communication, comprehensive management recommendations,
analysis of internal and external experts, comparison of the topics in the
“ESG Reporting Guide”, and the use of a two-dimensional matrix, to

o HAHR

. Service value

e RBEE
° Product responsibility
e EmEMHE

° Product responsibility
. BB ALR &

° Community development
o e R

° Public warfare activities

determine the focus of work and report.

High /5

PRIz N EIRE

Influence on external stakeholders
E‘

&5

Low &

A, A

Face-to-face communication, Telephone calls and
Emails

3 2% R MBI

Visits, Donation and other Charitable activities,
Corporate presentations and internship opportunities

B BREAREP2E CEXTBELREEHRE

REF  ARBBRIBNAMABESTZR
BERE FAEEERZE ANBERD
o WHCGRE e RERBERESDP
MEE B _HEMBERSRITIN
BH-

A Environment Aspect 3z 5 & Tl
A1 Emissions A2 Use of Resources A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Influence on the Best Food

HEEERD

ABERY A2BIRIER ABIRIBRARARER

A\ B Social Aspect it & [E &

B1 Employment B2 Health and Safety B3 Training and Development

B4 Labour Standards  B5 Supply Chain Management ~ B6 Product Responsibility
B7 Anti-corruption B8 Community Investment
B1 (&% B2 i@REL S BIFIEER
B44 TRl BsfHEHREIE B6EMAT
B7TkE)5 BeiERKRE
Highs

yeus
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Environmental Protection

The Company attaches great importance to environmental protection. In
the production practices over the years, it has formed a green
development business model. We make good use of resources,
effectively manage waste, and encourage employees, customers,
partners and suppliers to support our environmental protection work.
The Company’s business involve both the catering industry represented
by HHG, and the manufacturing industry represented by Lee & Man, and
the two business sectors made their own management rules, taking into
consideration of the characteristics of operations, so as to ensure
targeted and effectiveness environmental management.

In the course of fuffiling its corporate social responsibility, the company
regards legal compliance as its foundation. The company’s business
sectors strictly abide by laws and regulations in the environmental
aspect, such as the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy
Conservation, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environmental Impact Assessment, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Water
Pollution Prevention. Based on its own circumstances, the company
develops the corresponding management system to achieve its
sustainable environmental development. In 2017, the Company had no
material illegal event in environmental area.

Emissions Management

According to the requirements of relevant laws and regulations as well as
the environmental impact assessment approvals, the Company identifies
and manages the major emissions during production and operation.

The major emission of HHG is non-hazardous waste, including waste oil
and other kitchen waste. In handling non-hazardous waste, through the
purchase of clean vegetables, HHG leaves part of the kitchen waste in its
source area as fertilizer on the spot; also, the waste at stores are
recycled by third-party company; for waste oil, HHG entrusted qualified
third party for recycle, centralized processing, and tracks the
reprocessing process. It not only avoids environmental pollution, but also
makes waste profitable and reuses resources.

BRE HERERET@

RIERE

ARRERRRERE EZFRNEER
Bh ERTHRENERLEEN - KM
EMER BEREEREY UEZBHET
BEP AEBHARBEEAXHRMANR
RIE- RAEBHEREANAEA /K
RHNERXENBEX/RERNRER MW
REBRRGEAEGEBELEH  HE
EEGE ERREERETE TIENOHYH
1 BA R

NREIERITREEMEEENBEF B4
FEEBRIERLHE 2R RAIZ EBIRR
UERETREREZBRBENZEZEZR B
F(REAREMBERBREZE) (REA
EAMBIEG A EERE) (hEARLRE
REZENER) (PEARANEEE
FEWARRBERE) (PEARALME
KRG REE  WIREBEBEFHIBER -
EHENERGE BERAFNREERWY
AFBEER -2017TFE ARAERRE
R EERBEESM -

FBUEE

REBEVEERER/RNRFILBBESR - QA
HEERELZBETHIZHRYE
ERER REE-

MEANTIEFBMARETERY 25
BEHREMERNR  EEEEZDNE
@t’ﬁAﬁiLﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂéﬁ%

MOEFNFBEET REM R ERE
Mkyﬁﬁﬁéiﬁﬁﬂégmﬁm@ﬁ
B BRER MEAZRTEEEENS
SHHEMEEEMBERETDR  SHE
2 WIRMEEE R B R BREIERRE B
BETRESR BRHBHEAE BRE
RE B A

—z—rgegeng 205
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HERERET@

Lee & Man established EHS management committee. In operation, Lee
& Man continuously increases environmental protection investment and
supervision, requires that pollutants should be properly handled and
used in accordance with regulations to ensure that they will not affect or
damage the environment, and continuously promotes the concept of
environmental protection. The major emissions of Lee & Man are non-
hazardous and hazardous waste, waste gas and wastewater. Among
them, hazardous waste mainly includes waste glue and waste water
barrels; non-hazardous waste includes waste materials, waste packages,
and domestic waste. For hazardous waste, Lee & Man entrusts qualified
collector for recycling; whereas for non-hazardous waste, they are
classified and recycled: domestic waste is transported to fixed municipal
recycling sites, and waste materials and waste packages are collected
and recycled by waste vendors. The factory strictly follows the
requirements set out in the environmental impact assessment document
approved by local environmental protection bureau, to process waste
gas produced from procedures such as painting and spraying. Lee &
Man fills in a large amount of activated carbon in the back of the organic
exhaust gas purification devices to absorb VOCs pollutants generated
during the foaming and painting procedures, and the waste gas are
exhausted only when they are purified and meet the emission standards.
In terms of wastewater treatment, Lee & Man uses a combination of
biochemical and physicochemical treatment to remove suspended solids
from the wastewater and to reduce the concentration of organic
pollutants and chromaticity in wastewater. The treated water quality
complies with the first-grade standard of Integrated Wastewater
Discharge Standard (GB8978-1996) and the first-grade second-term
standard of the Land of Water Pollutant Emission Limits of the local
standard in Guangdong Province.

Resources Management

With the improvement of the environmental awareness of the whole
society, in recent years, the company has adopted a series of
environmental protection move, and the concept of energy conservation
runs through the entire production process.

BYHITEHS(RR -BEERELE)ELE
o EEM L BXTEHENREARE A S
EB REHRBSEMNCERNERR
FEMEEMER BRI TERBER
HORBEEERRES  EXHEEHNN
MEBERBEEEEY BRAEK H
FEEEEYTIZREERBK . BEKE
L. BEEEVREEAN BEXNAE
ENRE - HEBAEEEY BEXETE
BEMEKRESE —EITE R EERE
EYRDEERE: EENREXEMHE
R U B 2 AR R EE AR R e R A —
ETEREE - B T HESZBEM AR
RERIMHEBEE R HEAEERERETLR
ELANBERETEE - BEXEAERERF
fEEBRIER RKEE TN - B AR E
B RERE T RFATESREE RS RVOCS
SR FE B EERERYE R - K
I F BN AEERKEAERNYE
BRIELIF  AREKFHEZY  WEK
KB BEHRSEY CENRE  KEB%
KK E A C5KER A HERUEZ %) (GB8978-
1996) — AR 2EFN & 3R & th J5 1% ECOK 5 2
WHERRE)E BB — iz .

ERER

BEE2HERFRBENREN OFHK A
BIRRENT —RIRMRE  EREE
REBELELEBIED -

A & go
o B 5F

i B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

HHG practices the concept of effective resources consumption in every
detail. Starting from 2016, all the new stores of HHG used LED lights,
and the existing stores are gradually replacing with LED lights. By the
end of 2017, 70% of all stores had been equipped with LED lights, which
greatly conserves energy. At the same time, HHG is installing smart
faucets for all new stores, so that “water stops flow out when people
left”, which greatly reduces water consumption. In addition, all HHG
stores is practicing low-carbon operations through pioneering in the fast-
food industry to use of melamine chopsticks to replace disposable
chopsticks and to use recyclable porcelain tableware such as bowls,
saucers and spoons. In order to encourage employees to conserve
resources and cultivate their awareness of environmental protection,
HHG optimized the method of employee assessment in 2017, by
connecting employees’ performance salaries with the operation costs of
stores. The cost savings of stores are paid proportionally as bonuses for
staff as incentives for resources conversation.

Lee & Man takes a variety of measures in energy saving. In order to save
electricity, the utilization rate of the energy-saving lamps in Lee & Man
has reached 100%. The factories also require that air conditioning
temperature should be set no lower than 26T in summer, and no higher
than 20T in winter. Employees are also told to keep the door closed and
turn off all electric appliances in time to reduce heat exchange and
prevent standby power consumption. For water conservation, Lee & Man
automatic control water supply through intelligent card, which minimize
the waste of water. In order to save raw materials, Lee & Man strictly
controls the production process, requires that only qualified products will
be further processed. At the same time, the most suitable die model is
used when trimming and typesetting, minimizing the generation of
defective products and material waste.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The material impact of the Company on the environment and natural
resources is the emissions and resources use as stated before. In
addition to the management measures mentioned above, we also
actively popularize the concept of environmental protection and energy
saving in the Company and among employees, and promote green
production and green operation, in order to control and reduce the
impact of business activities on environment and natural resources.

BRE HERERET@
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Key Performance Indictors Table BREEMEERX
1. HHG 1. MER
2017 Data
Indicators BE 2017 F H &
Emissions By
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes) /& EREHE A = (BE — M &EE =) (1)’ 9,756.13
GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue BETHARERBHERME/EET) 25.13
(tonnes/RMB million)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) mEEZEYRE (W) 640
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million inrevenue B & T ABEE=EEYEE (/5 & T) 1.65
(tonnes/RMB million)
Energy and resources consumption BEREH
Total energy consumption (MWh) gEREESEE JKER) 12,958.25
Including: Direct energy consumption (MWh) Hod : BEGEREFECRREE)? 173.87
Indirect energy consumption (MWh) fl # 88 ROE FE (JK BB 12,784.38
Energy consumption per RMB million BETWALRERE 33.38
in revenue (MWh/RMB million) kERE/E8T)
Water consumption (tonnes) BFEKE (HE)° 137,159
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BETWAREKE M/ AET) 353.36
(tonnes/RMB million)
Packing materials (tonnes) BE Y () 250
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BETWABREY(E/BET) 0.64

(tonnes/RMB million)

Notes: i
1 Due to its business nature, the significant air emissions of HHG is 1 ERMEAMELERE EXER
GHG emissions, arising mainly from electricity and fuels derived from BEMRREREHER REER
fossil fuels. Its GHG inventory includes carbon dioxide, methane and M AR E(CHNE N RIRE R
nitrous oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide ERBEERE_SMLHR FHEM
equivalent and is based on the “2015 Baseline Emission Factors for SETR-BREREREEZE AL
Regional Power Grids in China” issued by the National Development WMEE25 WREF RER
and Reform Commission of China, and the “2006 IPCC Guidelines W EEZE & T EMQ015 T E &
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories” issued by the 1o E 4B G A ) &M
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). SEE{EMZES e (IPCC) TR w
{2006 % IPCC B R = R 888 B 12
FEVETTIZHE -
2 Direct energy consumption refers to petrol consumption, and is 2 BEEERERERZIEAMER BRI

calculated with reference to the coefficients in the General Principles
for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (GB/T
2589-2008) published by General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the People’s Republic of
China, and the Standardization Administration of the People’s
Republic of China.

FEARANERREEEERR
BREERTEEBREEICERZEY
T2 MCER A e EF & B Bl(eB/T
2589-2008 ) )R B E A & & -
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3 Indirect energy consumption refers to purchased electricity. 3 MEREREEREINGEES -

4 Water consumption is the municipal tap water consumed by the 4 IR E(E PRI B RKFEK
stores of HHG; water expenses of office buildings are included in the E MABKEDSEMESE -
property management fees, so the water consumption cannot be FAKE®BTREBG -
measured separately.

5 Packing materials include cartons, food containers and plastic bags. 5 BREVEBETIEBELME E23HW

BREAE -
Lee & Man 2. EX
2017 Data

Indicators BE 2017 F &

Emissions 23587

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes) & = F 4Pk & (8E — R &E —) ()" 2,735

GHG emissions per RMB million in revenue BELTRAREREBEHNR(E/ EET) 6.92

(tonnes/RMB million)
Hazardous waste (tonnes) BEEEWEE () 0.573
Hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BETWABEEEMBRE (/8T 0.0014
(tonnes/RMB million)
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) EmEREEYHLE () 145
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million inrevenue B & TWAE=EEY e (/5 & T) 0.37
(tonnes/RMB million)

Energy and resources consumption BREH

Total energy consumption (MWh) BEREREEE RRE)? 4,338.51

Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BB ITRARRBERECKERE/E&8T) 10.98

(MWh/RMB million)
Water consumption (tonnes) BFEKE (WE) 414,274
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BETWAEKE M/ BET) 1,048.24
(tonnes/RMB million)
Packing materials (tonnes) By (E)*° 303
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BETRABEY B/ AET) 0.77

(tonnes/RMB million)

Notes:

Due to its business nature, the significant air emissions of Lee & Man
is GHG emissions, arising mainly from electricity and fuels derived
from fossil fuels. Its GHG inventory includes carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in carbon
dioxide equivalent and is based on the “2015 Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China” issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission of China.

EREXHWEERFE EXEZAE
PR RAEREHER RAEMH
EAMBELENEN - RERES
BEeRE_Stm FhMmafE:
A-BERBBRER_SALREE
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2 Energy consumption only includes purchased electricity.

3 Packing materials include cartons and plastic bags.

Emphasis on Talents

We always regard staff as our most important assets, striving to create a
good working environment for employees. We also attach great
importance to the development of staff, and help and encourage them to
give full play to their potentials to realize mutual development of their own
value and the Company’s value.

Legal Employment

On the basis of strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor and so on, we constantly improve the
internal management system and timely revise the Employee Handbook
and the Human Resource Manual. In November 2017, HHG issued the
Labor Rules and Regulations of Beijjing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd which further refines the company’s employment procedures.
The Company adheres to fair and open recruitment irrespective,
effectively protect the lawful rights and interests of workers, and promote
equal opportunities for promotion.

In the aspect of child labor and labor, the Company formulated and
implemented related management rules to forbid using child labor and
forced labor. During recruitment, the Human Resource Department
strictly reviews candidates’ identity cards and education degree
certificates to verify their age so as to avoid child labor. Employees have
to apply and get approval for working overtime, record the corresponding
overtime and pay for it in accordance with national provisions and
compulsory overtime is forbidden. In 2017, there is no child labor or
forced labor.
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RETAERFNITIERRE - HMTER
BETE%R EPUZBBMEESRK
ERABRBEMCEEBENHARR

m

BEER

EE‘&ML#*HF@%@&%‘EE’J% £

EARAMB L EE) RKPEARKME
=aE /Z:>> (BUEERETIRE)SE  HMAT
HEANRNERGE BREIKELF

%)(&ﬁéﬁ%ﬂW#%W'2m7ﬁﬂﬂ'
MERFIEBULRNARAEREEARA

%@ﬁﬁﬂ&%ﬁ_QﬂMTﬂﬂmﬁﬁ
BERE - ATIFARXATE - AF  ATFHE
BES VERELHENSEZEZRTF
LB EFHE -

ARBEIMES I @E: Ar@BHEL

BIRAITHBERESNE BRERLERE
ITReHlEIHRR - £ HEBRES A
NERBEREZRAENFHEL @
BRZEHINE BREBNTIEESEHFA
REABEBEIFKR ZIEHREEIT-8T
IS F AR AL BR A - AL 12 0 B R A
ErTEs TRUBBBERHATR/REILR
HABEMMITE  BEEZL IERFIMITHD
WREE2017TF RAETAHERET
Kog s THIRER -



BREERERAF

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Various Benefits

To attract and retain talents to work for the Company, we provide
employees with various benefits, so that employees can enjoy both
material and spiritual incentives.

HHG provides employee transportation expenses, lunch allowances and
other benefits. It also organize various staff activities regularly, such as
autumn outing, outstanding employees’ outbound travel, the “Assembly”
training camps, so as to promote the staff's work and life balance.

Case: HHG Employees’ Autumn Outing to

BRE HERERET@
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Ulugu Tropical Botanical Garden

In September, 2017, HHG organized the annual autumn outing. This
activity was located at Ulugu Tropical Botanical Garden in the Daxing
District of Beijing. Employees were able to had a tropical amorous
feeling without leaving Beijing. Meanwhile, employees can feel the
pleasure of eco-tourism, and relax themselves to get better prepared
for work.

Case: HHG Outstanding Employees’ Outbound
Trip

In November 2017, HHG organized a high-quality travel of Thailand for
seven days and five nights for employees who had awarded as
outstanding employees for over three years accumulatively. 23
employees were awarded this outbound trip, departing on November
23 and back on November 30 safe and sound. This trip enabled
employees to enjoy the beautiful and exotic scenery.
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Lee & Man provides employees with multiple benefits by building
libraries, stadiums, projection rooms, Internet cafes and other
entertainment facilities for employees. Lee & Man encourages employees
to participate in healthy activities, and to face work and life with positive
altitude. In order to enhance the staff’'s cohesion and experience the
warmth of the company as a big family, the company organizes various
activities, including parties and lucky draws for staffs’ birthday, evening
parties in the Mid-Autumn Festival and Christmas. These activities not
only provide a platform for the amateur to present themselves and
communicate with each other, but also improve employees’ sense of
belonging.

Lee & Man’s Employee Birthday Party
BYBITEA®KS

Occupational Health

Adhering to the “people-oriented” management concept, the Company
strives to provide employees with a healthy and safe working
environment, so as to effectively safeguard employees’ occupational
health and safety. We strictly observe relevant laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety and
Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance. On the basis of
consolidating all the safety work, we actively carry out safety education
and training, publicize the work mode of health and safety, and work
hard to ensure security work.
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Lee & Man Mid-Autumn Festival Party
BYHRRE GBS
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In addition to providing regular physical examination for employees, HHG
attaches great importance to staff safety education and fire prevention
training, and the first class after recruitment is about safety. Moreover,
HHG strengthens cooperation with the fire department. In 2017, HHG
held fire drill at the Shichahai Fire Squadron in Beijing Xicheng District.
The firefighters explained the method and key points to use fire devices
such as fire extinguishers and fire blankets in detail, and employee
representatives practiced in person to master fire-fighting skills. HHG
also regularly popularizes the concept of emergency rescue, so that
employees can master the knowledge and skills of self-help and mutual
aid. For each store, HHG conducts annual professional inspection on
safety. In 2017, 71 independent stores received checks on fire electrical
equipment. At the same time, all stores are equipped with safety officers,
who are responsible for reporting any work-related injury and taking
emergency measures.

Case: First Aid Skills Training

To promote first-aid knowledge and skills, based on the characteristics
of the operation in the catering industry, the Communist Party branch
of HHG publicized and organized first-aid skills training. The training
contents include: unarmed cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR),
obstruction removal from the respiratory tract, the use of automated
external defibrillator, trauma care method (hemostasis, bandage,
fracture fixation, and safe handling), and self-rescue and mutual rescue
during sudden disasters and accidents.

HHG First Aid Training
ME A SR ELE
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Lee & Man has established Factory Health and Safety Committee, and
has developed occupational health and safety management system. The
Occupational Health and Safety Work Guide stipulates that all employees
should wear protective equipment, and protective reminder signs should
be set up in all areas. Lee & Man specifies that new employees should
take part in a three-level, covering the plant-level, workshop-level and
group-level, safety education and training after getting qualification of the
examination. There shall also be a period of internship for employees
who begin work, so as to ensure employees’ safe production. For
employees who are on duty, Lee & Man supervises and educates
employees to correctly use personal protective equipment, and conducts
first aid training every vyear, including artificial respiration and
cardiopulmonary resuscitation. The EHS committee gives full play to its
responsibility of health and safety management by holding health and
safety meetings regularly, checking existing problems in safety
production, and putting forward improvement measures. For the noise
problem caused by some machines in the production workshop, Lee &
Man commissioned the Dongguan Disease Prevention and Contro
Center to monitor the air and noise of the workshop regularly. Meanwhile,
due to the product features, the handbags are inflammable goods, so
Lee & Man regards fire safety as a top priority. It adopts the principle of
“special protection for special areas”, and carries out fire training and
emergency drill on a regular basis, so as to provide sufficient protection
measures to reduce the occurrence of accidents.
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Development and Training

While paying attention to the Company’s development, we also
encourage employees to integrate individual development into corporate
development. The Company established a series of training system and
management to fully support the employees’ career development.

HHG always adheres to the people-oriented policy, and actively
implements the training demands, so as to realize the mutual
development of “brand building” and “talent cultivation”. In 2017, HHG
initiated the strategic development of “from 100 to 1,000”, and the
cultivation of talents is an important guarantee work.
effectively meet the training needs, HHG provides targeted training
programs for different staff, such as: the “Junior Professional Manager
Training”, the “Intermediate Professional Manager Training”, the “Assembly”
Training Camp, the “HHG Business College Class”, the “HHG
Customized Talent Training for Professional Construction”.

In order to

Junior Professional Manager Training

The Junior Professional Manager Training is suitable for junior staff and
interns, and the main training contents include post responsibilities,
computer operation and on-duty management. After the training, trainees
will participate in assessment, and will be promoted to the second
deputy manager if passing the assessment. From January to December
2017, there were 10 terms of junior professional manager training, with
trainees totaling 268.

Intermediate Professional Manager Training

The Intermediate professional managers training is applicable to staff
who have passed three-posts rotational examination and want to get
promotion to be store manager, and training content includes corporate
culture, store managers’ responsibilities and permissions, business
management, leadership and communication, food safety, sales, and
data analysis. Similarly, after the training, trainees have to take
assessment, and will become store manager candidates if passing the
assessment. In 2017, there were a total of four training courses, with 79
trainings in total.

The “Assembly” Training Camp

With the development of HHG and the growth of employees, the Party
Branch of the Communist Party of China organized new Party members,
activists of Party application and new employees to participate in the
“Assembly” Special Training Camp, providing a good learning and
practice experience, and facilitating the growth of new employees.

BRE HERERET@
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HHG Business College Classes

In 2017, HHG launched the HHG Business College Classes by
cooperating with Beijing Xicheng College of Economic Science, with a
total of 58 employees from stores signed up for courses, realizing their
college university.

HHG Customized Talent Training for
Professional Construction

In order to further satisfy HHG’s corporate development strategy and
talents demand, the university-enterprise cooperation project HHG
Customized Talent Training for Professional Construction was initiated at
Beijing Xicheng College of Economic Science in 2017. The project offers
customized business administration curriculum based on professional
store research, so as to truly cater for the company’s talent demand.

HHG Intern Manager Workshop
MEBRBEEEAXSE
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HHG Intern Manager Training
MaeaRBLEE

HHG Business Colleague Workshop
MEATHPEREREHS

HHG Business Colleague Class Graduation Ceremony
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In 2017, Lee & Man continued implementing efficient and accurate
training for employees, mainly including new employee orientation and
on-the-job training. The New employee orientation mainly includes five
aspects: the regulations of factories and the company, safety, health,
computer security, and counter-terrorism, which aims to illustrate the
characteristics of the company and the working environment to the new
employees, so that they can adapt to the organizational culture
atmosphere as soon as possible, and speed up professional
psychological change. The training of on-the-job staff mainly aims to
improve the operation skills and safety production awareness. In 2017,
Lee & Man conducted “lean production” activity by holding a workshop
on one piece flow review. In order to raise the level of internationalization,
Lee & Man conducted English training classes in 2017, and invited
international students from foreign language schools to the site for face-
to-face learning. In addition, Lee & Man made use of leisure time to
conduct lectures for female staff on legal knowledge and the spirit of
“self-respect, self-confidence, self-reliance, and self-improvement”, and
held tea parties for staff interview and learning about knowledge on
children’s safety for employees’ family members, so as to balance
employees’ work and life.

Lecture for Female Staff on Legal Knowledge and
the Spirit of “Self-respect, Self-confidence, Self-reliance, and
Self-improvement” by Lee & Man

B S A FE A TOA{R A e [ B |4 e S0 o 8 e

BRE HERERET@

01I7HEE BXHEBHETIEHRS N 1B
R EBEEH 8 T ARSI M
BEIFN - FEIFIRNTEZSRER
HARHE T2 HE BEELE B
EREFE BENERABEFTE LNTE
BIECENBEMIERSE BRER
EBEXERE MRBELEEE - MAE
BEIEIETZATIRSEITRIEREMN
TEEEB#H - 2017TFEE ETIHHEL
EEE H2EB4EESMETESRAL
RE o BTRFBEBRKE  BX2017F
FIBFR T B XEI BB IEEER
BELFERES BETEYEE2EIR-
oh  BXFMARBRER AREEXZT
e BNl = W=D N = E = = VA=
R BrEAMEE VASKEERES
ITH#HEBE LY HBERBETRER
PHFBARED FEHEIBEMEE-

Training on “Lean Production” by Lee & Man
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The raw materials and services provided by suppliers directly affect the
quality and safety of products, and further affect customer experience.
Therefore, the Company always attaches importance to the management
of suppliers’ environmental risks and social risks.

The suppliers of HHG mainly include food suppliers and construction
suppliers. For food suppliers, HHG established a “farm-to-table” quality
and food safety standard system, entire network monitoring system and
food traceability system, so as to ensure safety of food supply chain.
HHG selects suppliers that have complete qualifications and passes
external inspection for cooperation, and carries out strict assess criteria.
For all links such as transportation of raw materials and food, processing
and warehouse, HHG implements strict control and supervision. For the
acceptance and transportation of raw materials, HHG makes entry
records of each batch of ingredients, and retains the inspection and
quarantine certificate, CIQ certificate, qualification certificate, inspection
report and other documents. As for construction suppliers, according to
the national legal requirements and the characteristics and needs of the
fast food chains, HHG strictly selects suppliers and has established
supplier supervision system to make the construction work more in line
with the changing consumer market. HHG formulated the “Construction
Manual” and “Supplier Management System” to strengthen suppliers’
decoration quality and production safety management, and conducts
quality monitoring and regular reviews and acceptance work, and gives
the feedbacks to suppliers, so as to constantly facilitate suppliers’
constant services improvement.

Lee & Man formulated “Business Partner Security” to ensure raw material
quality. When selecting suppliers of materials, Lee & Man gives priority to
suppliers with environmentally friendly awareness and their materials.
“Qualified Suppliers List” is also established, and suppliers receive
assessment regularly. If the quality of a supplier's goods is unstable, or
the supplier often delays delivery and affects production, Lee & Man will
send the supplier a “Notice of Improvement” to ask it to take actions for
improvement and make report. The Procurement Department is
responsible for follow-up and keeping records.
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Product Responsibility

In order to realize the sustainable development, enterprises must have
good products as the basis for market. Therefore, the Company always
attaches importance to product responsibility. Apart from strictly abiding
by laws and regulations such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Product Quality, the Company also takes a variety
of management measures to improve the quality of products and
services, so as to provide economic, and environmentally friendly, safe
and reliable products for consumers.

HHG adheres to strict management system to strengthen product quality
management. As a Chinese fast food chain brand, HHG is committed to
the exploration of cooking industrialization since the start of business. It
relies on factory automation and industrial production to ensure stable
quality, uniform taste and fast production of Chinese food. In terms of
quality management, HHG has established a comprehensive quality
management system to ensure the quality of food, and follow high
standards to provide customers with quality products and services. On
the basis of obtaining the ISO 9000 Quality Management System and
ISO 22000 Food Safety Management System certification, HHG strictly
implements its internal management controls set out in its “Quality and
Food Safety Management Manual” and the “Raw Material Standard”.
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In 2017, HHG continued to strengthen organizational security, and
strengthened leadership in food safety. It included food safety into its
annual key work projects. To this end, HHG set up a leading working
group of food safety, which was led by the general manager of the
company and composed of managers of various functional departments,
so as to fully implement the accountability system. In food safety
management, HHG follows a hierarchical inspection system, including
company level, department level, to carry out systematic inspection of
stores’ quality, service, clean and management, so as to ensure full
coverage of inspection of stores, and timely treatment of problem. At the
same time, each store us equipped with a food safety manager
responsible for food safety management and information communication.
Along with the improvement of food safety and quality standard, HHG
also adopts new technologies and new methods to implement refined
management. HHG uses international standard of HACCP (Hazard
Analysis and Critical Control Point) to ensure food safety. This system,
based on prevention and science, is able to identify, evaluate and control
hazards. The whole system covers the whole production process
including raw material selection, production and processing, production
at stores, and delivery to customers, thus ensuring the safety of the
production chain.

The continuous improvement HHG’s product quality and service has
gained praise and recognition from all sectors of society. In 2017, at the
21st Chinese Fast Food Industry Conference hosted by the China
Cuisine Association and organized by the Fast Food Committee of China
Cuisine Association, HHG was named “Excellent Brand of Chinese Fast
Food” and “2016 Top 100 Chinese Enterprises of Fast Food”.

Adhering to the principle of “quality first, and customer-oriented”, Lee &
Man produces products that meet legal requirements and customer
requirements. To this end, Lee & Man formulated the “Quality Manual”
which provides guidance for the whole process of quality inspection and
control from raw materials to finished product shipments. In production,
Lee & Man strictly controls product quality and enhances quality
inspection. In case of defective goods, we identify, segregate, assess,
handle and record, and take measures for correction.
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Lee & Man attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual
property rights. It actively complies with laws and regulations such as the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China. To protect its own
intellectual property rights, Lee & Man hired professional consultants on
patent application. As for materials and finished products with clients’
brand, Lee & Man uses the ERP system to monitor and keep records.

Anti-Corruption

Clean, transparent, and honest management is an objective requirement
for a company’s sustainable development. The Company strictly adheres
to national laws and regulations and its own rules, carries out the internal
clean governance system and standard, and takes integrity as the basis
of corporate management.

HHG attaches great importance to integrity and self-discipline, and
strives to foster a fair and transparent corporate environment. It pays
attention to strengthen the management of staff’s professional ethics and
code of conduct. The Handbook for Employees explicitly stipulates the
professional ethics and code of conduct. HHG also set up online
supervision channels such as WeChat working group, so that employees
can timely report through email, phone and WeChat. HHG ensures that
the reporting channels are unblocked, and investigate on the issues
reported by employees. As for issues concerned with major problems
such as illegal operation of stores and loopholes in work, the Audit
Department will carry out timely follow-up. Once an issue is verified, it
must be dealt with seriously.
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The business conduct of Lee & Man is based on “integrity and justice”.
Lee & Man made specifications of business ethics in its management
rules, so as to avoid unethical behaviours and encourage honest and
ethical behaviours. At the same time, through Instructions to Suppliers,
Lee & Man established a clean trade code to prevent corruption in
procurement. It also developed Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery
Procedures to prevent bribery in factory management, and to ensure that
employees’ legitimate rights and interests are protected. The Procedures
specifically prohibits employees from receiving any illegal gains such as
commissions and kickbacks in any way, or offering bribery to people in
business relationship with the Company. Once found, such behaviours
will be proceeded with legal procedures. In addition, the Procedures also
stipulates that all employees have the right to report employees’ unethical
behaviour to senior management, and the management’s telephone and
email address have been publicized to all employees. For all reports, the
factories are committed to careful treatment and appropriate incentives
for whistle-blowers. At the same time, Lee & Man protects whistle-
blowers’ personal information to prevent retaliation.

Community Investment

The Company has been committed to giving back to society and
benefiting the community residents where the Company is located, and
transformed the Company years’ of achievements into a larger
contribution to the society.

With the mission of creating “people’s favourite family restaurant”, HHG
actively builds social network and realizes common development with
the community by taking advantage of its widespread stores. In 2017, on
the “Commendation Meeting of Catering Companies to Support the
Elder and the Disabled at Xicheng District” held by the Civil Affairs Bureau
of Xicheng District, the District Food and Drug Administration, and the
District Diet Association, HHG’s Xinjiekou Store was awarded “Three-
Excellence Enterprise for Supporting the Elder and the Disabled at
Xicheng District”.
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As a catering enterprise, HHG gives play to its characteristics in the
catering industry to participate in the charity activities. In May of 2017,
China Friendship Foundation for Peace development and Development
and the China Cuisine Association set up “China Catering Talent
Development Fund”. In November, Zhao Jing, the General Manager of
HHG, took part in launching ceremony for the fund’s first large-scale
public welfare activity themed “Love Dish”, and donated RMB 30,000 to
the fund, to support the development of the public welfare activity of the
catering industry.

In addition, HHG continued to carry out the Showyes Project. In July
2017, HHG organized a total of 149 students of the Showyes Project,
vocational college interns and trainee managers that joined HHG from
2016 to 2017 to participate in the “Face-to-face Meeting with Founders”.
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HHG’s donation to China Catering Talent Development Fund
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Lee & Man also devotes itself to public welfare, strives to give full play to
its value, and actively participates in events, public welfare activities, and
environmental protection volunteer activities. On April 9th, 2017, Lee &
Man organized an environmental campaign “love our Gao Yan” and all of
the trade union committee members attended the event; On September
17, 2017, the trade union members of Lee & Man took part in the “Aiding
Poverty Alleviation by Donating Clothes” at a volunteer service station
near the company; On October 1st, 2017, Lee & Man launched the
“Sending Warmth and Care” in Gaobu Town; In November 2017, Lee &
Man organized employees to participate in blood donation to the
community.

HHG’s seminar for student interns
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Environmental Protection Popularization Themed “Love My Gaobu”
held by Lee & Man
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Sending Warmth and Care by Lee & Man
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Case: 2017 Lee & Man Factory Participates in

a large-scale community activity themed “Free

Clothes Donation by Lee & Man
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Blood Donation by Lee & Man Staff
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College Study and Employment Guarantee”

In order to help poor students’ education, Lee & Man Factory
participates in in a large-scale community activity themed “free college
study and employment guarantee”. The costs totalled RMB55,000
used for poor students’ tuitions and other expenses for two years were
to be fully paid by Lee & Man. A monthly living allowance of RMB900
are to be paid to students’ bank accounts on time, and the students
and their families do not have to pay a penny. After graduation, Lee &
Man provides job opportunity with competitive starting salaries, and
gives them salary adjustment opportunities every year.
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